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Chairman’s Statement
FTERS

As the new Chairman of the board of directors of the Company
(“Board”), | am pleased to report that, in 2014, the Company had
completed the successful transformation of its businesses from
footwear manufacturing, and brand ownership and management to
a company with the following business segments:—

A)  retailing business

B)  outlet mall

C)  sport branding

D) financial services

E)  property investment and holding

As this year was the first year after our successful transformation,
some business segments are still at its investment and transitional
stage, the results of the continuing operations and the newly
acquired businesses were included in page 55 of this report.

REVIEW
A) RETAILING BUSINESS
1)  Speedo
Under the collaboration and support from Speedo’s
international and Asian companies, we expanded the
market shares through consolidating and expanding

franchise stores and other brand strategies. Turnover
was increasing steadily.
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Focused on

=

B)

2)

R

Duty free business

With intensifying economic collaboration between
China and Taiwan, the relaxed restrictions of visa
issuance policy, tourists from mainland China visiting
Taiwan are becoming fervent. Kinmen, governed by
Taiwan, is located in Fujian and is in close vicinity
to Xiamen. With its natural geographical advantage,
coupled with the benefiting government plans and
policies, both Kinmen and Xiamen are highly likely to
become the new hotspots for leisure tours and duty
free purchase.

To grasp this market development opportunity, the
Company successfully acquired the duty free shops of
Golden Palaris in Kinmen in the second half year, and
solidified its business foundation in several months.

OUTLET MALLS

With economic growth slowing down, on-going introduction

and enhancement of new government policies, consumers

are more rational, shrewd, no longer blindly extravagant, this
kind of solid and concrete spending mentality is beneficial to
the development of our outlet malls business.

B)

2)
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Chairman’s Statement
FTERS

(o)

D)

E)

After two years of business development, the outlets owned
and operated by the Group in Shenyang are becoming more
stable and matured with turnover increasing steadily. Its
future development will be responsive to market changes
and consumer demand and we will explore and select more
brands suitable for market needs.

Albeit somewhat behind the original schedule, Tianjin Park
Outlets, managed and operated by the Company, finally
commenced its operation by the end of 2014 and was
warmly welcomed by citizens living nearby. In future, the
Company will enhance the brand set up and promotion,
turning Tianjin Park Outlets to become the region’s industry
guidepost.

SPORTS BRANDING
PONY

The Company and Anthony L&S Group, the principal
licencee in USA, are actively cooperating to develop
the PONY brand and has attracted ICONIX, a U.S.
listed company, to express interest to acquire the PONY
trademarks in USA and other regions. The Company
negotiated with ICONIX actively in the second half of last
year and eventually entered into the trademark purchase
agreement for USA, Canada and Mexico in early February
2015 at a consideration of US$37 million. The negotiations
for other regions are also actively underway.

FINANCIAL SERVICES

The acquisition of the entire interests of Jin Dragon which
includes China Rise Finance Group Company Limited
(“China Rise Finance”) by the Company in April last year
marked our official presence in the financial services sector.
With the current demand in financial services and capital
markets, China Rise Finance delivered positive results in its
first year.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT AND HOLDING

In addition, the Company had also completed the swapping
of some of its properties nearby the Outlet Mall in Shenyang
for four storeys of properties in Beijing Junefield Plaza
(“Beijing Properties”), such move had further strengthened
the property portfolio of the Company and increased its
income source.
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Out of the above business segments, the outlet malls and duty
free business are similar and can complement each other. Brand
ownership and management can strengthen the competitive
advantages of both businesses and together with the provision of
various financial support by our financial services segment, the
business segments will demonstrate maximized synergistic effect.

PROSPECTS

The Company will continue to expand and intensify the
development of each business segment.

1)  For outlet malls, the Company has reached preliminary
consensus with a renowned Mainland enterprise to
accelerate the number of outlet malls in the target regions
and such plans have already been finalized and under
preparation.

2)  For duty free business, the Company will continue to leverage
on Kinmen’s geographical and policy advantages to enhance
its expansion, optimize its operation management, gradually
expand its size, and work closely with suppliers to come up
with suitable strategies to prepare for its medium and long
term development.

3)  For PONY brand, apart from USA, Canada and Mexico,
the Company will continue to facilitate the collaboration
with ICONIX in other regions to further enhance the brand
development of PONY in these regions.

4)  For Speedo, by building on its generic sound foundation, we
hope to enhance the cooperation with the parent company of
Speedo to expand the retail sector and its channels, and to
consider further collaboration with other brands gradually.

B)  For financial services, the Company will intensify and expand
its current businesses, strengthen customer relationship
management, improve operational efficiency in response to
the demand in terms of the macro-economic climate and
service entities.

| am confident that each business will flourish and maximize its
results while generating positive complementary impact amongst
the segments and eventually bring maximized returns to the
Company and shareholders.

APPRECIATION

| would take this opportunity to thank my fellow directors, our staff
and stakeholders for their continuous support and contributions
to the Company. As Mr. Chan Ting Chuen had retired from
chairmanship at the end of last year, | would like to thank Mr.
Chan, on behalf of the Board, for his contribution to the Company
during his term of office.
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Operation Review
e 6]

Turnover of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
rose from HKD219.2 million to HKD263.8 million representing a
20% increase attributable to the organic growth of our Shenyang
Park Outlet, acquisition of China Rise Finance in April last year,
improved turnover of our Speedo operation and consolidation of
the PONY brand ownership. A gross profit of HKD157.2 million was
recorded.

Profit of the year attributable to the owners of the Company also
increased 23% from HKD15.5 million to HKD19.1 million as a
result of better topline.

Other income increased from HKD54.1 million to HKD74.3 million
as interest income generated from available cash moved up.
With the rise of property market, the fair value gain of investment
properties rose from HKD4.5 million to HKD28.0 million. As the
Group underwent restructuring and consolidation over the past
two years, share of the results of joint ventures fell from loss of
HKD33.6 million to loss of HKD1.5 million. Loss for the year from
the continuing operations was reduced from HKD161.4 million to
HKD9.5 million in light of the increased topline, interest income
received and rise in the fair value of the property.
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With acquisition of the Beijing Properties in September last year,
the balance of investment properties rose from HKD729.2 million
to HKD1,305.7 million representing a 79% increase. The interest
in joint venture, fell from HKD35.4 million to HKD24.7 million as
a result of consolidation and restructuring. The available-for-sale
investments in the amount of HKD44.9 million and the goodwill of
HKD35.6 million arose as a result of the acquisition of the China
Rise Finance in the second quarter of 2014.

Acquisition of the duty free shop in Kinmen and the projected
Speedo sales lead to an increase in inventories by HKD16.7
million. The inclusion of the results of the China Rise Finance
also gave rise to an increase of trade and other receivables from
HKD104.8 million to HKD116.6 million. HKD50.3 million of
advances to customers in margin financing, loans receivable of
HKD143.0 million and bank balances and cash held on behalf of
customers in the amount of HKD22.2 million were also booked.

As reported in the 2014 interim report of the Company, out of the
HKD291.7 million proceeds raised from the placing of shares in
October 2013, HKD59 million were used for existing outlet mall
operations, HKD21.7 million was used for general working capital
of the Group while HKD150 million was repaid to the bank. The
HKD61 million reserved for outlet mall expansion remained un-
utilised.
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Operation Review
e 6]

MARKET INFORMATION

During the year, sales to the People’s Republic of China, Hong
Kong, Taiwan and other Asian countries comprised 94.2% (2013:
93.2%) of the total sales and the remaining 5.8% (2013: 6.8%)
was mainly shared between United States of America, other
European countries and South America.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had bank balances and cash
of HKD562,362,000 (2013: HKD823,257,000). The Group was
offered banking facilities amounting to HKD620,448,000 (2013:
HKD569,259,000). As at 31 December 2014, the Group obtained
bank borrowings in the amount of HKD465,336,000 (2013:
HKD379,383,000). The Group has variable interest rate bank loans
which carry interest range from 1.31% to 2.96% per annum. The
effective interest rate of the Group’s bank loans is 1.81% (2013:
1.81%). The gearing ratio stood at 21.27% (2013: 21.21%), based
on total bank borrowings over shareholders’ equity. The banking
facilities were secured by corporate guarantees from the Company
and certain of its subsidiaries. Bank loans are secured by certain
land and buildings and investment properties of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the total number of employees
of the Group was 305. Employee costs (excluding directors’
emoluments) amounted to approximately HKD67,056,000 (2013:
HKD83,505,000).

In addition to competitive remuneration packages, discretionary

bonuses and employee share options are awarded to eligible staff
of the Group based on their performance and individual merits.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 10 June 2011, shareholders of the Company have approved
and adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing eligible participants with the opportunity to
acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. All directors of the Company (“Directors”), full-time
employees and any other persons who, at the sole discretion of the
Board of Directors, have contributed or will contribute to the Group
are eligible to participate in the Scheme.

Pursuant to the Scheme, shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on
the date of adoption. The Company may renew this 10% limit with
shareholders’ approval provided that each such renewal may not
exceed 10% of shares in the Company in issue as at the date of
the shareholders’ approval.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme or any other share option scheme
adopted by the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and unexercised options) under the Scheme or
any other share option schemes adopted by the Company in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be
specified by the Company at the time of grant. This period must
expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant of the options.
At the time of grant of the options, the Company may specify a
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 14 days from the date on which the letter containing the
offer is delivered to that participant and the amount payable on
acceptance of an option is HKD1.00.
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Operation Review
e 6]

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be issued
upon exercise of the options shall be no less than the higher of
(i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of grant. The
subscription price will be approved by the Board of Directors at the
time the option is offered to the participants.

No option may be granted under the Scheme after the date of the
tenth anniversary of the adoption of the Scheme.

On 17 June 2014, a total of 6,000,000 share options were granted
to a Director of the Company.

Details of the movements of the share options granted under the
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2014 are as follows:
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Number of share options

BREYE

Exercise  Outstanding Outstanding
price as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
Name of per share 1 January during during during 31 December
participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) 2014 the year the year the year 2014
12014 120145
BRITEE 1418 12A318
SEAT R¥EH fTfEs (&%) HATHE REARE  REATE  RERXY iR AT
Directors 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 11,200,000 - (11,200,000) - -
2% 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,300,000 - (3,800,000) (1,500,000) 7,000,000
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,300,000 - - (1,500,000) 10,800,000
9/10/2013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0402 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - -
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0.402 1,500,000 - - (1,500,000) -
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0402 1,500,000 - - (1,500,000) -
17/6/2014 17/6/2014 - 16/6/2017 0.550 - 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
Employees 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 13,600,000 - (13,600,000 - -
&8 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,000,000 - (9,680,000) - 2,320,000
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,000,000 - - - 12,000,000
9/10/2013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0402 5,410,000 - (4,290,000 (580,000) 540,000
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0402 4,470,000 - - - 4,470,000
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0.402 4,470,000 - - - 4,470,000
92,750,000 6,000,000  (44,570,000) (6,580,000) 47,600,000

Weighted average exercise price
MEFHEE 0.405 0.550 0.405 0.404 0423
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The number and weighted average exercise price of share options
exercisable at the end of reporting period are 20,330,000 shares
and HKDO0.448.

The weighted average remaining contractual life for share options
outstanding at the end of reporting period is 1.80 years. The
weighted average share price at the dates of exercise of options
during the year was HKDO.63.

The total number of securities available for issue under the share
option scheme as at 31 December 2014 was 749,704,074 shares
(including options for 47,600,000 shares that have been granted
but not yet lapsed or exercised) which represented 28.1% of the
issued share capital of the Company at 31 December 2014.

The estimated fair value of the options granted on 17 June 2014
was HKDO.1921 per option. The fair value was calculated using the
Black-Scholes model with Binomial Tree method. The inputs into
the model were as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO.550
Exercise price HKDO.550
Expected volatility 51.087%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.771%
Expected dividend yield 0%

The volatility assumption, measured at the standard deviation of
expected share price returns, is based on a statistical analysis of
daily share prices over the last three years.
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Operation Review
e 6]

The share options granted on 9 September 2013 are subject to the
following vesting schedule:

R2013F9 AR K HMBREAX LA T BB
RIER:

Maximum
number of
share options

exercisable

REZT{TE

Vesting schedule SRERFEIR BERRHEE H
From 9 September 2013 to 8 September 2014 2013F9H9H £2014F9H8H 40%
From 9 September 2014 to 8 September 2015 201499 A9H £2015%F9 A8H 70%
From 9 September 2015 to 8 September 2016 20159 HA9H £2016F9 A8H 100%

The share options granted on 9 October 2013 are subject to the
following vesting schedule:

R2013F10A9H IR L MBI A T BB
IR ER

Maximum
number of
share options

exercisable
REZTTE
Vesting schedule HERER R ERE
From 9 October 2013 to 8 October 2014 2013F10H9H £2014F10H8H 40%
From 9 October 2014 to 8 October 2015 2014 10H9H £2015%F10H8H 70%
From 9 October 2015 to 8 October 2016 201510 H9H £2016F10A8H 100%

No vesting conditions are set for the share options granted on 17
June 2014.

The fair value of share options granted is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase in share options
reserve within equity over the relevant vesting periods.

The Group recognised an expense of approximately HKD5,483,000

for the year ended 31 December 2014 in relation to share options
granted by the Company.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 26 January 2015, the Group entered into a purchase
agreement and pursuant to which the Group conditionally
agreed to acquire an additional 12% equity interest in a
non wholly-owned subsidiary, &R EF B A B X B R AR
(“Shenyang Keenson”) from its non controlling shareholder
for a consideration of RMB22,300,000 (equivalent
to HKD27,800,000). After this acquisition, Shenyang
Keenson remained as a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and this was to be accounted for as an
equity transaction in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

On 2 February 2015, the Group entered into a disposal
agreement and pursuant to which the Group has agreed
to dispose the PONY Trademark in the United States,
Mexico and Canada for a consideration of USD30,000,000
(equivalent to HKD232,500,000) and USD7,000,000
(equivalent to HKD54,300,000) respectively.

Operation Review
e 1E] L]

HEHREIR

(a)

201551 H268 AEEET L —MEEH
@Bl ARECAGER B R —FEE
2EMBAREGENBABEXARAA
(MERGER ) IR RR B GEH Z
12% P48 - B 73 AR #22,300,0007T (48
& 027,800,000/ 7T) < A UL W BB 12 - SRS
BHDAARRRZIFZEMB AR it
ERAKEZGEMBRERAARI R

R20155F2 A28 - NREBRT Y LS - &
It A& E 2 R E 5 Bl AR E30,000,0005
7t (48 & 232,500,000/ 7t ) &7,000,000
2 7T (48 & 754,300,000/ 7T ) H & PONY
RER - 2T R INERER
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Board of Directors
E2EE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, aged 51, Chairman (appointed on 15
December 2014 and elected as the Chairman on 23 December
2014)

Mr. Cheng Tun Nei is an experienced investor in securities
and also a seasoned businessman engaging in securities and
financing, consultancy, hotel investment, real estate investment
and development, import and export of cigarettes, perfume and
cosmetic products business over many years. He is also a director
of GoldSilk Capital Limited (“GoldSilk”). GoldSilk is a substantial
shareholder of the Company under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”).

Mr. Sze, Sun Sun Tony, aged 63, Managing Director (appointed
on 1 February 2005 and re-elected on 11 June 2013)

Mr. Sze, Sun Sun Tony joined the Group in 1997 and is currently
the Managing Director and executive director of the Company. Mr.
Sze has over 30 years of experience in investment and property
development in Hong Kong, mainland China and overseas markets.
He is also a director of each of Alexon International Limited, First
Dynamic International Limited and Well Success Investment
Limited, all of which are deemed or direct substantial shareholders
of the Company under the SFO.

Mr. Chan Ting Chuen, aged 67 (appointed on 9 March 2009,
re-elected on 10 June 2011 and retired on 28 February 2015)

Mr. Chan Ting Chuen graduated with a Bachelor degree in civil
engineering from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is
also a director of each of Royal Pacific Limited, First Dynamic
International Limited and Well Success Investment Limited, all
of which are deemed or direct substantial shareholders of the
Company under the SFO.

‘ Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

PITES

BMERSKE 515 T (R2014F12H15H %
EF WH2014E12A23A R AXE)

BEEELER—BRAALEREFFZEBRNK
BERERBAN ZFRREEFEFS/R - BRER
BOBEERE FHEREERLER -BKRK
b dm A O 27 © 8 55 4 7T & GoldSilk Capital
Limited ([GoldSilk ] ) W E % - IRIFEESH KA E &
7] (1387 R HIE 15D ) B9 5E 3 - GoldSilk# 4R /&
AREHEERR

MEHFIEE 635 & FAKIE (R2005F2H1
HEZRE WN20135F6H11BBEEET)

BT R E ER1997F MMAKRKE R RARF
NEFRLERRITESZ MRAEERES F
BEEMERDEERTSEERA=1T%
#C 8% - i % HE TR A Alexon International Limited
First Dynamic International Limited 5z Well Success
Investment Limited) & 5 235 5 & B E 1561 19
TE ZEARERANEER/RLTRANEER
o

BEEENISE 4 - 675% (FA2000FE3 A9 EEF - I
2011466 7108 % 538 18 F & 201542528
HiER)

BRENEERFRBEREBERETARIRETE(-
B 5t 4 [F1 B 9 Bl BRoyal Pacific Limited * First
Dynamic International Limited X Well Success
Investment Limited®E £ - iZFEH RHERX 51K
PINESR ZERRABERIEEREARTNE

ZME -



Ms. Chen, Fang Mei, aged 52 (appointed on 8 July 2009 and
re-elected on 11 June 2013)

Ms. Chen Fang Mei, joined the Group in 2009 as an executive
director. Ms. Chen graduated with a Bachelor degree of
International Business from Soochow University in Taiwan in 1986
and has over 20 years of experience in investment and financial
management. During 2001 and 2004, she was the vice president
and head of underwriting of Citibank Securities (Taiwan) Limited.
Ms. Chen has been the spokesperson and vice president of Pou
Chen Corporation (“Pou Chen”) (TSE: 9904) from 2004 to 2013.
Pou Chen is a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation and a deemed substantial shareholder of the Company
under the SFO. Ms. Chen is also an executive director of Eagle
Nice (International) Holdings Limited (HKSE: 02368), a company
engaged in the manufacturing and trading of sportswear and
garments that is listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary, aged 59 (appointed on 2 January 2014)

Mr. Chan was further appointed Chief Operating Officer on 1
November 2014 overseeing all business units for the Group.

He possesses over 35 years of professional experience in
marketing, sales, distribution and management in fast moving
consumer goods with multi-national corporations such as LVMH,
British American Tobacco and Imperial Tobacco Group.

Mr. Chan holds an EMBA degree awarded jointly by the HKUST
Business School and the Kellogg School of Management of
Northwestern University. He has also attended management
courses at Harvard Business School, The Wharton School,
Stanford-National University of Singapore, INSEAD/CEDEP and
IMD.

Board of Directors
4

BB ELL 525 (R2009F7 A8HEEE - I
M2013E6 A1l RS EE(T)

PR 2L+ R2009F MAREBERITEF 1R
186 FEXENAEBERREAE FEBEBRESZE
TEN - WHBE0FRERVHEELEH R
20014F 22004 F Hif - PR L AT & B IEEFE
H IR0 AR A 7 2 485 I & 8 56 £ & - 20044F
E2013FHH ML T ABRITERNDERAD
& ([EpK]) (BRZEMRSE:9904) MEEF A KA
K ERRAEBLFRSM LT REHFRE
EXSEOMTEE BRERAEEARANEZR
RBREUTNAREEDERBRREREHRE
5 W AT LT ESE (B IEAR B IR A A
(BRZE 5% : 02368) BT S -

PREFFELE  595% (R2014F12HEZRE)

PRIEEB2014F11AIHREERRAR EEEE
E-AREREEETMAEEEM-

A AMISFHERER  BERBUHEF
REBEEENTHEESEEEEREAR 88
REHEEMIHEE HE DHKER-

RAEEFHBEBNRABIREIR SRR EXEA
IERBYREEIEER A I ZEMBARAL < IR
BRGS0 - EER B - 2R IR E
VYRS BMNIEmERSREEERT O RINE
RERBEREEERBRECEERE

MESEEBRRASE 204FERS .



Board of Directors
3]

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu George Hong-chih, aged 42 (appointed on 20 August
2014)

Mr. Liu George Hong-chih, holds a Master of Business
Administration in Finance and Entrepreneurial Management from
The Wharton School of University of Pennsylvania and Bachelor of
Arts in Economics and International Studies from Yale University.
Mr. Liu worked previously with Morgan Stanley and China
International Capital Corporation. He is currently also the executive
director of Yue Yuen Industrial (Holdings) Limited (“Yue Yuen”)
(HKSE: 551), the shares of which is listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Yue Yuen is a deemed substantial shareholder of
the Company under the SFO.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Shing Chak, aged 55 (appointed on 30 December 2004
and re-elected on 11 June 2013)

Mr. Ho Shing Chak, a certified public accountant in Hong Kong,
was appointed as an independent non-executive director in
2004. He graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor degree in business administration and holds a
Bachelor of Laws degree from the Peking University. He previously
worked for a reputable international accounting firm and is
currently running his own business. Mr. Ho is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and is
also an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Ho is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of
the Company.

Mr. Shum Pui Kay, aged 66 (appointed on 27 November 2013)

Mr. Shum Pui Kay possesses over 30 years of experience in the
retailing and distribution of luxurious goods. He was instrumental in
the establishment and expansion of the renowned French leather
good brand Longchamp in the Asia Pacific region and has served
as the Chairman of the Asia Pacific region of the brand Longchamp
since 1978. From 2008 to 2013, he served as the director of
Longchamp Company Limited mainly responsible for overseeing
brand development in the Greater China region. Mr. Shum is also a
member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company.
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Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie, aged 48 (appointed on 27 November
2013)

Mr. Wah, Wang Kei Jackie graduated from The University of
Hong Kong in 1990 and was qualified as a solicitor in 1992. Up
until 1997, Mr. Wah was a partner of a Hong Kong law firm. He
is currently an executive director of G-Resources Group Limited
(HKSE: 1051), the shares of which are listed on the main board of
the HKSE. He was also an executive director of CST Mining Group
Limited (HKSE: 985) from 25 June 2010 to 31 December 2012
and China New Energy Power Group Limited (HKSE: 1041) from 2
November 2009 to 13 September 2013, the shares of which are all
listed on the main board of the HKSE. Mr. Wah is also a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander, aged 67 (appointed on 15
December 2014)

Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander is a Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
possesses over 35 years of experience in commercial, financial and
investment management in Hong Kong and Mainland China. He is
currently also an independent non-executive director of Top Form
International Limited (HKSE: 333), Playmates Toys Limited (HKSE:
869) and China Strategic Holdings Limited (HKSE: 235), all three
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Kam Lung, aged 51, has been working with the Group
since October 2014.

He is the chief executive officer who oversees the compliance and
business operation of the financial services unit acquired by the
Group in 2014.

With over 24 years of experience in the financial industry, he
currently serves as the independent non-executive director of a few
listed companies namely Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited
(HKSE: 8242), Pak Tak International Limited (HKSE: 2668) and
Enterprise Development Holdings Limited (HKSE: 1808).

Mr. Liu is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. At the same time, he is an associate
of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and admitted
as an associate of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators of the United Kingdom.

He is also a full member of the Society of Registered Financial
Planners and an associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong in
1993, 1994, 1995, 1999, 2009 and 2010 respectively.

Mr. Liu was awarded a Diploma of Business Administration from
Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University).

Ms. Chow So Ying Anna, aged 51, has been working with the
Group since June 2004.

She is the named company secretary of the Group.

Ms. Chow is a solicitor admitted in the Supreme Court of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region and possesses over 15 years
experience in legal and regulatory compliance. Her legal practice
used to focus on the capital markets covering IPO, bank financing,
securities and regulatory compliance, joint venture documentation
and private equity investments.

Ms. Chow graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of arts degree.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Ms. Tham Kit Wan, aged 54, has been working with the Group
since September 2007.

She now serves as the legal counsel and Senior Vice President of
the Group.

Ms. Tham is a qualified lawyer of Hong Kong, England & Wales and
Singapore.

She has more than 25 years of experience in corporate finance and
the commercial and banking fields, covering an array of corporate
projects in acquisitions and mergers, restructuring, tax advisory,
arbitration, administrative review proceedings and negotiations with
governments and private parties, and company secretarial work.

She was the Head of Legal of K Wah Construction Limited (now
Galaxy Entertainment Group — HKSE: 27) from 1998 to 2007.

Ms. Tham graduated with a Bachelor of Laws (Honours) degree
from the National University of Singapore. She furthered her
studies and was awarded a Master of Laws (International Business
Law) degree by the City University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Lee Cheung Ming, aged 43, joined the Group in September
2014.

He is currently the Head of Real Estate division of the Group.

Mr. Lee accumulated over 14 years of experience in hotel and real
estate development cum investment in Mainland China. He used
to serve as the director of Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited
(HKSE: 8242), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lee is currently pursuing his EMBA studies at Xiamen
University. He holds a graduate certificate in Business
Administration from Beijing Economy Management College.

He is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, the Chairman of the
Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Yeung Yuk Tuen, aged 41, joined the Group in January 2012.

He is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company who oversees the
finance and accounting division of the Group.

Mr. Yeung used to work for the Big Four accounting firms in Hong
Kong and the United States. He had accumulated over 18 years
of experience in financial management, merger and acquisition
across Hong Kong and China.

He is a Certified Public Accountant in the State of California in
United States of America and was awarded a Bachelor of Science
degree in business administration from the University of California
at Berkeley in 1997.

Mr. Chan Cheng-Kang Allan, aged 39, joined the Group in
February 2004.

Mr. Chan has been overseeing the Speedo China business since
2006.

He possesses over 10 year of professional experience in marketing,
sales, distribution and management in China’s sporting goods
industry, having also played key roles in running other top
international sport brands such as Reebok in China.

Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Architecture degree from McGill
University. He has also completed management programs at Simon

Fraser University.

He is the son-in-law of Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony, a director of the
Company.

‘ Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

EEEEAS (&)
BEBESXE 4lp R2012F 1A MAREE -

BRARBNERVBNTE BEEEAE
MBS K @ st BT

JiE

BREEGRBEREBENOASTMEBHL
15 BERISFRE LB RTEAMNTBEE N
WIS pHEER -

M —BEREIMNEME A RI97FEER
MMABHR RO RN TEHEESE L

BBEISEE 395 B2004F2 A INAKREHE -

1% B 20065 & & & IE Speedo B (A 4 2 75 -

M EBBRIOFNMIGHERE HE DHEHLEESD
BESHmENEXLR  CERTSHESFEK
an & A ] e

ERERENEREEBASRRESEL BN
BRABERARFEEAZEEEERE

ERERARRBESHINCLENLLE -



SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Mr. Mok Henry, aged 53, joined the Group in April 2004.

Mr. Mok was appointed Vice President in November 2012, and is
currently overseeing the Group’s outlet mall operations in China.

He is a retail industry veteran with over 20 years of experience in
the general consumer, as well as tourism, retailing business. His
past working experience included DFS Hong Kong Ltd., a LVMH
company and Victoria Mall, a CKH Shopping Mall, Reebok China
and JFT Holdings Ltd.

He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Architecture from North
East London Polytechnic (Current name: University of East London)
in the United Kingdom.

Mr. Ng Yat Man Daniel, aged 57, joined the Group in December,
2011.

Mr. Ng was appointed the Head of leasing of outlet mall division on
1 March 2015. In his new appointment, he is responsible for high-
end brand recruitment for the Group’s outlet malls.

He is a seasoned retailer with over 30 years of experience
accumulated from working with Foxtown, Golden Eagle Shopping
Centre and Sogo (HK).

Mr. Ng attended management courses at Foxtown Outlets, Lugano,
Switzerland.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Mr. So Yat Ming Dick, aged 59, appointed in October 2014.

Mr. So is currently the General Manager of Shenyang Park Outlets
operation.

An accomplished retailer, he brings with him more than 30 years
of expertise in retailing, mall management, international brands
distribution (including S. Farragamo, Hugo Boss, Coach, Bally,
Balenciaga and Reebok) in PRC. Mr. So used to work for Duty Free
Shoppers HK, ImagineX Group, Maison Mode Shopping Mall in
Shenyang and Urumgi.

He obtained his Bachelor of Business Administration degree from

the University of Management and Technology in the United States
of America.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Group obtained control of Jin Dragon Holdings
Limited (“Jin Dragon”) by acquiring its entire equity interest. The
principal activity of Jin Dragon is provision of financial services
including securities brokerage, margin financing, underwriting and
placing, consulting and money lending.

During the year, the Group obtained control of Trillion Earning
Limited (“Trillion Earning”) by acquiring its entire equity interest.
The principal activity of Trillion Earning is property investment.

The other principal activities of the Group remain to be property
investment and holding, management and operation of outlet
mall in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), trademark rights
licensing and trading and retailing. The principal activities of the
Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 42.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
business of the Group are retailing and sourcing; branding;
property investment and holding; outlet malls; and provision of
financial services including securities brokerage, margin financing,
underwriting and placing, consulting and money lending. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries and joint ventures are set
out in Notes 42 and 16 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 55 to 56 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared or paid during the year. The
directors now do not recommend payment of a final dividend to the
shareholders.

Directors’ Report
EBRS

EE 2 WMBE2014F12A31 R IEFER EAF R
EREEZERAMBRE -

FERH

FRAAEEEBUBEEERARAB (&
B 2B RSERIENE -SENEE
EBRRECRRS  EEESEL RESH
B -BHkEE BRAEKE-

RFER - ANEEFEBUEETllion Earning Limited
(ITrillion Earning 1)z % &P A% # - EX 45 Trillion
EarningfZ $4E © Trillion Earningz =B #5551
BE-

AEBENEM T REBRERMERENFEY
X BEREENTEARKME ([HE])MHE
FHAT REFHEEAEANEENZTE - AR
AT EMBARZ X BEEEBHNHTEI2R

RRB T —HREZEBR AR - AEBETEEBKE
REEHRRE MR DRRERFEDE
BERELRRERSBRE  BREFLL RE
ERE BHEIEE HRARKE - ARFEEM
BAR MK ERNEBEDRIENALRE
IR M aE42216 -

RIERBER

REBBZE2014F12A31IB L FENEEDH
MARFHELLE ZEFE6A MRS RHEMP K -

FRARABLEESRIKNTHARE -EED
ERIRNHRBE FARRRMIR

MESEEBRRASE 204FERS ‘



Directors’ Report
SRS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings and freehold land were
revalued at 31 December 2014. The revaluation resulted in a
surplus of approximately HKD23,121,000 which was credited
directly to the properties revaluation reserve.

Details of movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties at 31 December 2014 were
fair valued by an independent firm of professional property valuers
base on comparable sales available in the market. The net increase
in fair value of approximately HKD27,973,000 was credited directly
to profit or loss.

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group

during the year are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in Note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The reserves of the Company available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2014 were as follows:

Directors’ Report
SERS

AAT S EC iR

R2014F12 A31H KRB A] DB F AR AL R
R

2014 2013

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FHETT

Share premium A1 i@ E 924,998 578,665
Contributed surplus BEHAs 586,774 586,774
Retained profits B 15 m 262,566 381,716
1,774,338 1,547,155

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
balances in a company’s contributed surplus and share premium
accounts are available for distribution. However, the company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus and share premium if:

(@) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the assets of the Company would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

BARZINVIAALE (KEF])  RANEHA
R R ERPESRBAHIR - EETIIB
AT RAEHG TS A SR ALE - SAER
BfpSR R EETHR:

(@) RARTEMLNIKRBEKIERER
EEHNER: K

(b) RAREEMNAZREEEXNEAAEREH
TR AR B R £ 5 (B ARV AR A o
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Cheng Tun Nei (Chairman)
(appointed on 15 December 2014 and
elected as the Chairman on 23 December 2014)
Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony (Managing Director)
(resigned as the Deputy Chairman on 23 December 2014)
Mr. Chan Ting Chuen (retired on 28 February 2015)
Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan (retired on 11 June 2014)
Ms. Chen Fang Mei
Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary (appointed on 2 January 2014)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Li | Nan (retired on 11 June 2014)
Mr. Liu George Hong-chih (appointed on 20 August 2014)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Cheng Kar Shing (resigned on 15 December 2014)

Mr. Ho Shing Chak

Mr. Shum Pui Kay

Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie

Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander (appointed on 15 December 2014)

In accordance with the existing Bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-law”), Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony and Ms. Chen Fang Mei and Mr.
Ho Shing Chak will retire as Directors by rotation and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Group which is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme adopted
on 10 June 2011 (the “Scheme”) is set out in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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On 9 September 2013 and 9 October 2013, a total of 100,900,000
share options were granted to eligible persons. On 17 June 2014,
a total of 6,000,000 share options were granted to a Director of the
Company. Details of the movements of the share options granted
under the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2014 are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executives and their associates of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Code”), were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each in the Company: base on total
shares as at 31 December 2014

Directors’ Report
SERS

7201399 A9R K 2013F10A9H A&/ A+
B F 4 $£100,900,00017 B8 L 4 - 5320144F6 A
178 ARQ A —E FE R T 6,000,000 i i%
Mo PAEL E2013412A318 It X2014412 A31
BEER RIBEZTERLNBREZSFED
ARG ISR I 7230 ©

ESNEETHASMERRIIRG
ELERA R B E R

RIEE %&Hﬂﬁi%1\%157”%352{\%%%%1%7(_5’]1‘
M ATE RIBH A L AR EEETTE
RpEEST A ([FESFR) BRAARE R
P MR20145F12A31H AR R EE R E BT
BA B REFZ@EALTRARRSHHEE QA

B - AERIRR O R B S eV R SOR B BV H 51 40
T
2

AR RFREEO.10% T i & Bk ()

Number of ordinary shares held by

FHERTLERYE

Percentage

Spouse Total of the

and/or number of issued share

children Controlled ordinary capital of

Director Notes  Beneficial owner under 18 corporation shares the Company
EEAT

ER/R/% E81T

EE it ZEA  18REUTFZ ERtE TEREYE BRAE L
Cheng Tun Nei HERE 1 - - 772,120,000 772,120,000 28.92%
Chan Ting Chuen BRIl 2,3 3,750,000 - 664,677,468 668,427,468 25.04%
Sze Sun Sun Tony ikt 2,4 - - 664,677,468 664,677,468 24.90%
Shum Pui Kay hIEE 5 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 0.37%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

LONG POSITIONS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1 Mr. Cheng Tun Nei (“Mr. Cheng”) owned the entire issued share capital of
GoldSilk Capital Limited (“GoldSilk”). As at 31 December 2014, GoldSilk was
directly interested in 772,120,000 shares of the Company. Mr. Cheng was thus
deemed to be interested in 772,120,000 shares of the Company.

2. Well Success Investment Limited (“Well Success”) was directly interested
in 664,677,468 shares of the Company. First Dynamic International Limited
(“First Dynamic”) held more than one-third of the issued share capital of
Well Success. Each of Royal Pacific Limited (“Royal Pacific”) and Alexon
International Limited (“Alexon”) held more than one-third of the issued share
capital of First Dynamic. Accordingly, First Dynamic, Royal Pacific and Alexon
were deemed to be interested in 664,677,468 shares of the Company.

3. Mr. Chan Ting Chuen (“Mr. Chan”) was directly interested in 3,750,000
shares of the Company. Royal Pacific was wholly-owned by TC Chan Family
Holdings Limited (“TCCFHL"), which in turn was wholly-owned by Mr. Chan.
Accordingly, Mr. Chan was deemed to be interested in 668,427,468 shares of
the Company.

4. Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony (“Mr. Sze") was interested in the entire issued share
capital of Alexon and was therefore deemed to be interested in 664,677,468
shares of the Company.

5. Mr. Shum Pui Kay was directly interested in 10,000,000 shares of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above and in the section “Share Option
Schemes”, none of the directors, chief executives nor their
associates had any interest or short position in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2014.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE OR REDEEM
SHARES

Save as disclosed under “Share Option Schemes” above, at no
time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. In
addition, the Company has not redeemed any of its shares during
the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the margin financing arrangement as disclosed under the
heading of “Continuing Connected Transactions” from page 49 to
page 51 of the annual report, no Director had a material interest in,
either directly or indirectly, any contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party subsisting during or
at the end of the financial year under review.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or their respective close associates has any
competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at
31 December 2014, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests and short positions in the issued
share capital of the Company:

(1) LONG POSITIONS
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each of the Company

Directors’ Report
SERS

EFENEESHNER

BRAFEREFIOEEFESIA [HEBER
1 ZEBTRE 2 RESBE LTI BE
ESERAMBERAR A HEEMNERREF
NEHECBEFRAFI LS AEBEBMEES
AZEBENTEREEAEHR-

EFNRENRGNER

NANBEERAZTANEEREA LT BT
ABFERBF BERELETRA EHRANE
8.I0MGMEAT HBEROME -

FERRE

RIEFE 7 L E R 5GP E33615R E AR B
FREIERRECMASE A REERRNV2014
FI2A3BHANARBDBETRAZ AR ER
KRBT :

(1) RE
AN A1 HR0. 105 TTHI AR 15

Number of issued ordinary shares held

ERTRHNE
Percentage of
the issued
share capital
Direct Deemed Total of the
Name of shareholder Notes ~ Capacity interests interests interests Company
5% 28
#iEAE BT
R=® 5 AR Ef#ER bikki 3 aEn  REEHHT
Cheng Tun Nei (“Mr. Cheng") 1 Interest of controlled corporation - 772,120,000 772,120,000 28.92%
BEREE ([H5E4E]) XEhE
Ms. Li Wa Hei (“Madam Li") 1 Spouse - 772,120,000 772,120,000 28.92%
FERLT [Fut]) [iRLE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

(1) LONG POSITIONS (CONTINUED)
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each of the Company

FERR (&)

(1) RE (&)
R B AR0.1078 T H) AR A7

Number of issued ordinary shares held

ERTRHEE
Percentage of
the issued
share capital
Direct Deemed Total of the
Name of shareholder Notes ~ Capacity interests interests interests Company
EEFATF
w85 BT
&% = EEED RAEEL BEL [iZN=1) 174
GoldSilk 1 Beneficial owner 772,120,000 - 772,120,000 28.92%
EEA
Frensham Investments Limited 5 Beneficial owner and interest of 62,999,572 664,677,468 727,677,040 27.26%
(“Frensham”) controlled corporation
XARREME
Pou Yuen Industrial (Holdings) Limited 5 Interest of controlled corporation - 727,677,040 727,677,040 27.26%
(“Pou Yuen") XEhE
EnIX(5ER)ARRA([Ex))
Yue Yuen Industrial Limited 5 Interest of controlled corporation - 727,677,040 727,677,040 27.26%
(“Yue Yuen Industrial”) TG E
WTIEERAR ([RTIZ])
Pou Hing Industrial Company Limited 5 Interest of controlled corporation - 727,677,040 727,677,040 27.26%
(“Pou Hing ) XEhE
Yue Yuen Industrial (Holdings) Limited 5 Interest of controlled corporation - 727,677,040 727,677,040 27.26%
(“Yue Yuen”) XEpg
Wil (EE)ABRAR([#871x))
Wealthplus Holdings Limited 5 Interest of controlled corporation - 727,677,040 727,677,040 27.26%
(“Wealthplus”) RHeE
Pou Chen Corporation (“Pou Chen”) 5 Interest of controlled corporation - 727,677,040 727 677,040 27.26%
ERIE(ER)ARAR ([EMK]) REME
Chan Ting Chuen (“Mr. Chan”) 3 Beneficial owner, and interest of 3,750,000 664,677,468 668,427,468 25.04%
BREEN ([BR%A£]) controlled corporation
X ARRELE
Ng Shuk Fong (“Madam Ng") 3 Spouse - 668,427,468 668,427,468 25.04%
RF ([Rzt]) it &
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

(1)

LONG POSITIONS (CONTINUED)

Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each of the Company
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FERR (&)

1) RE (&)

AR R AR0.107%8 JTH A A7

Number of issued ordinary shares held

ERTRHEE
Percentage of
the issued
share capital
Direct Deemed Total of the
Name of shareholder Notes ~ Capacity interests interests interests Company
52T
w5 BT
i = EEED REELS R [iZN=1)174
Well Success 2 Beneficial owner 664,677,468 - 664,677,468 24.90%
EEA
First Dynamic 2 Interest of controlled corporation - 664,677,468 664,677,468 24.90%
TEME
Royal Pacific 2 Interest of controlled corporation - 664,677,468 664,677,468 24.90%
REME
TC Chan Family Holdings Limited 3 Interest of controlled corporation - 664,677,468 664,677,468 24.90%
(“TCCFHL") XEhE
Alexon International Limited (“Alexon”) 2 Interest of controlled corporation - 664,677 468 664,677,468 24.90%
SEME
Sze Sun Sun Tony (“Mr. Sze") 4 Interest of controlled corporation - 664,677,468 664,677,468 24.90%
M ([EEE]) XEhE
Lau Yuk Wah (“Madam Lau”) 4 Spouse - 664,677,468 664,677,468 24.90%
%= ([2%t]) fif&
Notes: B &
1. Mr. Cheng owns the entire issued share capital of GoldSilk. As at 31 1. B 5 A 45 8 GoldSilk 2 5 B B 1T AR A © 720144

December 2014, GoldSilk was directly interested in 772,120,000
shares of the Company. Mr. Cheng was thus deemed to be interested
in 772,120,000 shares of the Company. Madam Li is the wife of Mr.
Cheng and she was also deemed to be interested in 772,120,000

shares of the Company.

2. As 31 December 2014, Well Success was directly interested in 2.
664,677,468 shares of the Company. First Dynamic held more than
one-third of the issued share capital of Well Success. Each of Royal
Pacific and Alexon held more than one-third of the issued share capital
of First Dynamic. Accordingly, First Dynamic, Royal Pacific and Alexon
were deemed to be interested in 664,677,468 shares of the Company.

12A31H ' GoldSilkE # #54772,120,00008 A 2
RIARLD o L - BBSE A4 AR AT A 772,120,000/%
RRBED - FTHTARNABNESTHLENE
Fo Bty FrEIMER AS H$545772,120,000
AR AR R BEAD ©

20144 12A31H » Well SuccessEEHFE
664,677,468% 2~ A BIfX {5 © First Dynamicts &
Well Successitl = 5 — E 21T % 4N - Royal Pacific
X Alexon? Bl First Dynamiciil = — B2 377
&7 o At » First Dynamic* Royal Pacific & Alexon
B R A1 5664,677 468K A N F D
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

(1) LONG POSITIONS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

Madam Ng is the wife of Mr. Chan, a director of the Company. Royal
Pacific is wholly-owned by TCCFHL, which in turn is wholly-owned
by Mr. Chan. As at 31 December 2014, Royal Pacific was deemed to
be interested in 664,677,468 shares of the Company (see Note 2),
therefore both Mr. Chan and Madam Ng were deemed to be interested
in 664,677,468 shares of the Company. Furthermore, Mr. Chan was
directly interested in 3,750,000 shares of the Company. Accordingly,
Madam Ng was deemed to be interested in a total of 668,427,468
shares of the Company.

Madam Lau is the wife of Mr. Sze, a director of the Company. As
at 31 December 2014, Mr. Sze was interested in the entire issued
share capital of Alexon, therefore he was deemed to be interested
in 664,677,468 shares of the Company (see Note 2). Accordingly,
Madam Lau was deemed to be interested in a total of 664,677,468
shares of the Company.

Frensham was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pou Yuen which in turn
was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yue Yuen Industrial. Yue Yuen
Industrial was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pou Hing which in turn
was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yue Yuen. Wealthplus, a wholly—
owned subsidiary of Pou Chen, held over one-third of the entire issued
share capital of Yue Yuen. As at 31 December 2014, Frensham held
more than one-third of the issued share capital of Well Success and
was therefore deemed to be interested in 664,677,468 shares of the
Company (see Note 2). In addition, Frensham had a direct interest in
62,999,572 shares of the Company. Accordingly, all of Frensham, Pou
Yuen, Yue Yuen Industrial, Pou Hing, Yue Yuen, Wealthplus and Pou
Chen were or deemed to be interested in 727,677,040 shares of the
Company.

(2) SHORT POSITIONS
The Company has not been notified of any other relevant
interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the

Company as at 31 December 2014.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors independent.
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MARKET INFORMATION

During the year, sales to the People’s Republic of China, Hong
Kong, Taiwan and other Asian countries comprised 94.2% (2013:
93.2%) of the total sales and the remaining 5.8% (2013: 6.8%)
was mainly shared between United States of America, other
European countries and South America.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
totalling approximately HKD82,000 (2013: HKD67,000).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s employee emolument policy is set up by the Board on
the basis of the merit, qualification and competence of the Group’s
employees.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are reviewed and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and decided by
the Board, as authorised by shareholders at the annual general
meeting, having regard to the operating results of the Company,
individual performance and prevailing market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee was set up in December 2005,
advising the Board on the emoluments of the directors and senior
management. The Company has adopted share option schemes
as incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
schemes are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws, or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 39 to 52 of
this Annual Report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by BDO Limited who
will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHAIRMAN
Cheng Tun Nei

Hong Kong, 18 March 2015
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company firmly believes in the value and importance
of achieving high standard of corporate governance through
transparency, as well as effective risk cum internal control.

With the merger and acquisition of new business segments,
the corporate governance system is prudently reviewed
and meticulously re-assessed, by the Board to ensure that
shareholders’ and stakeholders’ interests are safeguarded.

The Company has adopted and complied with the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (“CG Code”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2014, with deviation from the following.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors (“Non-
executive Directors”) should be appointed for a specific term
and are subject to re-election. Directors (including Non-executive
Directors) were not appointed for specific term but are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting in
accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company.

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent Non-executive and
other Non-executive Directors should attend general meetings.
On 11 June 2014, all independent Non-executive Directors
(“Independent Non-executive Directors”) attended the annual
general meeting, except the Non-executive Director who retired
from the Board on the same date.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board assumes leadership and control by providing overall
strategic direction. As at 31 December 2014, the Board consisted
of 10 Directors (including the Chairman of the Board), amongst
which 5 are executive Directors and remaining are Non-executive
Directors. Out of the 5 Non-executive Directors, 4 are independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Board diversity is achieved through a composition of members
coming from a variety of background, experience and skillsets.
The newly appointed directors, namely Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, Mr.
Liu, George Hong-chih and Mr. Chow Yu Chun, Alexander, further
enhanced the spectrum of the Board. Board appointments
has been and will be based on individual merit aiming at
complementing the skills and experience of the current Board as
a whole, taking into account gender, age, professional experience
and qualifications, education background.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive director (INEDs), an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all INEDs independent.

Under code provision A.4.3, further appointment of an
Independent non-executive director who serves more than 9
years should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved
by the shareholders. Mr. Ho Shing Chak has served as an INED
for more than 9 years. During his term of office, Mr. Ho continues
to demonstrate his independence through impartial judgment
during the performance of his duty. A separate resolution will thus
be proposed for his re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The positions of the Chairman Mr. Cheng Tun Nei and the
Managing Director Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony (being defined as Chief
Executive Officer in the CG Code) are held separately. While the
Chairman of the Board provides leadership and management of
the Board, the Managing Director concentrates his efforts on day
to day management of the business. Checks and balances are
achieved through this segregation of duties.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing business strategy and managing day-to-
day administration and operations of the Group’s business to
the Managing Director, Chief Operating Officer and the senior
management. While allowing management with substantial
autonomy to run and develop the business, the Board is proactive
in reviewing the results of the delegated functions and work tasks.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Company provides continuous professional development
(“CPD”) training and relevant materials to Directors to help ensure
that they are kept abreast of the latest changes in the commercial,
legal and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its
business and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director. In addition,
attendance at external forums of briefing session also counts
toward CPD training.
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CPD programme* Attending
Name HEEREN seminars
BE=E HREEE LB
Executive Directors BITES
Cheng Tun Nei! B EE! v
Sze Sun Sun Tony? ik oiEcie v
Chan Ting Chuen? BREE)II3 v
Chang Tsung Yuan* o JE R v
Chen Fang Mei S v
Chan Kar Lee Gary® Bk 5= #1)° v
Non-executive Director BITES
Li | Nan® FHRH 4 v
Liu George Hong-chih® B35 56 v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITES
Cheng Kar Shing’ BPZR AK7 4 v
Ho Shing Chak fa] X 2 v 4
Shum Pui Kay I E v
Wah Wang Kei Jackie BN v v
Chow Yu Chun Alexander® B & v v
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Cheng Tun Nei was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
on 15 December 2014 and designated as Chairman of the Company on 23
December 2014.

Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony retired as Deputy Chairman of the Company on 23
December 2014.

Mr. Chan Ting Chuen retired as an Executive Director of the Company on 28
February 2015.

On 11 June 2014, Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan and Mr. Li | Nan retired as Executive
Director and Non-executive Director of the Company at the Annual General
Meeting on 11 June 2014 respectively.

Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
on 2 January 2014.

Mr. Liu George Hong-chih was appointed as Non-executive Director of the
Company on 20 August 2014.

Mr. Cheng Kar Shing resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 15 December 2014.

Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander was appointed as Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 15 December 2014.

including: briefings from business units, regular information updates, reading
materials relating to regulatory updates, business visits.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

All Directors have full, timely and direct access to the services and

advice from company secretary of the Company.

During the year, the Board conducted 6 meetings, attendance of

the Directors at the board meetings and general meetings is set out

as follows:—

Name

S
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Number of meetings
attended/eligible to attend
HE SR HBEERZRE

Annual Extraordinary

Board General General
Meetings Meeting Meeting
EEE RRAFEXE RERIXE

Executive Directors
Cheng Tun Neit
Sze Sun Sun Tony?
Chan Ting Chuen?®
Chang Tsung Yuan*
Chen Fang Mei
Chan Kar Lee Gary®

Non-executive Directors
Li | Nan*
Liu George Hong-chih®

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheng Kar Shing’

Ho Shing Chak

Shum Pui Kay

Wah Wang Kei Jackie
Chow Yu Chun Alexander®

PTES
HEE!
iakiik:ie
BREE)II°
SR RO
EPFES
BR 22 A)°

ERTES
FHH
B350

BIEBITES
B AKX
{Al A
LI E
AT &S

171 N/A N/A
6/6 171 171
4/6 171 171
02 N/A N/A
6/6 11 171
6/6 171 01
2/2 N/A N/A
3/3 N/A 171
1/4 171 171
0/6 171 171
6/6 171 171
5/6 171 01
171 N/A N/A

MESEEBRRASE 204FERS ‘



Corporate Governance Report
EXREIBWRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

1 Mr. Cheng Tun Nei was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
on 15 December 2014 and designated as Chairman of the Company on 23
December 2014. He attended one Board meeting after his appointment.

2 Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony retired as Deputy Chairman of the Company on 23
December 2014.

3 Mr. Chan Ting Chuen retired as an Executive Director of the Company on 28
February 2015.

4 On 11 June 2014, Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan and Mr. Li | Nan retired as Executive
Director and Non-executive Director of the Company at the Annual General
Meeting on 11 June 2014 respectively. Two Board meetings were held during
the period of their appointments.

5 Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
on 2 January 2014.

6 Mr. Liu George Hong-chih was appointed as Non-executive Director of the
Company on 20 August 2014. Three Board meetings were held after his
appointment.

7 Mr. Cheng Kar Shing resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company on 15 December 2014 and four Board meetings were held
during the period of his appointment.

8 Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander was appointed as Non-executive Director of the
Company on 15 December 2014. He attended one Board meeting after his
appointment.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chow So Ying Anna, the company secretary of the Company, is
a full time employee of the Group. She reports to the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company. She has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. Her biographical details are set out on page 22 of the
annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) was set up for the purpose of advising the Board on
and reviewing the remuneration policy and other remuneration
related matters for all Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee assesses the performance and approves
the terms of the service contracts (if any) of executive Directors.

MEMBERS OF REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Ho Shing Chak (Chairman)

Mr. Shum Pui Kay

Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Remuneration package is performance-based and the
recommended remuneration package includes salaries, bonuses
and share incentive scheme. During the year under review, the
Remuneration Committee met and considered the packages of
the executive Directors. They recommended to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors were
fair and reasonable, taking into account business performance,
market practices and competitive market conditions. Non-executive
Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly represent their
efforts and time dedicated to the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”)
was established with specific written terms of reference. The
Audit Committee oversees the audit process and provides an
independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process and the internal control procedures.

MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Ho Shing Chak (Chairman)

Mr. Liu George Hong-chih

Mr. Shum Pui Kay

Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee
reviewed with the external auditor and senior management the
annual results of the Group as well as the accounting principles
and practices being adopted and financial reporting matters.
Our Chief Financial Officer, senior management and the external
auditor attended the meetings to respond to any queries raised by
the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”), consisting of 3 INEDs, was established with specific
written terms of reference. It is responsible for advising the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive.

MEMBERS OF NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Ho Shing Chak (Chairman)

Mr. Shum Pui Kay

Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie
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BOARD/COMMITTEES MEETINGS AND
MINUTES

During the year under review, management provided appropriate
and sufficient information to the Directors and Board members in
a timely manner to keep them abreast of the latest developments
of the Company to discharge their responsibilities. The attendance
of individual members of the Board and other Board Committees
meetings during the financial year ended 31 December 2014 is set
out in the table below:

ESE TEEERREHRLH

RACEFE ERECERANESREE SN

ERFEFEETEER FEEHRERAAAN

BATEERUBITASNEE - #8(22014F12 431

HEMBFE SEFGRAMEZEGRENT
AT R

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Directors Committee Committee Committee
BES BREEY HFWNEEE REEEE
Non-executive Director FPITES
Li | Nan 5 1/1 N/A N/A
Independent Non-executive Directors BILFEHITES
Cheng Kar Shing BB K 172 2/2 N/A
Ho Shing Chak Al Ak 2 2/2 2/2 2/2
Shum Pui Kay L A 2/2 1/2 N/A
Wah Wang Kei Jackie BN N/A N/A 2/2

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committees meetings
have been recorded in sufficient detail. Draft and final versions of
minutes of the Board and other Board Committees were sent to
all Directors or Committees members for comments and records
within a reasonable time after the meeting.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

A Nomination Committee was established in March 2012 which
is chaired by an independent non-executive director and consists
of all independent non-executive directors. Matters relating to
the structure, size and composition of the Board was considered.
Appointments, resignations and removals of Directors and the
succession plan are subject to the approval of the Board.

Under the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors (including INEDs)
must retire, from office by rotation and every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election at each annual
general meeting. Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony (“Mr. Sze”), Ms. Chen
Fang Mei (“Ms. Chen”) and Mr. Ho Shing Chak (“Mr. Ho") will
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Details of the biographies of Mr. Sze, Ms. Chen and Mr.
Ho are set out in the circular to be sent to the shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, INTERNAL
CONTROL, GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility of the Group’s system of
internal control, corporate governance compliance and assessment
and management of risks. Procedures are designed to identify and
manage risks that might adversely impact the Group’s business
operations. Through the establishment of policies and internal
guidelines such as the approval of detailed operational and
financial reports, budgets and plans provided by the management
of the business operations; periodic review of actual results
against budget or forecast; annual review by the Audit Committee
of the ongoing work of the Group’s internal audit and risk
management functions. Inhouse code for the approval and control
of expenditures are established jointly by finance and operating
units. On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee reviews on a
regular basis the corporate governance structure and practices
within the Group and monitors compliance on an ongoing basis. It
also reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the internal control
systems to ensure its sufficiency. Appropriate insurance policy has
been arranged to transfer the financial impact of risks. Directors
and Officers’ Liability Insurance is also in place to protect directors
and officers of the Group against their potential legal liabilities.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

A summary of remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, BDO Limited, for audit services and non-audit services
for the financial years ended 31 December 2014 is as follows:

12 2B B =

BZE2014F12A31H IENHFRE - [T AR A
B R AR EERERMEBAER AR
PR eV B IR RIEE RGBS 4246 I
T

2014
HKD’000
THET

Nature of services R M E
Audit services EET RS 1,630
Other services E AR 688

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, each of them confirmed his/her compliance
with the required standard set out in the Model Code for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014 which give a true and fair view of the state of
financial affairs of the Company.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

To maintain and promote better and effective control within the
Group, the Directors have reviewed the soundness, adequacy
and application of accounting, financial and other controls of the
Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

MARGIN FINANCING ARRANGEMENT

China Rise Securities Asset Management Company Limited
(“CRSAMCL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary within the Group,
entered into the margin financing agreements with each of the

following clients (“Connected Clients”) each of which is now a

connected person of the Company (as disclosed in the Company’s

announcement dated 21 April, 2015): —

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

margin financing agreement dated 5 October 2009 with
Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, who became a connected person when
he became a substantial shareholder of the Company on
30th April 2014, for a facility of HK$8,000,000, subsequently
increased to HK$10,000,000. At one point after CRSAM
became a subsidiary of the Company the utilisation of this
facility peaked at HK$10,130,000;

margin financing agreement dated 7 October 2014 with
Goldsilk Capital Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, ultimately controlled by Mr. Cheng, effective from
15th September 2014 increased from HK$1,000,000 to
HK$5,000,000 on 7 January 2015;

margin financing agreements dated 11 December 2009 and
11 June 2010 with Mr. Lee Cheung Ming who became a
connected person of the Company when he was appointed a
director of a subsidiary of the Company on 23rd December
2014 for a facility which was increased from HK$2,000,000
to HK$8,000,000 on 24 December 2014,

margin financing agreement dated 8 September 2009 with
Mr. Wat Hin Pong, who became a connected person of the
Company when he was appointed a director of a subsidiary
of the Company on 16th May 2014 for a facility that was
increased from HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,500,000 on 24
October 2014 and subsequently from HK$2,500,000 to
HK$5,000,000 on 23 January 2015.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

MARGIN FINANCING ARRANGEMENT (CONTINUED)
The amounts of the facilities referred to above represent the
maximum outstanding balances, including accrued outstanding
interest of the facility.

The reasons for granting the facilities and allowing the continuing
facilities to remain in place are to generate business for the Group’s
benefits which are expected to accrue to the Company including
increased turnover and profit from the facilities. The directors
(including the independent non-executive directors) believe that
the facilities were and the continuing facilities are in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group. Terms of the facilities
were and those of the continuing facilities are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders as a whole.

The interest income from 1st May 2014 to 31st December 2014 is
HK$234,079.62. The terms and rates of the margin financing are
in line with the rates offered by CRSAMCL to other independent
clients. The margin financing facilities are repayable on demand
and secured by charges over listed securities held by the
respective Connected Clients.

After the completion on 30th April 2014 of the acquisition of Jin
Dragon Holdings Limited, the parent of CRSAMCL, the Connected
Clients became connected persons of the Company (as defined
in the Listing Rules) as they became directors or substantial
shareholders of the Group. The granting of the facilities by the
Company under the margin financing arrangements constituted
continuing connected transactions relating to financial assistance
for the Company under the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

MARGIN FINANCING ARRANGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions of the Company
have been reviewed by the INEDs. The INEDs have confirmed that
the continuing connected transactions have been entered into: —

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms; and

(c) in accordance with relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

These facilities were not disclosed by the Company in accordance
with Listing Rules 14A.35 and 14A.60(1) of the Listing Rules
due to an oversight on the part of the Company which thereby
inadvertently breached the Listing Rules. The Stock Exchange has
advised the Company that it reserves its rights in respect of this
inadvertent breach of the Listing Rules.

The Company will re-comply with the announcement, reporting
and shareholders’ approval requirements (if applicable) for the
continuing facilities if and when that is required under the Listing
Rules.

BDO Limited, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. BDO Limited has issued
its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
by the Group in accordance with Listing Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXREIBWRS

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an effective
two-way communication with its stakeholders. Designated
members of the management meet with research analysts and
institutional investors on an on-going basis providing them with
the latest and comprehensive information about the corporate
developments of the Group. In addition, stakeholders can click into
the Company’s website (www.symphonyholdings.com) to obtain
updated information in a timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting in the
following manner:

Shareholders holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the voting rights at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written request to
the Board or the company’s secretary, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such written request.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2014.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

IBDO

EEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{5E : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

18 X1 1% 248 ¥k &

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Symphony Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 55 to 220, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies
Act of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B %SNS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Shiu Hong NG

Practising Certificate Number: P03752

Hong Kong, 18 March 2015

54 Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

BREETSE (8)

BS RAITRRF ANERA BRE M BERRAE
TRABEENNEREE - MERNREFIUA
RIZBEN R H G - 23T AR ERME
iAW HRAR TR AR RR - £57F
MR EFERE  ZHMHEEEZARRENEE
251 ¥R & B 75 R ARRE RO M BB BRI - LA
RETHERBRABRENBRRER BAIEHZ
RAMAREEAERRER - BRI BEE
EEMEMN SRR A BTN EHR S
TR RN U RFFERE P RRAERETS
HI e

AZBEEE RACERZTREEN SR
ERERMNBRERIEHER-

R

TIZEENR A iR E MBS HRRERIBER BT
HELEEMAFHRE Rk BE5E
M2014F12 A31HME BN R EXBEEZ
HIEFERGBFHERESRE WERRBES (Q
ARG MBBERZBRER -

BRI EEREMEERERAT
-]

Ik R

2B E G P03752

&6 201553 H18H



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
uTD@E”&

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 12831 H L F &

2014 2013
Notes HKD'000 HKD'000
o= F#T TR
(Restated)
(BEF)
Continuing operations HECEER
Revenue ERE 5 263,831 219,165
Cost of sales SHERA (106,670) (126,531)
Gross profit EH 157,161 92,634
Other income and gains H A K g 8(a) 74,329 54,077
Distribution and selling expenses DR EERY (96,509) (100,635)
Administrative expenses TR (178,878) (168,719)
Finance costs BMEK AR 6 (5,599) (8,516)
Other expenses Hipp > 8(b) (7,529) (27,268)
Increase in fair value of investment properties Txé%%’&zﬂ LR 27,973 4,500
Share of results of joint ventures HEEhEREE (1,479) (33,606)
Loss before income tax credit BRETSHELAIER (30,531) (187,533)
Income tax credit FTiSRiE & 7 2,133 2,079
Loss for the year from continuing operations RABECEEL Y
FEER 8(c) (28,398) (185,454)
Discontinued operations BRIEEEERE
Profit for the year from discontinued REERIEREEBK FE
operations, after tax wA (BRBE) 8(d) 28,604 176,870
Profit/(loss) for the year FERFH, (EE) 206 (8,584)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax Hit2EWA  BRBE
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: TeEHHEEEEMIER
Surplus arising on revaluation of properties MEBMAES 2B 26,191 12,325
Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation Y Bk PTEE 2 IRIT
of properties BMIBAE (2,454) 262
23,737 12,587
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently HEBesmnBEEnt
to profit or loss: BH:
Fair value (loss)/gain on available-for-sale AHEERERT(EE
investments (B1B) W= (14,749) 39
Release of investments revaluation reserve RO 6 A S I R B
to profit or loss upon disposal of EEEERIEE
available-for-sale investments EXRY - (45)
Translation reserves released to profit or RIEEN B A RIE L #E
loss on disposal of subsidiaries 1B 2 I LR - (84,010)
Translation reserve release to profit or RHES ERERBEE
loss on disposal of joint ventures 1B B 1,430 =
Exchange differences arising on translation of BEBINEHAEEN
foreign operations EHEE (38,510) 37,195
Share of other comprehensive income of EEELEZEMZEBA
joint ventures (500) (1,520)
(52,329) (48,341)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax ~ FEHMEERA - BFiE (28,592) (35,754)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REEBHER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

2014 2013
Notes HKD'000 HKD'000
BT & FH#ERT FHT
(Restated)
(B&E%)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZERABE (28,386) (44,338)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: EIEEERF,/ (BE) :
Owners of the Company Vi/NGIE7 Y EWN
Loss for the year from continuing operations RERELEEB 2
FEBR (9,509) (161,416)
Profit for the year from discontinued REBRIELEET
operations F [ F 28,604 176,870
Profit for the year attributable to owners RARRE NEGED RN
of the Company 19,095 15,454
Non-controlling interests FEIE R RE o
Loss for the year from continuing operations REREREEB 2
FEBR (18,889) (24,038)
Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling R (LS B
interests (18,889) (24,038)
206 (8,584)
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FEE2EBA B :
Owners of the Company ZAUNETEZZ DN (3,731) (31,790)
Non-controlling interests ELF g (24,655) (12,548)
(28,386) (44,338)
Earnings/(loss) per share BRER, (&EE) 11
Basic and diluted (HK cents) ERRISHEE (EW)
From continuing and discontinued operations REREREREKLE
IREETS 0.81 1.05
From continuing operations RERFELEET (0.40) (10.94)

56 Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
EOMBEIRRE

As at 31 December 2014 12014512 /531H

2014 2013
Notes HKD'000 HKD'000
= FH#ET FHBT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L EN NG 12 530,599 514,283
Investment properties HEME 13 1,305,717 729,233
Prepaid lease payments BRI HEERIE 14 277,346 292,590
Intangible assets B EE 15 210,545 209,916
Interests in joint ventures REME I ER 16 24,662 35,369
Available-for-sale investments A HEERE 17 44,888 =
Goodwill B 18 35,590 —
Deferred tax assets ERERIAEE 27 45,699 23,207
Tax recoverable FERTHIA 52,314 52,314
Club debentures S HES 2,326 2326
Restricted bank deposit SR HRITER 25(a) 3,743 3,843
Statutory deposits for financial services business T BRI XS REEF K 200 =
2,533,629 1,863,081
Current assets MEEE
Inventories & 19 41,785 25,120
Amounts due from joint ventures e & &b FRIE 16 = 84,128
Trade and other receivables Z 5 N E fth e WBR X 20 116,579 104,757
Advances to customers in margin financing RETRESHERP
2B 21 50,344 -
Loans receivable et & X 22 143,006 =
Prepaid lease payments BNHEERA 14 7,420 7,618
Trading securities BEES 24 9,545 =
Restricted bank deposit PR HISR1T I 3K 25(a) 1,573 =
Pledged bank deposit SEBRITER 25(b) = 57,641
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRIRE
— held on behalf of customers -REFEFE 25(c) 22,173 =
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR RS 25(d) 562,362 823,257
954,787 1,102,521
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMEMERR 26 295,688 287,862
Amounts due to joint ventures BN A&t ERE 16 26,427 44,934
Bank borrowings RITER 28 465,336 379,383
Tax payable FE IR 47,192 41,109
834,643 753,288
Net current assets MEEEFE 120,144 349,233
Total assets less current liabilities BERERRDER 2,653,773 2,212,314

YEBBRAS 2014FEE RS 57



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
GEUBARE

As at 31 December 2014 72014412 531H

2014 2013
Notes HKD’000 HKD'000
B st TF#T FHET

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Obligations arising from a joint venture BEGCEELEZEM 16 = 64,859
Loan from non-controlling interests REFEEREZER 43 153,254 -
Deferred tax liabilities RLERIEAE 27 88,776 85,913
242,030 150,772
2,411,743 2,061,542

Equity G

Share capital N 29 266,952 210,369
Reserves e 1,921,275 1,578,480
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RRBEB AELED 2,188,227 1,788,849
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR 2 223,516 272,693
2,411,743 2,061,542

The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 220 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 18 March 2015
and are signed on its behalf by:

CHENG Tun Nei
wER

Director

EFE
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Statement of Financial Position

B S AR R =
As at 31 December 2014 12014512 /531H
2014 2013
Notes HKD'000 HKD'000
B &E F#T FHET
Non-current assets EMBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB AR 2R E 42 988 988
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E ] 42 2,263,500 1,679,336
2,264,488 1,680,324
Current assets MBI EE
Other receivables H e U AR 5K 20 2,284 1,637
Bank balances and cash IRTHEB KRS 331,197 627,563
333,481 629,200
Current liabilities mEEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE 1 Bt B 2 B 5008 42 90,633 279,661
Other payables H e ER K 26 710 956
Bank borrowings BITEE 28 465,336 271,383
556,679 552,000
Net current (liabilities)/assets nE(AfE) BERE (223,198) 77,200
Net assets BEEFE 2,041,290 1,757,524
Equity Tz
Share capital [N 29 266,952 210,369
Reserves G 39 1,774,338 1,547,155
2,041,290 1,757,524

The financial statements on pages 55 to 220 were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board on 18 March 2015 and are

signed on its behalf by:

CHENG Tun Nei
mER

Director

EFE

HNFESEFE220ENNBRRVARARES
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EEAREE"

SZE Sun Sun Tony
it 0

Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mOEREAR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H IEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHANEL
Properties  Investments Share Non-
Share  Contributed Share revaluation  revaluation options  Translation  Retained controlling
capital surplus ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
WEEfR REEf R Fik
kx E&RR RHGE it it fE  EREE BHEN @t {34 @t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
THE GROUP 350 T T T T T FHT Tin Ti#r T T T
At 1 January 2013 2013517418 130,304 523213 362,735 115,609 6 - 115,125 243996 1491483 3198% 1,811,384
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - = = - 15,454 15454 (24,038) (8,584)
Surplus arising on revaluation of ~ WIEERAEEZ
properties B = - - 9,279 - - - - 9,279 3,046 12,325
Deferred tax liability arising on NEEGREEL
revaluation of properties BREHEAE - - - 262 - - - - 262 - 262
Fair value gain on available-forsale At HEREATE
investments ElE - - - - 39 - - - 39 - 39
Release to proft o loss upon REEFHREE
disposal of available-for-sale BERENZER
investments - - - - (45) - = = (45) = (45)
Exchange differences arisingon ~~ BSNERFIELH
translation of foreign operations ERMEER - - = = = = 28,751 = 28,751 8444 37,19
Share of other comprehensive EEEREL
income of joint ventures 2AKA - - - - - - (1,520) - (1,520) - (1,520)
Reserve released upon disposal of it & Kt B 2 76
subsidiaries BRkEE - - - - - = (84,010) - (84,010) - (84,010)
Other comprehensive income FEEMEARA
for the year - - - 9,541 (6) = (66,779) - (47,244) 11,490 (35,754)
Total comprehensive income FERARALE
for the year - - - 9,541 (6) = (56,779) 15,454 (31,790) (12,548) (44,338)
Share-based payments IR 2 - - - - - 6,387 - - 6,387 = 6,387
Exercise of share options (Note 30)  17{E Bk
(KizE30) 815 - 3457 - = (966) - - 3,306 - 3,306
Issue of shares under placement BB EETRA
(Note 29) (H1329) 78,750 - 220,500 - - - - - 299,250 - 299,250
Share issue expenses B ETHEY = = (8,027) = - - - = (8,027) = (8,027)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44) ~ HEHBAE
(FitzEa4) = = - (3443) - - - 3443 - (4,636) (4,636)
Arising from de-registration ofa RSB AREL
subsidiary - - - - - - - - - (2,796) (2,796)
Dilution of non-controlling interest  AEEEE 2
upon capital injection by the Group  FFERIEZEE - - - = = = 8978 19,257 28235 (28235 -
Capital injection from non-controlling FEZ Rk 214
interests - - - - - - - - - 1,012 1,012
At 31 December 2013 2013124318 210,369 523,213 578,665 121,707 - 5421 67,324 282,150 1,788,849 272,693 2,061,542
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHANELS
Properties  Investments Share Non-
Share  Contributed Share revaluation  revaluation options  Translation  Retained controlling
capital surplus  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
WEEfR REEf Rl FER
k& E&RR RHGE -1 it fE  EREE BHEN @t {34 @t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
THE GROUP 350 T T T T T FHET FHT FET Fi#x T T
At 1 January 2014 2014417818 210,369 523,213 578,665 121,707 - 5,421 67,324 282,150 1,788,849 272,693 2,061,542
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - - = 19,095 19,095 (18,889) 206
Surplus arising on revaluation NESHEMEEL
of properties B = - - 23121 - - - - 23121 3,070 26,191
Deferred tax liability arising on NEERMEEZ
revaluation of properties EEHBEARE - - - (2,454) - - - = (2,454) - (2,454)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale  AJ 35 & 124
investments AT EBEER = = - - (14749 - - - (14,749 - (14749)
Exchange differences arisingon B INETSFTEER)
translation of foreign operations EREZR - - - - - - (29,674) - (29,674) (8836)  (38510)
Share of other comprehensive income & & (%
of joint ventures Hip2EKA - - - - - - (500) - (500) - (500)
Reserve released upon disposal of ~ HEAZ A EE
joint ventures BRRER - - - - = = 1,430 = 1430 = 1430
Other comprehensive income FEEMZAKA
for the year - - - 20,667 (14,749) = (28,744) = (22,826) (5,766) (28592)
Total comprehensive income FREZAMNER
for the year - - - 20,667 (14,749) = (28,744) 19,095 (3,731) (24,655) (28,386)
Share-based payments AR (7 3 A - - = - - 5483 - - 5483 - 5483
Share issue expenses B EITHX = - (455) - - = - - (455) = (455)
Exercise of share options (Note 30) 17 {EEa Ak
(HizE30) 4,457 - 18903 - - (5,290) - - 18,070 - 18,070
Lapse of share options BRELR - - - - - (644) - 644 - - -
Issue of shares as consideration for - Z/TR {3 fEA
acquisition of subsidiaries U615} N A
(Note 29) ISEGEZ)) 52,126 - 32788 - - - - - 380011 - 380011
Acquisition of non-controlling Li¢ Eiv I
interests - - - - - - - - - (30,931) (30,931)
Disposal of non-controlling interests {1 & FFZ BUE - - = = = = = = = 6,409 6,409
At 31 December 2014 A0MEIRA3IA 266952 523213 94998 12374 (14749) 4970 3580 301889 218827 223,516 2411743
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEIRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H IEFE

2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
FH#ET FHBT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HETE
Loss before income tax expenses: BRETST A 2 Al < 18
From continuing operations REFEREEER (30,531) (187,533)
From discontinued operations RE BRI EET 28,604 180,933
Adjustments for: FHEE
Interest income FEMA (14,359) (6,891)
Finance costs BB KA 5,599 9,951
Share of results of joint ventures EEEEXE 1,479 33,606
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M WEREETE 36,190 46,629
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T E IR H 7,490 7,215
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE BELRREBE 25 17,720
Write off of property, plant and equipment Y - BE BER EER 3,024 1,609
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—&=rEN= (17,300) (11,054)
Reserve released on disposal of joint ventures HE S & b ER TR 1,430 =
Gain on disposal of an investment property HE—REMEKZ - (180)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWNEB AR s = (123,441)
Bargain purchase gain arising on business combination EBRAHEEZZBERE NG (3,209) (12,992)
Fair value gain on re-measurement of equity interests EFFE—AERE I REL
in a joint venture ANEEEKGD (10,051) (5,159)
Fair value gain on trading securities BERS 2 ATEAEKR (345) -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and HEWE BB REENR
prepaid lease payment BNHEERBEYE - (75)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments & A S 1R 8 s - (45)
Increase in fair value of investment properties WEWENFEELM (27,973) (4,500)
Impairment of loans receivable EUE FURE = 3,102
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for inventories, net FERE,/ (HERER)F8 8,418 (11,811)
Reversal of fair value gain on a financial guarantee BRI A T EEREEE - (2,300)
(Reversal)/provision of allowance for bad and REEREE (L8) #BE
doubtful debts (111) 17,128
Share-based payments LA A7 2 1+ 5,483 6,387
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 2@ & & EFAINE LR LR (6,137) (41,701)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories & (#m),/m (17,069) 30,925
Decrease in amounts due from joint ventures G &b EFHIERD 4,128 5,146
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 25 REMBRERTRD
(350) 13,780 (150,707)
Increase in advances to customers in margin financing REFREEBERFZ
BIRIE N (29,090) -
Increase in loans receivable JRE Y & FR 3 N (73,006) -
Increase in bank balances and cash — held on behalf of RITAESR RIS LN
customers -REFHA (8,632) =
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables BHNREMEMNERCRD),/
#n (28,359) 29,079
Increase in trading securities BEEAEM (9,200) =
Cash used in operations AREE%ERIRE (153,585) (127,258)
Purchase of tax reserve certificates BEFI S - (6,900)
Overseas tax paid BRI (2,827) (638)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBFEH (1,547) (154)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES AREEFTBHIRLFE (157,959) (134,950)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GOIRENSER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

2014 2013
Notes HKD'000 HKD’000
B =E F#T FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired WEEH B ARl TR 2
& FEE 45 (29,540) (117,083)
Advance 1o a joint venture BRT—EEDLE - (80,000
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE WELEE (35,746) (62,646)
Purchase of investment properties BEREYHE - (91,321)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments IBEHEERE (59,637) -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale & A S S R A s
investments - 2,371
Increase in restricted bank deposit 2 PR B SR 1T 17 ZR 38 0 58 (114)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposit B IFIRITER D,
(3Z1n) 57,641 (105,200)
Interest received EEE RS 13,343 6,072
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEREEN
equipment & 6 100
Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture HEEEEENE 26,220 120,536
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HERBEYE WS - 9,680
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of HERBAR THEZ
REFEE 44 = 434,131
NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES () KRB REEE
R&FHE (27,655) 116,526
FINANCING ACTIVITIES R EED
Proceeds from issue of new shares under placing BIRELE BTN 2
g =5 - 299,250
Proceeds from issue of new shares under share option 45 5 B8 A% #5123 17
scheme k(D 2 Wz 18,070 3,306
Share issue expenses R ETRX (455) (8,027)
New bank loans obtained EEHIBITER 485,591 441,559
Repayment of bank loans IRITEFEN (554,420) (381,148)
(Repayment to)/advance from joint ventures (BXKT)  ExEaE
T (18,507) 13,686
Capital injection from non-controlling interests RS 2 EE = 1,012
Interest paid =N (5,599) (9,951)
NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (F#) KRB RIE EED
R&F8E (75,320) 359,687
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH  IR&RIREZEY (iBL)
EQUIVALENTS V& V)b (260,934) 341,263
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF fE#R& RIS ZEY
YEAR 823,257 480,102
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE SMNEEEEBHHIFASR
CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HeEEYZRE 39 1,892
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR, E#RIR&RIVSLEFY-
REPRESENTED BY BANK BALANCES AND CASH BERITHEMR RIRE 562,362 823,257

HeREBRASE 2014FERE
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GENERAL

Symphony Holdings Limited was incorporated in Bermuda
as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The address of the registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and the principal
place of business of the Company is located on the 10th
Floor of Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road, North Point,
Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group obtained control of Jin Dragon
Holdings Limited (“Jin Dragon”) by acquiring its entire equity
interest. The principal activity of Jin Dragon is provision of
financial services including securities brokerage, margin
financing, underwriting and placing, consulting and money
lending.

During the year, the Group obtained control of Trillion Earning
Limited (“Trillion Earning”) by acquiring its entire equity
interest. The principal activity of Trillion Earning is property
investment.

The other principal activities of the Group remain to be
property investment and holding, management and operation
of outlet mall in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"),
trademark rights licensing and trading and retailing.

Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31 8 It FE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. REWEFEBUBREER ([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") MFiREEE])
(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs — (A) IREMENRT EIEFTEEMBRE
EFFECTIVE 1 JANUARY 2014 #2H-A2014F1A 184X
The Group has adopted the following amendments and REEBRAFERNGE U B®RETE
interpretation for the first time for the current year's KR TINEE] R tE o

consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and AL EAERTN RHEREERERERE
Financial Liabilities EHE
Amendments to Investment entities BEMBREEN  REEE
HKFRS 10, F10% - FANH
HKFRS 12 and REEREIE R
HKAS 27 (2011) FA GRS
EAFMETR
(2011%)
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and BB ERERN TETANEE REes
Continuation of Hedge Accounting EHE ENEE
HK (IFRIC) 21 Levies B (BRNBHRE  HH
REZE®)FUR
Except as explained below, the adoption of these Br T CFrai BRE IN  IRANEZ H 18 5] &k
amendments and interpretation has no material impact ZESITHAEENGE P BHRE
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. EREMERTE -

HEREBRAT 204FEHS ‘
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs -
EFFECTIVE 1 JANUARY 2014 (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by
adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies
when an entity “currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off” and when a gross settlement
mechanism is considered equivalent to net settlement.
The amendments are applied retrospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has an impact
on these financial statements as the Group has
offsetting arrangements with Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company in the current year. As a result, the
Group has included an additional disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements.

HK (IFRIC) 21 - Levies

HK (IFRIC) 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a
liability to pay a levy imposed by government when
the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the
relevant legislation, occurs.

The adoption of HK (IFRIC) 21 has no impact on these
financial statements as the interpretation is consistent
with the Group’s previous application of its accounting
policies on provisions.

‘ Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It FE

2. RNEEMBREERR ([FE
MRS EA]) (45)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN (B) EMEME M KREMBIT L&

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements 2010-2012

Cycle?

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements 2011-2013
Cycle!

HKFRSs (Amendments) ~ Annual Improvements 2012-2014
Cycle?

Amendments to HKAS 16  Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation®

Amendments to HKAS 27  Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements’

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture’
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions
occurring, on or after 1 July 2014

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

A ERMBREEL

VAT BRSO B 75 Sk R RE B R Y
el ERI BBV BRELAER
i - 1B i R A2 28 B AN 5 [ i R AR AR

ERMBREEN (BTX) 0105520126

AR e
BEMBREER (BFTR) 20115220135

B EE e
BRMBREER (BFIAR) 0126220145

BHROFERE

EREHERRIGRRER  RANEREHL
E.:Jrﬁﬁ‘l%%sfﬁ’]f HE AEINE
BEHENFRNETL BUMBHRD

BEE
BEMBREEAFIR SRIES

(2014%)

EANBRLENFINE REZEABRL

BAGTEAEBROBITA ARKAERA
ZHNEE
HEREN

BANBREENELH BEAHIE!

EREHEMRIRNETS REIPIW

1 R20144F7 A 1H 6.2 1 F 45 #9F /2 B fE]
E374

2 R20144F7 A 1H 6.2 1 B 45 79 F /2 2 ffT
BLHRGZ A3 F LMK ZEN

3 R2016%F1 A1 H 3.2 # 16 19 F Z A

4 R20174F1A1H 3.2 1% B4 #9F /2 HfE]
£

5 R2018%F 1 A1H 2.2 ## 16 19 F Z 2
£
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2.

68

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RpEEUBREER ([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B EER]) (8)

(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN (B) EMEMIEMKREMBIFT L&

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle, 201 1-
2013 Cycle and 2012-2014 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to a number of standards where they are
currently unclear. They include amendments to HKAS
16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” to clarify how the
gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation
are treated where an entity uses the revaluation
model. The carrying amount of the asset is restated
to revalued amount. The accumulated depreciation
may be eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset. Alternatively, the gross carrying amount
may be adjusted in a manner consistent with the
revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and
the accumulated depreciation is adjusted to equal the
difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount after taking into account accumulated
impairment losses.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 -
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of
a revenue-based depreciation method for items of
property, plant and equipment. The amendments to
HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
amortisation based on revenue is not appropriate for
intangible assets. This presumption can be rebutted if
either the intangible asset is expressed as a measure
of revenue or revenue and the consumption of the
economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated.

Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FNEEUBRREERN ([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AR R ZERAI]) (48)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN (B) EiEWE M KRENBIHFT E1E

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 27 — Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the
equity method in accounting for its investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its
separate financial statements.

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding (the
contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that
meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income if the objective of the entity’s business model
is both to hold and collect the contractual cash flows
and to sell the financial assets. Entities may make an
irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure
equity instruments that are not held for trading at fair
value through other comprehensive income. All other
debt and equity instruments are measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at fair
value through profit or loss replacing the incurred loss
model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge accounting
requirements to allow entities to better reflect their risk
management activities in financial statements.
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EEEGERFE27IETTH — BILR
BHREZ#E %

AZEERI AR ERN LB MR
RERERMBEAT &S0 N
ERAZRERAEREAR

L

BB B HERRIFEF (2014

¥) —2HMTR
BEMBREEANFIRSIEEHE
BEEDBERGTEZHER LXK
BABEMENSRFAEEAKRE
HREeREZEBITA (EBERA
)AL EBELERESREZ A KK
REERXNAERAEELSHE
ZEHBTA(RGHRSRFEAIR)
— IR B RN B o M BB XK
BAZ BOARE RIS HBRER
EURTESREE AFEAHNR
AR EB TARAFEE
JIAEM 2 EK GRS - BB AINK
VIR EH TR MEHER AT E
WIR A FEEIIAEMEEKEZ
FIFEEBEZRAT R -FREEMER
REART AR R FEEIABSG

E @

BEWEREER LRI IFIZ R
FEEINABRFEZHESREE
SEFRHAERAERER (RKE
BEFERE R EELBEE
) AR —RRETEERTE A
SERARPBRMRAE I RRE
B B IR EE

HLE@EEMRAD 204FEE RS 69



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 IR KA 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

70

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN
ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income unless that would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition,
HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It FE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FNEEUBRREERN ([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AR R ZERAI]) (48)
(CONTINUED)

(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN (B) EiEWE M KRENBIHFT E1E

ISSUED BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: |dentify the performance obligations in
the contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when each

performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.
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fr O B ¥5 HR R it 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(A)

(B)

©

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain properties and financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION
CURRENCY

The functional currency of the Company is United
States dollars, while the consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD”) for the convenience of the users of these
consolidated financial statements, as the Company is
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

‘ Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(A)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

74

(A)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration balances arising from
business combinations whose acquisition dates
preceded 1 January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group
first applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted
for in accordance with the transition requirements in
the standard. Such balances are not adjusted upon
first application of the standard. Subsequent revisions
to estimates of such consideration are treated as
adjustments to the cost of these business combinations
and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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B MR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(A)

(B)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr O B ¥5 HR R it 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(©

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where
there is a contractual arrangement that confers joint
control over the relevant activities of the arrangement
to the Group and at least one other party. Joint control
is assessed under the same principles as control over
subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements
as either:

° Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to
only the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

° Joint operations: where the Group has both the
rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities of
the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

The structure of the joint arrangement;

° The legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

° The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

° Any other facts and circumstances (including
any other contractual arrangements).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. EEEBTER (8)

(C) JOINT ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED) (C) HERHE(H)

The Group’s interests in joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method whereby they are initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount
are adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition change in the net assets of the joint
ventures. When the Group’s share of losses of a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interest in that joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that joint venture.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are recognised only to
the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the joint
ventures. The investor's share in the joint ventures’
profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the joint
ventures. Where unrealised losses provide evidence of
impairment of the asset transferred they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture
above the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the investment in that joint venture. Where
there is objective evidence that the investment in a joint
venture has been impaired, the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the same way as
other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests in joint operations
by recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses in accordance with its contractually
conferred rights and obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr O B ¥5 HR R it 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

78

(CONTINUED)

(D) GOODWILL

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests
over the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of
consideration paid, the excess is recognised in profit or
loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(E)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is net of
estimated customer returns, discounts and sales
related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfers
of risks and rewards of ownership, which is at the time
that goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Commission income is recognised when the services
on which the commissions are earned are provided in
accordance with the agreed terms.

Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis
in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements, which is in general on a straight-line basis
over the life of the agreements.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease, except for contingent rental income which is
recognised when it arises.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Brokerage commission is recognised on a trade date
basis when the relevant transactions are executed.

Underwriting fee and placing fee are recognised
as income in accordance with the terms of the
underwriting and placing agreements or deal
mandate when the relevant significant acts have been
completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr O B ¥5 HR R it 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

80

(F)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The building component of owner-occupied leasehold
properties is stated at valuation less accumulated
depreciation. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount
does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of the reporting
period. Increases in value arising on revaluation
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of properties
revaluation reserve. Decreases in value arising on
revaluation are first offset against increases on earlier
valuations in respect of the same property and
thereafter recognised in profit or loss. Any subsequent
increases are recognised in profit or loss up to the
amount previously charged and thereafter to the

properties revaluation reserve.

Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released from the properties revaluation reserve to
retained profits.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(F)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
or valuation of items of property, plant and equipment
less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of the reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

The annual depreciation rates of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Freehold land in Taiwan Nil
2% — 3%
Shorter of useful lives and

Leasehold land in Hong Kong
Buildings
the remaining lease term

Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful lives and

the remaining lease term
9% - 45%
9% - 20%
16% - 20%

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed
as evidenced by an end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
properties revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr O B ¥5 HR R it 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

82

(F)

(&)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceed and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

An item of property, plant and equipment is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if its
carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated
recoverable amount.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation, but not held
for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. These included land held for
future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair
value model, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at reporting date and their
fair value cannot be reliably determined at that time.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

If an investment property becomes an item of property,
plant and equipment because its use has changed as
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation,
the property’s deemed cost for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 M IR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(G)

(H)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the investment property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

84

(CONTINUED)

(H) LEASING (CONTINUED)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 M IR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(i)

(ii)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair
value at the date of acquisition. Subsequently,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

Trademarks

The trademarks have been granted for periods
ranging between 7 to 15 years by the relevant
government agency with the option of renewal
when expire. The trademarks may be renewed
indefinitely at little or no cost to the Group.
The Group intends to renew the trademarks
indefinitely and evidence support its ability to do
so. As a result, the trademarks are assessed as
having indefinite useful lives.

Impairments

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment annually by comparing
their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

86

a)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for exchange differences
arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period except for exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect
of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 M IR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKD) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that year,
in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity (translation reserve).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an assoicate
that includes a foreign operation, of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation
to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

88

(K) BORROWING COSTS

(L)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i)  Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

(i)  Defined contribution retirement plans
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

(iii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 M IR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(M)

INCOME TAX
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
income tax expense” as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affect neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

90

(M)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(M)

(N)

(0)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax (Continued)

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in measuring
deferred tax amount is when an investment property
is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment
Property”. Unless the presumption is rebutted, the
deferred tax amounts on these investment properties
are measured using the tax rates that would apply on
sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

CLUB DEBENTURES
Club debentures are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment loss.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

92

(P)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

(i)  Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at
initial recognition, depending on the purpose
for which the asset was acquired. The Group’s
financial assets are classified into the categories
of financial assets as fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(P)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for
trading. Financial assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments, of which
interest income is excluded in net gains or
losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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(P)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including amounts due from
joint ventures, trade and other receivables,
advances to customers in margin financing,
loans receivable and bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in investments revaluation reserve, until the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(P) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value
through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of that investment below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty;

° breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest and principal
payments;

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

96

(P)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such
as trade and loans receivables, assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 60 to 90 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade,
loans and other receivables and advances
to customers in margin financing, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade, loan or other
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(P)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed in profit or loss
in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investments revaluation
reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if
an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

98

(P)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(ii)  Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the

Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective

interest basis.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred, as liabilities measured at
amortised cost. They are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. ETESHER (8)

(P) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (P) &RTH (L)

(iii) Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

(Q) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the share options reserve within equity.
Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account
by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of each reporting period
so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions
are factored into the fair value of the options granted.
As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied,
a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

100

(CONTINUED)

(Q) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where
the fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case they are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the Group
obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the
services. The fair value of goods or services received is
recognised in profit or loss unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets. A corresponding
increase in equity is recognised. For cash-settled share
based payments, a liability is recognised for the goods
or services acquired, measured initially at the fair value
of the liability. At the end of each reporting period until
the liability is settled, and at the date of settlement,
the fair value of the liability is remeasured, with any
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(R)

IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS OTHER THAN GOODWILL

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
[f any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable
amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as revaluation decrease
under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
HKFRS.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

102

(S)

(T)

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which will probably result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants whose
primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred revenue in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(U) RELATED PARTIES

(i)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

° has control or joint control over the Group;

° has significant influence over the Group; or

° is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

° The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

° One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

o Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

o One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

o The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

° The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

° A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

104

(U) RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

V)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

° that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

° children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

° dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS (OR DISPOSAL
GROUPS) HELD FOR SALE AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded
as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is
available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for
sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is
highly probable. The non-current assets, except for
certain assets as explained below, or disposal groups,
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs of disposal. Deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits, financial assets (other
than investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures)
and investment properties, even if held for sale, would
continue to be measured in accordance with the
policies set out elsewhere in Note 4.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

V)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS (OR DISPOSAL
GROUPS) HELD FOR SALE AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)
A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographic area of operations, or
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented in the statement of
comprehensive income, which comprises the post-
tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation and the
post-tax gain or loss recognised in the measurement
to fair value less costs of disposal, or on the disposal,
of the assets or disposal groups constituting the
discontinued operation.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decision-maker,
being the Managing Director of the Company, for the purpose
of resources allocation and performance assessment focuses
specifically on the assessment of operating performance
in each operating unit, which is the basis upon which the
Group is organised. Each operating unit is distinguished
based on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
No operating segments identified by the chief operating
decision-maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group. Financial information on
segment results and segment assets are regularly provided
to the chief operating decision maker while no information of
segment liabilities is provided.

During the year, the Group obtained control of Jin Dragon
by acquiring its entire equity interest. The principal activities
of Jin Dragon are provision of financial services including
securities brokerage, margin financing, underwriting and
placing, consulting and money lending. The activities of
Jin Dragon have become a new reportable and operating
segment of the Group and are separately assessed by the
chief operating decision-maker.

On the other hand, the Group disposed of its footwear
manufacturing segment during the year ended 31 December
2013 which is presented as discontinued operations. The
segment information reported below does not include any
amounts for the discontinued operations, details of which are
set out in Note 8(d) below.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Group’s reportable and operating segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Continuing operations:
- Retailing and sourcing — retailing and provision of
sourcing services for branded apparel, swimwear and

accessories;

- Branding — development and management of “PONY”
brand;

- Property investment and holding;
- Outlet malls; and

- Financial services.

5.
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108

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

5. HBEH (&)
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(A) SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (A) SEREEBERES
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and AT 274 E Bz ] 3R o 2hH & 2
results by reportable segment: RNMEBE D
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HFE20145512A31HILLEE
Property
investment
Retailing and and Financial
sourcing Branding holding  Outlet malls services  Consolidated
MERE
TEARRE SRR REENE BSRER SRR &8
(Note)
(BEE)
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FiET FiET TR THET FHT FHET
REVENUE £
External sales HINHE 153,161 42,748 15,567 30,419 21,936 263,831
Inter-segment sales DEPEHE - - 716 - = 716
153,161 42,748 16,283 30,419 21,936 264,547
Segment (loss)/profit AE(EE) /EF 9,139 (5,406) 36,969 (58,970) 9,274 (8,994)
Unallocated income AABEWRA
— Interest income LN 14,359
— Gain on disposal of a joint venture —HE—AErEkR 17,300
— Fair value gain on re-measurement ~-BHAE—AE
of equity in a joint venture rEIREZ
AT EEKE 10,051
— Fair value gain on trading securiies ~ —EE&ZHZ
ATEEKE 345
— Bargain purchase gain arising —EBAHEEY
on business combination HEBENE 3,209
— Others —Eft 1,089
Central administrative costs FRITHPL A (66,411)
Share of results of joint ventures FREhEXE (1,479)
Loss before income tax credit WRETEHERRER (30,531)
Note: Bzt :
The revenue from outlet malls REFE D BARA
segment is analysed as follows: AT :
Gross revenue from concessionaire sales  H1%5 =F i 45 & AU A 207,990
Commission income from B TREENE
concessionaire sales iELON

30,419
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

5. HBEH (&)

(A) SMEXEFREE (H)

(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE2013F12A31B L FE
Retailing Property
and investment Outlet
sourcing Branding and holding malls  Consolidated
MERE R
TERRE iydiid FEmE RS A
(Note)
Cir3)
TAT FTHT TAT THET FTHT
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
(BEE3) (BE7)
(Restated) (Restated)
REVENUE EEH
External sales HIMHE 154,580 33,197 7,262 24,126 219,165
Segment (loss)/profit A (EE) /HF (19,661) (28,353) 4,300 (71,220) (114,934)
Unallocated income ADEHBA
— Interest income —F A 3,866
~ Gain on disposal of —HERHHE
available-for-sale K& W
investments 45
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — tH & i B A 71 7,351
— Gain on disposal of a joint —HE—4%
venture ERR 11,054
- Fair value gain on re- —EME—RE
measurement of equity in a rEZREL
joint venture NFEEKE 5159
— Bargain purchase gain arising  — %K AHEEZ
on business combination ZEEEKR 12,992
- Others —HEf 1,997
Central administrative costs RRITRA AR (81,457)
Share of results of joint ventures  [h& 2R E %4 (33,606)
Loss before income tax credit BRETET K R AR (187,533)
Note: Hrit
The revenue from outlet RAFHHT 2 BRI A
malls segment is analysed AW :
as follows:
Gross revenue from REETREE Y
concessionaire sales FLON 159,041
Commission income from REFTEHEHEZ
concessionaire sales T EALON 24,126
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. EPEH (&)
(A) SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (A) DMEXBERESE ()
(CONTINUED)
The accounting policies of the operating segments w5 R = AT IER 2R B Y kA FT A /9
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies AEBSHBR—R-2BHEF
described in Note 4. Segment profit/(loss) represents (B18) SO EEES B RITHEK
the profit earned or the loss incurred by each segment A RITABUA - HE R HEEK
without allocation of central administrative costs, bank Bz HENBRAR WS  HE—
interest income, gain on disposal of available-for-sale GEPENE BEERFCAFER
investments, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, gain on Wam BEFE—aEbEIREZ
disposal of a joint venture, fair value gain on trading AREBEKRE EBEEHELEZEE
securities, fair value gain on re-measurement of equity BEWZE MhE L EEETESH
in a joint venture, bargain purchase gain arising on BASFTELEREBE WHERTE
business combination and share of results of joint ZEERARENTE AADEER
ventures. This is the measure reported to the chief R H R
operating decision-maker for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment.
(B) SEGMENT ASSETS (B) HEBEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets by TREJRKEIZAREDHNEE
reportable segment: DT
Segment assets NEBEE
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFH#IT T
Retailing and sourcing T B ERER 90,092 65,746
Branding o hE HE E 230,095 235,904
Property investment and holding ES S-S e =R ES 1,487,023 896,267
Outlet malls B8 R 3 Hy 673,451 685,603
Financial services S AR 260,643 =
Total segment assets DEHEELE 2,741,304 1,883,520
Unallocated Ko 747,112 1,082,082
Consolidated assets HEEE 3,488,416 2,965,602

110
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(B) SEGMENT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

€

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments, all
assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than interests in joint ventures, available-for-sale
investments, trading securities, deferred tax assets,
tax recoverable, club debentures, amounts due from
joint ventures, restricted bank deposit, pledged bank
deposit and bank balances and cash.

5. HBEH (&)

(B) SEBEE (%)

RRERD BRRER D BEDEE
BBRRAEEEENES AIHEE
KE BEED BEEVBREE EER
I GfES BREEEEE -
XRHBITHER SERRITERR
RITERERSI MBEESRA
BERDHMEEDR

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (C) HipsrEp&EH
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HF2014F12A318 1L EE
Property
Retailing and investment Outlet Financial
sourcing Branding and holding malls services  Consolidated
MERER
TEARE R RAME B E SRR e
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000
TR TR TR FHET FHET TiET
Amounts included in the measure of FTAGEDE
segment profit/(loss) or segment il (B8) %D B
assets: BEMIER:
Capital expenditure (Note) BARS (M) 8,385 1,054 1,636 23,877 794 35,746
Depreciation of property, nE- BERXETE
plant and equipment 3,392 337 4,910 27,383 168 36,190
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T TA EF A 1 - - - 7,490 - 7,490
Increase in fair value of investment BEMEATEEEM
properties - - 27,973 - - 27,973
Reversal of allowance for bad and REREERE
doubtful debts - (111) - = - (111)
Provision of allowance for inventories, 7 & EHFEEE
net 8,418 - - - - 8,418
Interest income FBHA - - - - 7,958 7,958
Interest expense FIEAZ - - 5,575 = 24 5,599
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. HEREE (F)

(C) OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (C) HihmrEpEsl (48)
(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE2013F12A318 L FE
Property
Retailing and investment Outlet
sourcing Branding and holding malls  Consolidated
MERER
TEEFE iy diid BEmE BB e
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TABL BT FAET FET FHBT
Amounts included in the measure s AFtE2H
of segment profit/(loss) or smAl/ (B8)
segment assets: KA BEERMTE
Capital expenditure (Note) BAR (Hi5) 3,369 377 243,404 43,629 290,779
Depreciation of property, M BE k&
plant and equipment e 5,366 201 4,273 25,004 34,844
Amortisation of prepaid lease BNHEREE R
payments - - - 7,215 7,215
Increase in fair value of BREWEATER
investment properties 2 - - (4,500) - (4,500)
Provision/(reversal) of allowance ~ FZER (&
for bad and doubtful debts B/ (B&) - 17,978 (850) - 17,128
Provision/(reversal) of allowance 17 S5 1K /558
for inventories, net BB/ (D#) (14,354) 2,543 - - (11,811)
Interest expense M EFX = = 8,516 = 8,516
Note: Capital expenditure includes additions to property, plant and Hiet: BRI HEREYE BERRE
equipment and investment properties. RIREY 2o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(D) GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION
The Group’s revenue from external customers by
geographical location of the delivery destinations
and information about its non-current assets by
geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

5. HBEH (&)

(D) WEEH
AEEBINBEFHIKRSIZEXE D
it DB R EIERBDEEEHLE

EMELRDENFIBTOT

Revenue from Non-current assets

external customers located (Note (i)
BiERE R ERBEERAES (H70))
2014 2013 2014 2013
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TERT TET F#ET T
(restated)
(BE7I)
The People's Republic of China FE AR LA 190,067 179,303 1,670,948 1,144,793
Taiwan =y 1,609 = 7,565 =
Hong Kong B 29,406 6,800 479,300 399,076
United States of America E3E] 6,341 6,076 82,808 82,778
South America (Note (i) A% (Ha0) 3,331 5,449 = =
Other European countries (Note (7)) EMBUNBER (#7:2()) 452 741 = =
Other Asia countries (Note (i) Hi MR (i) 27,380 18,062 - =
Others (Note (i) Bt (M) 5,245 2,734 119,376 119,375
263,831 219,165 2,359,997 1,746,022
Notes: Hiat -
(i) The geographical information for the revenue attributed to (1) ERERE BB AL ES  HES

each counlry is not available and the cost to capture such
information would be excessive.

(i) Non-current assets exclude interests in joint ventures,
available-for-sale investments, deferred tax assets, tax
recoverable, club debentures and restricted bank deposit.

(ii)

Bl (EET 5 1 A B 1t 12 K

KRB EETEERE P20 T

RPERE EEPFREE [EEWE

BATE SRR FIIRIT 17
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. EPEH (&)
(E) INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS (E) EEEF&H
Revenue from customers of corresponding years REFEFEGAEEEEHETEI0%
contributing over 10% of total revenue of the Group are N EREFEHBALT :
as follows:
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET T T
Customer A (Note) BEA(K ) 29,238 N/A 3@ A3
No revenue from transactions with a single external HZE2013F12A31H ILF/E s
customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s BEIHEPHRZRALAEEE
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2013. EFER10%E A F o
Note:  Revenue from retailing and sourcing segment Hiet - KB FERIFIE D BFATMA
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BIERE
Group
AEH
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET FHT
Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable ~ T F ARBEEREIT
within five years BRAE 5,599 8,516

B 220144 K2013%F12H31B IEFE - B
BRITEFGSARERKEEGRNEH

All bank borrowings for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013 contain a repayment on demand clause.
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INCOME TAX CREDIT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr O B ¥5 HR R Ffd 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

7. FiRHiER

The amount of income tax credit relating to continuing FeEEEWEKRAS BRELEEZFRRT
operations in the consolidated statement of comprehensive SRR SRS

income represents:

Group
FEKEH
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
T FBT
Current tax AHABIE
Hong Kong B
— current year —AREE (898) -
— Over/(under) provision in prior years —EEFEBRE
BE/(BETR) 461 (193)
Other jurisdictions HA R AR
— Enterprise income tax — current year —hEMSH-—AFE (2,429) (2,232)
(2,866) (2,425)
Deferred tax (Note 27) EEBE (1 227)

— current year —REEF 4,999 4,504

Income tax credit TS & 2,133 2,079
HONG KONG TAX EEBIE
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated BB FB IR EF E N B R s
assessable profits for both years. AIZFHR16.5%:T & -
From 2008 to 2011, the Inland Revenue Department (“IRD”) Fi 7% B E2008F £2011F HiE @A A A
issued protective profits tax assessments for additional ET2E%HANE R A H2001/2002F
profits tax to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the 2004/20054F € K B 15 7P A% » B RIS 1M 5E
Company relating to the years of assessment of 2001/2002 SNERIS R AN E - B £2004512A31H
to 2004/2005 i.e. for the four financial periods ended 31 1 PO (& B R HA B A B 7S AT A% ©

December 2004.
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fr O B ¥5 HR R it 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

116

INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED)

HONG KONG TAX (CONTINUED)

The Group had lodged objections with the IRD against
the protective profits tax assessments. The IRD agreed to
hold over the additional tax claimed subject to the relevant
subsidiaries’ purchases of tax reserve certificates (“TRCs”)
amounted to approximately HKD23 million. These TRCs
were purchased and included in tax recoverable as at 31
December 2014 and 2013. In July and August 2012, the
Group purchased additional TRCs amounted to HKD10
million relating to the year of assessment of 2004/05 at the
request of IRD.

In December 2011, the Deputy Commissioner of the IRD
issued his written determinations. Among others, he is of the
view that the wholly-owned subsidiaries referred to above
are subject to Hong Kong profits tax and confirmed/revised
the protective profits tax assessments for 2001/2002 to
2004/2005 in the amount of approximately HKD306 million
in aggregate. In January 2012, the Group filed notices
of appeal to the Board of Review objecting to the written
determinations the IRD issued in December 2011.

In March 2012, the IRD also issued protective profits
tax assessments for profits tax or additional profits tax
for HKD90.5 million in aggregate in accordance with the
written determinations referred to above to the wholly-
owned subsidiaries concerned for the year of assessment
2005/2006. The Group had lodged objections with the IRD
against these protective profits tax assessments. The IRD
agreed to hold over the additional tax claimed subject to the
Group purchasing TRCs amounting to HKD12 million which
the Group did in July 2012.

The protective assessments issued by IRD according to
his determination for additional profits tax in aggregate of
approximately HKD396.5 million mentioned above for the
years of assessment from 2001/2002 to 2005/2006 were
issued on three alternative bases on the same set of profits
for each year of assessment.
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EFEABIE ()
AEBCHZREBUEMFRIRARE R
RERY - HBRRBEBAAEKN 2B
R % EM B A RZERE B A 814923,000,000
BILHRR S ([RHR5F]) - ZERFRSFE
i B It 8 2 20144 %2013 12HA31H
LRERBRBF - ARERBBEHERKER
201247 A M8 H # YN B 42 %810,000,000
78 TL2004/055 15 P X BV i A 55

M2011F12A BRI RRELHETH
RE-HAREHRTZEMBRARANRES
BMFTIS R - RHER, 15 IE 7 2001/20024F
J& Z2004/2005%F [Z &) F 5 57 1% (R [& 1% B
B # 5 2 & ££49306,000,00078 7T ° 742012
FIA AEEARNEEZESRI LFBA
2 RYETHEBN2011F12A8 3 H R

%o

2012637 B /3 75 & IR E & Fr
SRAHBNZE BELAE2ENBA
7] 1R 2005/20064F [ & M R E 58N T B
90,500,000/ 7T * A5 B B 5kt SARBE 1 FR
BHRABRABERREERY -HEBRAE
BAMBURO 2B EASEEEE
7##812,000,0008 TR B - AEBE R
2012F7ABEZSHMF-

15 B R IE HOR & 2% H12001/20024F € =
2005/20065F E M RB IS HAHE H
396,500,000 7T YR =T R EEFE
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7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED)

HONG KONG TAX (CONTINUED)

In March 2011, the Group filed an application to the Court
for a judicial review contending, inter alia, whether the IRD
has the power to issue multiple assessments against different
group companies for the same set of profits for the years of
assessment of 2001/2002 to 2004/2005.

The judicial review proceedings were heard on the 1st and
2nd February of 2012. The judgment in respect of the
judicial review was handed down in May 2012. Among
others, the Group’s application for relief to quash each of the
assessments issued by the IRD and the conditional holdovers
were not granted. The Court of First Instance held that the
IRD can issue multiple assessments in respect of the same
set of profits to different taxpayers on alternative bases, so
long as there is no double recovery of tax.

In October 2012, the IRD also issued protective profits
tax assessments for profits tax or additional profits tax
for HKD124.5 million in aggregate to the wholly owned
subsidiaries relating to the year of assessment from 2006/07
to 2009/10 on three alternative bases on same set of
profits for each year of assessment. The Group had lodged
objections against the IRD regarding these protective profits
tax assessments. The IRD agreed to hold over the additional
tax claimed subject to the Group’s purchasing tax reserve
certificate amounting to HKD7 million which was done by the
Group in January 2013.

Based on the mode of operations and activities of the
subsidiaries and the merit of the Group’s position as
assessed by its tax advisor, the Directors are of the opinion
that the group companies concerned are not subject to Hong
Kong profits tax.

The Group’s appeal to the Board of Review is scheduled to
be heard in September 2015. The eventual outcome of this
action which is being handled by the Group’s tax counsel
and tax advisor, and the financial impact thereof on the
Group, if any, cannot be readily ascertained at this stage.

Fia#ERR (8)

EHEBIE(8)

MR2011563A8 AEBMERER B @
EANGRESEEEYTREE QAN
2001/20024F & Z=2004/20054F & B Fi 75 =1
ZREENERER D ZETHERKAE
Bz

REBIZIZEFF20126F 28 1A R2HEITHR
Mo ALEABZHRER2012658 % T o &K
SRR FRHEHRERELNSREEME
AT R R B R B A0 TR - RAVE
FERA  REWEES R MIEHAED
[ BB & AT A BAE [RR ) 35 2 AT
it o

R2012F10A - MBRAARBAETEE
B8 2 B gL RS B pn RS AR AR S

124,500,0007% 7T 5 3 h (R B F S T AT B8
HMZE - Th A B F2006/074F Z£2009/104 3
BEE  NERRFER—AENEA=E
BRUEEROABMEL - AEEE3Z
EREBASHARBNE QRS BRER
o RBERRABEEMMORBERE &
RN& B g B (887,000,000 TTi# i 55 ©
AREBEER2013F1IABE RS-

HAEEETHBRRANREEELTHER
Nt AR TR A PR AR AN SR AR,

EERREENKRERRBRERERM
MFH

AEBUTH LRZ B EH LFKR2015
FORETRM UL RN RZERBAHN
SERBHAARE MEHSENMB
FE (WA REREARETEEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

18

INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED)

PRC TAX

All group companies operating in the PRC are subject to
the applicable tax rate of 25% during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013, except for a newly acquired
subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong and engaged in
property investment in the PRC, which is subject to the
applicable tax rate of 10% on its gross rental income earned
in the PRC, based on the existing legislation, interpretation
and practices in respect thereof.

Up to the date of these financial statements, the above newly
acquired subsidiary has not filed tax returns for corporate
income tax in the PRC in respect of its income derived from
the PRC. Accordingly, the PRC tax authority has the right to
levy penalty for late filing of tax returns. The amount of such
potential penalty cannot be reliably estimated as the range of
which is wide and therefore no provision was made in these
financial statements. Based on the experience of the Group's
management, the amount of such penalty, if any, will not be
material to the Group’s consolidated financial statements. In
addition, pursuant to the agreement in respect of acquisition
of that subsidiary, the vendor has undertaken to indemnify
the Group for any liability arising from the above late filing of
tax returns prior to the completion date of the acquisition.

OTHERS
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

FiRBRE (8)

thEHIE

H £2014%F %2013F 128318 It F &
R BEE LA S B AT BREARE
25% AN IE - MR RN BB MRk L
W B EY IR E MM B RQ RIRIN
BIEBBRITES REREN  ZARE
AL E A AP B R ER A AR 2 MR A AR BB 2 T R R
K10%H 4N F 18 -

BEENEMBHREAH LA RE R B
DA A E R EESH R AR E
EEMEHMATERRE - Bt - PEB B
B REBLE BRI X T B SR BE AR DA ST 5K
BRBESI SRR E R & AR 5
it Bt WERN U FBM B RER T EH
BE-REAESEEREENKR BTN
(8B BB HARENGZEE M B RERM
BUTEN - WIN RIBEBUBZMNER
ANHE BEH D AEREASERKE
=IR5TA B HIRI A b B SR A AN R B R
Bmal B EREE-

Hith
H A R R PrE £ B IR - Jh K AE R 7]
ERIEBITHERGE -



7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED)

Income tax credit relating to continuing operations for the
year can be reconciled to the loss before income tax credit
per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

Fia#ERR (8)

EHFEERERLEL 2 BREKE £
GAEHEWERTEREHRERRER
HERIOT -

follows:
Group
AEE
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHIT FHET
Loss before income tax credit M PT 1S 7 1K S0 AT ES 18 (30,531) (187,533)
Tax credit calculated at Hong Kong KEBFESHE R E16.5%
Profits Tax rate of 16.5% e 5,038 30,943
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for PEHRHIBEN RS 2
tax purposes WIS & (11,950) (16,396)
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax purposes 78 =3 i &9 Ug A 2 Fix 765 2 22 5,897 4419
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures HEEREXEBIBMBE (244) (5,545)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERMIEERZRGTE (2,158) (14,220)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMEEE R 9
operating in other jurisdictions MEAR TR R 2 5,089 2,998
Deferred taxation on withholding tax arising on  Ff B /& 2 Bk 2 Bt & A
undistributed profits in PRC subsidiaries FTEE A HY TR B R SE A 1E - 73
Over/(under) provision in respect of prior years B FEHRzEEME
(BETR) 461 (193)
Income tax credit SR & 2,133 2,079

In addition to the amount charged to profit or loss, deferred
tax relating to the revaluation of the Group’s properties has
been charged or credited directly to other comprehensive
income (Note 27).

RERSTBMNSRIN FHEAAKHE
VEMELEFIACHZ B Eb2mikas
fMER AT A (HEEE27) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

8. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 8. FEEEE

(A) OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS)

(A) Hipg AR Wa (REFREE

¥%)
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET FHE T
(restated)
(B&E5H)
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—&L8 WS 17,300 11,054
Gain on disposal of an investment property & — &&= - 180
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B R m U = 7,351
Bargain purchase gain arising on EBEHELEZEE
business combination =g 3,209 12,992
Fair value gain on re-measurement of EFTE—AELEN
equity in a joint venture It 2 AT EEKE 10,051 5,159
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale &S A S S R B e
investments - 45
Interest income ) 2 A 14,359 3,866
Realised gain on forward exchange contract = HASNE & R #)C £18
Wz - 1,333
Reversal of fair value gain on a finance PBERAOALEEKS
guarantee [0 - 2,300
Reversal of allowance for bad and doubtful 32§k 5K £ [3l
debts 111 -
Fair value gain on trading securities R BEEN N BERKZE 345 =
Others H A 28,954 9,797
74,329 54,077
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31 8 It FE

8. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED) 8. FEEE (4)
(B) OTHER EXPENSES (FROM CONTINUING (B) EABRE (KBS %)
OPERATIONS)
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET T
Bad debts written off B i sHE R = 3,634
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWHE  BERE&HE
equipment 18 25 2,140
Write off of property, plant and equipment 13 - = & =& & i BE 3,024 =
Provision of allowance for bad and RIBIREHEE  FH
doubtful debts, net
— Trade receivables — B SRR = 13,051
— Other receivables —H b U BR K = 4,077
Impairment loss on loans receivable JE U B 20 (B B 18 = 3,102
Translation reserve released on disposal of ~ R HE A& SRR
joint ventures PE 5 6 1,430 _
Others HA 3,050 1,264
7,529 27,268
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

8. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED)

122

©

8. FEEE (&)

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING (C) REBREBECEXBNEEBIEL
OPERATIONS HAS BEEN ARRIVED AT AFTER MR TIRIEEER:
CHARGING:
Group
AEE
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET T T
Directors’ emoluments (Note 9(a)) E£8E (M59a)) 8,664 10,350
Other staff costs E i g B AR 61,737 72,370
Retirement benefits schemes contributions, R RTE R 5T 24 7% -
excluding directors TEEES 5,319 11,135
75,720 93,855
Auditor’s remuneration ZERD B & 1,630 1,580
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TET R E R 7,490 7,215
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BRARINEFEEKA 106,670 126,531
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #13 - &= K & 1T & 36,190 34,844
Exchange losses, net P& 5 5185 58 6,547 704
Write off of property, plant and equipment Y1 - BB Ik AR 3,024 540
Allowance for inventories, net FEHBIK FHEEEG 8,418 =
and after crediting: REstA:
Reversal of allowance for inventories, net GFEREFEELD (M)
(Note) - 11,811
Gross rental income from investment KEYHEEES WA R
properties 15,567 7,262
Less: direct operating expenses from i EERSWARN
investment properties that generate WEMEER
rental income LY (672) (611)
14,895 6,651
Interest income from: FEHA
Bank deposits IRITTER 14,359 3,394
Loans receivable and advances to U E R ERE T IRE
customers in margin financing ERMERF 2N 7,958 =
Loans to a joint venture BERT—a&hE = 472

Note:

The reversal of allowance for inventories arising from an increase in net
realisable value was caused by the increase in estimated scrap value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

8. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED) 8. FEEE ()
(D) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (D) ERIEEZER

On 28 June 2013, the Group entered into a conditional R2013%F6H28H ' AL B EH— 7
sale and purchase agreement (the “Disposal BALT([EFDIVNEREEER
Agreement”) with a related party (the “Purchaser”), & ([HEWmZE]) Bt XARB K
pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed HREHE MEFEKGREEE
to dispose of, and the Purchaser conditionally agreed ARARNEEEZENRBRRERIEK
to purchase, the entire issued share capital of Yi BEHERAF ([BRMEIE T
Ming Investments Limited (“Yi Ming”), an indirect PRAIARABEA R E B AR (A
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and the [HEEBMERNRRER 2
shareholder’s loan due by Yi Ming and its subsidiaries R B 4 5429,199,0007 7T (£ A
(together the “Disposal Group”) for an aggregate [HEFHE|) A TFHAE - HEEEE
consideration of approximately HKD429,199,000 EREEBERETAASEEES D
(collectively referred to as the “Disposal”), subject 2 — - HEEHBEER2013F8A31H
to adjustments. The Disposal Group is principally SR HEEBERFIBERAAR B
engaged in footwear manufacturing and was one of A2013F8H12H /)8 P 1% 75 ©

the major components of the Group. The Disposal was
completed on 31 August 2013. Details of the Disposal
are disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 12
August 2013.
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6 IR KA 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

8. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED)

(D) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

8. FEEE (&)

(D) ERILESE(E)

The revenue, results, cash flows and net assets of the BRI EEBNEE X5 e
discontinued operations were as follows: mEREEFERT:
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’'000
TFH#IT T
Revenue EEE = 1,345,710
Cost of sales SHE KA - (1,177,407)
Gross profit EF - 168,303
Other income H iUz A = 17,937
Distribution and selling expenses DiENIEERE - (26,894)
Administrative expense TBR - (74,595)
Finance costs B & pk AR - (1,435)
Other expenses HaE - (18,473)
Profit before income tax expense B B 15 754 7 2 Bl A - 64,843
Income tax expense Frisfim Sz - (4,063)
- 60,780

Adjustments on provisions for retirement BR R AR IE @ A DA R EA

and termination benefits and FERRIE 2 B A

other payables 28,604 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries o BB A Rk E

(Note 44(a)) (Ktit44(@)) - 116,090
Profit for the year from discontinued RE B KIS ETHR

operations FEa 28,604 176,870
Net cash used in operating activities AR EERIR S F 5 - (57,634)
Net cash used in investing activities AREEEENIE©F5E - (59,987)
Net cash used in financing activities BARaEEemIRe 558 - (48,405)
Net cash flow incurred by the discontinued B4R & EZEKELHIE S

operations e FE = (166,026)

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of
the discontinued operations at the date of disposal are

disclosed in Note 44(a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31 8 It FE

— =
9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 9. ESHERESHM
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(A) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S (A) EERFRTHASHN
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the thirteen BT 1134 (2013 : 138) K&
(2013: thirteen) Directors and the Chief Executive of EEERFZETRAENSHAOT:
the Group were as follows:
2014 20145
Chan Chaw Liu Se Wah
Kar Lee Chan Chan Chang Chen Cheng Cheng ~ YuChun Feng Huang Ho Ho Li Hongehih Shum  SunSun  Wang Kei
Gay"  LuMin® TingChuen ToungYuan®  FangMei ~ KarShing  TunNei® Alexander®  LeiMing® Shenglan™ Shing Chak Ting Seng® INan®  George™  Pui Kay Tony Jackie Total
REHY  BEE®  REN  FERY REE B0 BERY  BWY BERY WBEY  fAE WEY FREY  BMEY  MME WEE EE 23
HKD'OOO  HKD'OOD  HKD'OOO ~ HKD'OOD  HKD'O00  HKDIOOO  HKD'OOO  HKD'OOO  HKD'OOD  HKD'OOD  HKD'OOO  HKD'OOO  HKD'OOD  HKD'OOD  HKD'OOO  HKD'OOO  HKD'OOO  HKD'00O
TEL  TER TER TEm  TER  fER fEm TR TER TR TEm  TER  TER TR AR TER TR TR
Fees -G 120 9% 120 L] 2 9% - 9% 608
Other emoluments: g
Salares and otherbenefts FEREER 1692 1,800 1800 5,292
Bonus (M) HLkz) 138 - 150 288
Contbutions to efement benefts & fF/EHzH SR
schemes il - 90 169
Share-based payments WRGER 1153 577 577 2307
Total emoluments BuE 3,062 231 120 % - 120 4 2 9% 2617 9% 8,664
Note: (1), (4), (5), (10) appointed in FY2014 MizE: (1) (4):(5)  (10)R2014F BA IR F E I &=

(2), (6), (7), (8) resigned in FY2013

(3), (9) retire in FY2014

£

(2)(6)~ (7)~ (B)N2013F B & [Z B (£

(3)* (PR20145F B B F [Z AR {E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

9. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS AND 9. EEHEREEHI ()

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(A) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(A) EERTRTHASHN(H)

2013 20134
Chan Chow Liu Sze Wah
Kar Lee Chan Chan Chang Chen Cheng Cheng ~ YuChun Feng Huang Ho Ho Li Hong-chih Shum  SunSun  Wang Kei
Gany®  LuMin® Ting Chuen Tsung Yuan® FangMei  KarShing  TunNei® Alexander™ Lei Ming® Sheng Lan™ Shing Chak ~ Ting Seng®  INan®  George ™  PuiKay Tony Jackie Total
REA  EEZC REN  ®ENS RAx gz SERY BTRY BEWO  EBEC fRE fED  ZEREY WEE0 RE EEE ERE S
HKDOOO  HKDOOD  HKD'OOO  HKD'0OO ~ HKDOO  HKDOOD  HKD'OOO  HKD'0OO ~ HKDOOO  HKDOOD  HKD'OOO  HKDOOO ~ HKDOOO  HKDOOO  HKD'OOO  HKDIOOO  HKDOOO  HKD'O0O
TEn TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TEn TR TEn  TEr TEn  TEr TEn
Fees ER = 120 = = 120 % = = % % 120 - % - - - - Th4
Other emoluments: Lots:

Salaries and other benefits ~ H& RE (B - - 180 1 - - - - - - - 100 - - 180 - 5801
Bonus (Aofe) () - - 380 - - - - - - - - - - - - 330 - 760
Contrbutions to efirement  E{KEI3H 8RR

benefits schemes - - - - - - - - - - - 30 - - 90 - 120
Share-based payments AR EH - - 2% - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 29
Total emoluments ka5 - 120 5105 1201 120 % - - % % 120 1030 % - -2 - 1030

Note: The bonus is based on the performance of individuals and the
entity.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, two
Directors waived emoluments of HKD16,000. No
compensation was paid to any Director for loss of office
as a Director of any members of the Group or of any
other office in connection with the management of the
affairs of any member of the Group during the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It FE

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(A)

(B)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,
certain Directors were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in Note 30 to the financial statements. The fair
value of such options, which was recognised in profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the vesting period, was determined as
at the date of grant and the amounts included in the
financial statements for both years are included in the
above Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments
disclosures.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the five
highest paid individuals of the Group included three
(2013: two) Directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in Note 9(a) above. The emoluments of the remaining
two (2013: three) individuals are as follows:

(A)

(B)

9. ESHERESHM (&H)

ESRETETHASHN(H)

B 220144 F2013412A318 |F4
B -ETESREARRZBRE
St EmMAEBRHE ZIRGERE
gt - BRAE— L BEHRIFE K
fizE30 - EAERE 2 R FEE (B
RS EEENER CERA
TR TR L A BEE R WESF
Bt AMBHRER 2B ALX
EERFETHRABTFM I EEAN-

12 & % M
HE2014F12A31B IEFE A%
ERSHEMNSEAL RERES
(2013 :2%) HEMFMEN EX
fif E9(a) I B8 - H #5724 (2013 : 3%)
AR T

2014 2013

HKD’000 HKD’000

TF#IT T T

Salaries and other benefits o M EMEF 3,297 5,780
Retirement benefits schemes contributions R RTE K 5T 24 7% 97 164
3,394 5,944
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

9. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS AND 9. EEHEREEHI ()
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(B) EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (B) EEHM (&)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: HESNFMWNE TS &EE R :
2014 2013
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAR EE AR
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001/ 02
2,000,000/% 7T 2 2
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001/8 T &
2,500,000/ 7T - 1
The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior ENSENERERASNHHMIIE
management were within the following bands: T & E A :
2014 2013
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAR EEAH
Nil to HKD1,000,000 07875 21,000,0007% 7T & 3
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001/ T2
1,500,000/ 7T 4 3
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 7t &=
2,000,000/ 7T 2 2
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001/& T &
2,500,000/ 7T - 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It FE

10. DIVIDENDS 10. 52
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD'000
TFHT T
2014 final dividend of Nil (2013: 2012 final BIRFT20144F Bk AR B
dividend of Nil) per ordinary share paid BT @A E (20134 -
20124 BAR R B4 ) - -
No interim dividend was declared or paid during the years H 220144 k201312 A31H IEFEHE
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. For the years ended Bk KR A ER AR B - B E2014%F 12013
31 December 2014 and 2013, the Board of Directors did not FI2ABIRIEFE EFe TERKNH
recommend the payment of a final dividend. KRB
11. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 11. BREH  (&58)
FROM CONTINUING AND DISCONTINUED RERERCRILESER
OPERATIONS
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RARHER ANEBIEERERREERTT)
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the KT HNBEETE
following data:
Basic earnings per share FREXEZF
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD'000
THT FHTT
Profit for the year attributable to the owners KA EHEE AL FE R A
of the Company 19,095 15,454
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

11. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 11.

(CONTINUED)

FROM CONTINUING AND DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

REFERCKRIEESEE (&

4=

FkEH(E5HE) (8)

)

Basic earnings per share (Continued) BREZEF (£)
2014 2013
Number Number
of shares of shares
K& E B 1 £ B
('000) ('000)
(Fh%) (F5&)
Number of shares EEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  FELAGTE &R EAR N #%
for the purpose of basic and diluted 7 ) I 58 IR N S H9 B
earnings per share 2,367,178 1,475,612
Basic and diluted earnings per share FRRERNEHERF]
(HK cents) (BN 0.81 1.05
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS REFREERH \
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share RRAFEAANEBEREFELEELNE

from continuing operations attributable to the owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

Loss is calculated as follows:

BRERNEEERIRE TSR E

BRI ETEWT

2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’'000
T T
Profit for the year attributable to the owners KAREE ANELFEERF
of the Company 19,095 15,454
Less: Vo
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 2K B 2 4% 11 48 & 2 7% )
F 2% A 28,604 176,870
Loss for the purposes of basic and diluted AT EREFELEER
loss per share from continuing operations AR EAR & E#E E R
o) s (9,509) (161,416)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share.
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11. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(CONTINUED)

FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the discontinued
operations is 1.21 HK cents per share (2013: 11.99 HK
cents per share), based on the profit for the year from
the discontinued operations of HKD28,604,000 (2013:
HKD176,870,000) and the denominators detailed above for
both basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share.

The amounts of diluted earnings/(loss) per share are the
same as basic earnings/(loss) per share for the year ended
31 December 2014 and 2013 because the dilutive potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the year had an anti-
dilution effect on the loss from continuing operations
attributable to the owners of the Company.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31 8 It FE

11. ZlR&H 7 (&E) (&)

REERILEZER
ERIEEEXRBNSRERNREFRF
BERL21B I (20134 - §RR11.99%
i) - HRIED R IEE 2R EFE ) F
28,604,0005% 7t (20134 : 176,870,0005%
TR EXSREREAREFRT (B
B)FFAM D B ES -

B 220144 20135 12H31H IEF E -
REERN, (BR) eEESRARRT
S (BRER RERFANBTENZE
EHEERRBARREAR ARERAR
BREXBHERAGREETE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

132

12. ¥3 B ERRE

Leasehold Furniture,
Freehold land and Leasehold fixtures
land in  buildings in improve- Plant and and Motor
Taiwan  Hong Kong Buildings ments  machinery  equipment vehicles Total
REEH  REEN RE-
KARE HEIHR HENE RER
1% i 2 3 R RERMES R RE o
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
THT T ThT TEL THT ThT ThT THL
Cost or valuation BASEE
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1A1R 74044 133,255 296,525 115,902 247,333 33,198 12,606 846,263
Exchange realignment E =l (241) - 9439 2,665 3301 369 78 15,611
Additions NE - - 31,935 19,601 7418 1,715 1977 62,646
Acquired through business combination BREBAGRE
(Note 45) (fii#45) - - - 517 - 389 100 1,006
Surplus arising on revaluation SRELNAR 748 - (202) - - - - 546
Write off AR = = = (1,443) (83) (1,360) = (2,886)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44) HEHBAR (7,951) - (2,495) (68,286)  (161,528) (12,070) (8449) (260,779
Disposals 5 - - - (509) (71,327) (2,630) (684) (75,150)
At 31 December 2013 2013124318 - 133,255 335,202 68,447 25,114 19,611 5,628 587,257
Comprising: 85
At cost A - = = 68 447 25,114 19,611 5,628 118,300
At valuation - 2013 {&8—20135 - 133,255 335,202 - - - - 468,457
- 133,255 335,202 68,447 25,114 19,611 5,628 587,257
Exchange realignment [ 5 E5 - - (8,702) (1,555) - (247) (®3) (10,587)
Additions AE - - 2,551 26,517 735 5,651 292 35,746
Acquired through business combination BBEHAGIE
(Note 45) (fi:#45) = - - 1,430 9 1,699 196 3334
Surplus arising on revaluation EREENRR = 14,027 = = = - = 14,027
Write off iR - - - (6,996) - (1,563) - (8,559)
Disposals HeE = = = (1,345) - (527) - (1,872)
At 31 December 2014 2014127318 - 147,282 329,051 86,498 25,358 24,624 6,033 619,346
Comprising: aE:
At cost KA - - - 86,498 25,858 24,624 6,033 143,013
At valuation - 2014 fHE-2014% - 147,282 329,051 - - - - 476,333
- 147,282 329,051 86,498 25,358 24,624 6,033 619,346
Deprecation il
At 1 January 2013 20131818 - - - 61,147 179,752 24618 9,363 274,880
Exchange realignment [ 5 E5 = = 131 1,205 2326 187 57 3906
Provided for the year FRER - 3,585 8,063 22,236 9,240 2,534 971 46,629
Write back on revaluation Epimp - (3,585) (8,194) - - - - (11,779)
Write off MR = = = (147) (65) (1,065) = (1,277)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44) HEMBRAR (Hit4) - - = (53688)  (111816) (9,493) (6983)  (181,980)
Eliminated on disposal HERHR S - - - (505) (54,426) (1,892) (582) (57,405)
At 31 December 2013 2013124318 - - - 30,248 25,011 14,889 2826 72974
Exchange realignment & 5 55 - - () (642) 2 (166) 4 (879)
Provided for the year FRER - 3978 8,263 20,614 36 2,551 748 36,190
Write back on revaluation EfREE - (3978) (8,186) - - - - (12,164)
Write off R - - - (4,182) = (1,353) = (5,535)
Eliminated on disposal HERHHE - - - (1,345) - (494) - (1,839)
At 31 December 2014 2014%12A318 - - - 44,693 25,049 15427 3578 88,747
Carrying value IRE{E
At 31 December 2014 R2014%F12A31A - 147,282 329,051 41,305 809 9,197 2,455 530,599
At 31 December 2013 R2013%12A318 - 133,255 335,202 38,199 103 4722 2,802 514,283
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 M IR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The buildings of the Group located in the PRC and the
leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong were valued
on 31 December 2014 by Prudential Surveyors (Hong
Kong) Limited, an independent firm of professional
property valuers not connected to the Group. The fair
value of the leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong
of approximately HKD 147,282,000as at 31 December
2014 (2013: HKD133,255,000) is a level 2 recurring
fair value measurement and the buildings in the PRC of
approximately HKD329,051,000 as at 31 December 2014
(2013: HKD335,202,000) is a level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. There were no transfers into or out of level 3
during the year.

The valuations of leasehold land and buildings in Hong
Kong adopted a direct comparison approach with reference
to market comparable sales evidence available in the
market. The valuations of buildings in the PRC adopted the
depreciated replacement cost approach in the absence of
comparable sales evidence.

12. % - FE R iE (8)

MR2014F12A318 AEERF R EF
EREANEEL W MEFECRENSE
B EBAEC B LB EYE GBI
BT (BB)BRAFETHER2014
FI2A318 REBSHHEELHRIETF
147,282,000 7T (2013: 133,255,000
MR FEBEDAE-REFTHEATE
Bt & MMN20146128318 R B
1 5329,051,000 335,202,0007% 7T.(2013:
335,202,000/ 7)) A FEBEA AE =R
KEMAFEEFE - FRE—REF =
LrEMEAFEEASEE NESE
EREBBRAF =R

HREBEANEE L RETFTHBETIRSR
BERLBE D2RETS NS
EHEREMET MERNTENETH
REERZ AL EGHEBIR ZIE0N T Tk
MITEEEKAAMETE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the opening and closing level 3 fair value
balance is provided below.

12. Y% - B ERRE ()

FONFRE=BRTEEERYERNT -

2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
THET F& T
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) — F 414488 (FE =4
EEENFEE) 335,202 303,969
Additions NE 2,551 31,935
Disposal of subsidiaries B EHE AR = (10,446)
Exchange realignment & & &7 (8,625) 9,067
Depreciation e (8,263) (8,063)
Gain on revaluation of properties held for own 5+ A E b 2 U A 89351
use included in other comprehensive income BERMYENEGH KRS 8,186 8,740
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FRER(B=ZRLTFL
NEEE) 329,051 335,202

Information about fair value measurements using significant

BRAERERTABEEHARENRFE

unobservable inputs Bt ENER
Properties Valuation approach Significant unobservable inputs Range
/ES fEER* EXTUREZHAYRE EE
2014 2013
HKD HKD
PRC Depreciated replacement  Construction costs 7,985 - 9,857 8,070 - 9,991
cost approach (HKD/sq. meter)
Y WESEERANE BIERA (BT FHK)

A significant increase/(decrease) in construction costs would
result in a significant increase/(decrease) in fair value of the
buildings.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during
the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 M IR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The fair value measurement is based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from
their actual use.

Had the land and buildings not been revalued, they
would have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
in the amount of approximately HKD341,054,000 (2013:
HKD356,300,000).

The Group had pledged leasehold land and buildings
with a carrying value of approximately HKD147,282,000
(2013: HKD133,255,000) to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group of which approximately
HKD155,112,000 had been utilised at end of the reporting
period (2013: HKD108,000,000).

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong and
buildings in the PRC are analysed at their carrying values as
follows:

12. % - FE R iE (8)

RNPEEAEDNEAYMEZ &S REE
Rz (EERASRLEER) REE-

Mt REFSEEHHE BEUES
AR AR 2 53T &£ 8 - B1341,054,00058 7T
(2013 : 356,300,000 7T ) 5T A 474 BA 753k
2@ °

AEEEEFETHEL W REET (RE
187/3147,282,0007% 7T (2013 : 133,255,000
BT ) RERERTAKEN —RRFITE
ERB-NIEH R EH155112,000%
JLE ZE) A (2013 : 108,000,000/ 7T ) °

AEBREFENHE L RBT RN F

NEFHNEREES T
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET T T

Properties located in Hong Kong Medium-term IR &EB BT E W %

lease

147,282 133,255

Properties located in PRC Medium-term lease R FR B AR EAFA & W) 3 329,051 335,202
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #2014 12831 H It F &

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13. IR EME¥

Investment
properties Completed
under investment
construction properties Total
EEhi ExEK
BEYE BEYE BEE
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’'000
Group XEE T T FHIT
FAIR VALUE NEEE
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1A1H 226,002 280,878 506,880
Additions NE 241,609 - 241,609
Disposals e - (9,500) (9,500)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44) HE KB R R (M E44) - (21,541) (21,541)
Increase in fair value recognised RERERNATEE
in profit or loss #n = 4,500 4,500
Exchange realignment ERES 6,378 407 7,285
At 31 December 2013 2013 12A31H 474,489 254,744 729,233
Acquisition of subsidiaries W Rt 8 A &)
(Note 45(c)) (H15#45(c)) - 565,622 565,622
Increase in fair value recognised in RERERNAFEE
profit or loss N = 27,973 27,973
Exchange realignment ERET (12,312) (4,799) (17,111)
At 31 December 2014 20144 12H31H 462,177 843,540 1,305,717
Notes: Hiet -

(a) All of the Group’s leasehold interests in land and buildings held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are classified and accounted for as investment properties and are

measured using the fair value model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 M IR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The fair value of the commercial and industrial properties in Hong
Kong and the PRC of approximately HKD843,540,000 as at 31
December 2014 (2013:HKD254,744,000) is a level 2 recurring
fair value measurement and the other investment properties of
approximately HKD462,177,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
HKD474,489,000) is a level 3 recurring fair value measurement. There
were no transfers into or out of level 3 during the year. A reconciliation
of the opening and closing level 3 fair value balance is provided below.

13. & ME (&)

M

(b)

(%)

R2014F12A31H R & R 5 & 55 %
o T 24 % #1843,540,0008 7T (20134 :
254,744,000/ 7C) B) X F BB TS 73 5F = RAZ
EURFEEFTE HR2014F12H31H
R b 1% E W) % #9462,177,00078 7T (20134 :
474,489,000/ 7T ) B 2\ -FAB B Bl 75 5 = RAZ =
MR F(EEE - FRABEERED e EEEE =
AR FHIRFRE=RAFIEERZGEBRLT -

2014 2013
HKD'000 HKD’000
FHET FHIT
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FAEES (F=MEEMHE
ATERE) 474,489 247,136
Additions NE - 241,609
Disposal of subsidiaries HER B AR - (21,541)
Exchange realignment [EHE5 (12,312) 7,285
Closing balance (level 3 recurring FRER (F=REEHE
fair value) ANFEE) 462,177 474,489

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2014 and 2013 was arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out
on those dates by Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited, an
independent firm of professional property valuers not connected to
the Group. The valuations of investment properties were arrived with
reference to market comparable sales evidence available in the market.

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs

R20144F R2013%F12H31H K& BREYE
B2 FAB(E 5y £ 7K 5 (B 7 48 8 2 B 7
YR EEEZETT (ZE) BRAATKETTENRG
B AR B REYRZNGEZE TS A
22 AT BT 45 45 B R T & E -

BEHEXT A B AEBE A A F B EE

Range
§E
2014 2013
Properties Valuation approach Significant unobservable inputs HKD HKD
LUES fEEAE BEXFTHRmAEE TFHET FHET
PRC Direct comparison approach Market unit sale rate (HKD/sq. 1,265 374 - 480
meter)
AR HELEE MISEMHER (B FhHK)

The unobservable inputs as at 31 December 2014 changed to be
obtained from samples of industrial land to those of commercial land
since there was an executed transaction of commercial land during
the year ended 31 December 2014 which is considered to be more
relevant for determination of the fair value using the direct comparison
approach.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the market unit sale rate would
result in a significant increase/(decrease) in fair value of the investment

properties.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

BREZ2014F12A31 A I FEFHEEFEZ
BREAMK G AR B EFERELBEETE
NFBE EEAIEE  R2014F12H31H -
T B A Z1F i B T ¥ 5P RS EF
BB EBEOIRE

A5 B (i 34 B K A B ZAE 0, () 15 BB
EYRGAFEEFEEN OFL)

FEA G BT ER AL 2B

MYEBBRAS 2014FEERS 137



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr O B ¥5 HR R it 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

13. &M% (&)

Hret - (&)

(Continued) ) (&)
The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ highest RFEEGETIA LY ET G RREHE
and best use, which does not differ from their actual use. (EEEFFEIHEES) BEE-
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, a large portion of the completed R20144F R20134F12H31 A - X 55 B Z K K%
investment properties were rented out under operating leases. Details BYRCIACETAE L - A S B 158
of operating lease arrangements are set out in Note 34. R} #34 o
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had pledged certain (c) R2014F12H31H  XEBE L FKREEE H
completed investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of #3252,718,000/% 7T (2013 : 226,745,000/% 7T )
approximately HKD252,718,000 (2013: HKD226,745,000) to secure By T BB 1R E Y AR RIT T 5 [ g —
general banking facilities granted to the Group of which approximately MIRTTIS BaAE  RIFEEIA - BHH155,112,000
HKD155,112,000 had been utilised at end of the reporting period BT BB (2013 : 108,000,000/ 7T ) °
(2013: HKD108,000,000).
The analysis of the carrying amount of investment properties is as (d) BEYELREES LT -
follows:
2014 2013
HKD'000 HKD’000
THER FHIT
Completed properties in Hong Kong: BBEEKYE:
Long lease RHEEE 12,500 11,000
Medium-term lease hETHE 270,217 243,744
Properties outside Hong Kong: BREAINZE -
Completed properties at medium-term lease BERKYERPEE 560,823 -
Properties under construction at medium-term lease FlEh YR RS 462,177 474,489
1,305,717 729,233

The Group has not yet obtained formal title to its interest of a parcel
of land as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 with a carrying amount
of approximately HKD234,275,000 (2013: HKD227,929,000). In the
opinion of the Directors, the absence of formal title of this land interest
has not impaired its value to the Group as the Group had paid the
full purchase consideration to the local land bureau and will promptly
apply for the registration of formal title once the Group has fulfilled
the relevant conditions. The Directors regard the probability of being
deprived from the use of the land on the ground of lack of formal title is
remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H It FE

14. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 14. EfHHERIE
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise: REBWBNEERIARRE:
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET FETT
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: RAEBAINDIEE T3
Held under medium-term lease REFHEERAE 284,766 300,208
Analysed for reporting purposes as: PEBAESTAOT
Non-current assets IETEEE 277,346 292,590
Current assets MBEE 7,420 7,618
284,766 300,208

HEREBRAT 204FEHS .



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr O B 5 HR R Pfd 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #2014 12831 H It F &

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

140

15. B EE

Trading rights Trademarks Total
XHHE BR s
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Group AEE F&E T T T FHET
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1A1H = = -
Acquired through business BIBESE FTIE
combination (Note 45(e)) (B et45()) - 248,841 248,841
Disposal of subsidiaries LERB AR
(Note 44) (H1a%44) = (38,758) (38,758)
Exchange realignment bE 5 S - (167) (167)
At 31 December 2013 2013 12H31H - 209,916 209,916
Acquired through business BRFELE R
combination (Note 45(a)) (H15£45(a)) 599 = 599
Exchange realignment PE 5 58 & - 30 30
At 31 December 2014 #2014412 A31H 599 209,946 210,545
Accumulated impairment: HetimiE:
At 31 December 2014 and 2013 720144 201312
H31H - - -
Net book value: BRE{E :
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31H 599 209,946 210,545
At 31 December 2013 M2013F12A31H - 209,916 209,916

The trademarks are in respect of the “PONY” brand and

the trading rights are those in Hong Kong Exchanges and

Clearing Limited which allow the Group to trade securities on

or through the respective exchange. They are considered by

management of the Group as having an indefinite useful life

because they are expected to contribute net cash inflows to

the Group indefinitely. They have been tested for impairment

annually and considered to be not impaired at the end of

reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It FE

16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/ 16. EELEELD SELEELEZ
OBLIGATIONS ARISING FROM A JOINT BE Bl EeELERIE
VENTURE/AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT
VENTURES

Group
xEE
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHEIT FHE T
Interests in joint ventures: AEPERER:
Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures ~ RAZLMEIE FHIRER
B A - 114,483
Share of post-acquisition net profits/(losses) G EEREF, (E8)
and other comprehensive income, net of FEEREMEE A
dividends received MBREWEE 24,662 (79,114)
24,662 35,369
Obligations arising from a joint venture: BELEEECEME:
Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures ~ RA LR ¥IE FHIRER
BN - 78,000
Share of post-acquisition net losses and other 1k Uk B 18 &5 18 %58 &
comprehensive income, net of dividends HE 2w A
received IR B WAR B - (142,859)
- (64,859)
The amounts due from/to joint ventures are unsecured, Bl ENAECENRELSERE ¢
interest-free and repayable on demand. B WEREREREEE -
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RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/ le6. SELEER SEERELEZ
OBLIGATIONS ARISING FROM A JOINT BBl ENEELERIE
VENTURE/AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT (4&)

VENTURES (CONTINUED)
At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had interests in R20144F K2013%F12A318  A&EEHEH
the following principal joint ventures: NTEEEE P FEER
Form of Proportion of nominal
business Place of Class value of issued capital Principle place
Joint venture structure incorporation of share held by the Group Principal activities of business
AEERANERT
BELE TERE a2 IRiAER RAEEESLL TBED EEBEBY
2014 2013
Smart Shine Industries Limited Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary 50% 50% Investment holding HKand PRC
3 Islands LAk REER BERF
EBRLEHE
JFT Holdings Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary N/A 50% Investment holding and retailing ~ HK and PRC
(“JFT Holdings") % a5 L@ (Note i) of apparel, footwear and BB RH
RHERERERAR (Hizti) accessories
(TEmemER]) REERR R &R ERH
zE
Welcome Wealth Properties Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary 0% 50% Investment holdings and footwear ~ Taiwan
Limited (“Welcome Wealth”) % Islands Lafk (Note i) trading BV
EBRAEHS (Hirstir) REERLEEERS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/

OBLIGATIONS ARISING FROM A JOINT
VENTURE/AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT
VENTURES (CONTINUED)

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material joint ventures which are accounted for using

the equity method is set out below:

16. SER XS SEREELEY

BiE W EAEE

(%)

EERIE

BRRAESAAE AEEEAA S0
EE AR EERIINT -

JFT Holdings Welcome Wealth
PRI B I R
2014 2013 2014 2013
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
THET T FET THL
(Note i) (Note ii)
(Hiszi) (Biati)
As at 31 December #12A31H
Current assets REEE N/A i 4,223 N/A A 85,406
Non-current assets FERBEE N/A 73 30,792 N/A A i 5,748
Current liabilities nHaRE N/A 73 (164,733) N/A 7 (67,350)
Non-current liabilities E e IR N/A i = N/A A (4,138)
Included in the above amounts are: A LAAERS
Cash and cash equivalents R RBLEEY N/A 73 2,035 N/A A 11,222
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade  RE& @ E &
and other payables) (PREEIHR
HEREAER) N/A i (164,109) N/A A i 11,631
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding ~ JEREI€ B E(E
trade and other payables) (FREESR
HinfETERR) N/A 7 iE F = N/A TR (4,138)
Year ended 31 December #IE12A31HILEE
Revenue HED N/A i 25,827 N/A A iE A 199,328
Loss for the year FEER N/A TEF (36,316) | N/A FiEH (10,576)
Other comprehensive income Hip2EKA N/A i 237 N/A &R (1,480)
Total comprehensive income e ONE N/A T (36,079) N/A A iE A (12,056)
Included in the above amounts are: A LA ER
Depreciation e N/A i (1,860) | N/A FER (792)
Interest income FISHA N/A 7 i F 33 N/A RiEF P
Interest expense FIERX N/A i (1,751) | NAFER (58)
Income tax credit FEHESR N/A 7 iE F 154 N/A RiEF -
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RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/ 16. EELEESR AEL¥ESEZ
OBLIGATIONS ARISING FROM A JOINT BT TEWFEFEELERIE
VENTURE/AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT (48)

VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes: HtaE -

RER AEEEBREZ A EDER T50%H
Atk (REBMERMLAFTE) MEHZAE
1SR AR 4R - — B B HTRE45(b) ©

During the year, the Group obtained control of this joint venture by
acquiring the remaining 50% equity interest it did not previously hold,
further details of which are set out in Note 45(b).

ii. This joint venture was disposed of by the Group during the year. ii. AEEBERFREEZEEDRE-
RECONCILIATION OF SUMMARISED FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information

B AR H AR

MBERMENERIZER AL ¥R

presented to the carrying amount of its interest in the joint R BREE S ¥R o
venture.
SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION MIBEEHME
JFT Holdings Welcome Wealth
R E R
2014 2013 2014 2013
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
TET T FHT FEL
(Note i) (Note fi)
(Hizti) (Hiztii)
Gross amount of Joint Ventures' net assets &4 EEEEER
k] N/A 7 iE (129,718) N/A A 19,666
Group's effective Interest AEERNERER N/A 7 iE R 50% N/A 7 iE R 50%
Carrying amount in the consolidated RERE M BRELZ
financial statements EEE N/A 7 iE R (64,859) | N/A FiER 9,916
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31 8 It FE

16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/ 16. BELEER AELEELEZ
OBLIGATIONS ARISING FROM A JOINT ST el FEFFEELERIE
VENTURE/AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT (48)

VENTURES (CONTINUED)

AGGREGATE INFORMATION OF JOINT VENTURES BERmMELIEEXZEELEMSET

THAT ARE NOT INDIVIDUALLY MATERIAL =g
Group
FEH
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET T T
The Group’s share of loss for the year AEENFEEE (408) (10,160)
The Group’s share of other comprehensive AEESEEMEEBA
income (383) (898)
The Group’s share of total comprehensive REBDEE2EB AL
income (791) (11,058)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AEBRLEEFEELERN
interests in these joint ventures EmrREAE 24,662 25,453
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

17.

18.

146

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

17. A HERSE

Group
FEH
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHET T T
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, RBEB LT ZRAES -
at fair value BRAFEE 44,888 =
GOODWILL 18. @&

During the year, the Group recognised a goodwill arising
from business combination as detailed in Note 45(a) of
approximately HKD35,590,000, and was allocated to the
cash-generating unit of financial services for impairment
testing.

For the purposes of the goodwill impairment test, its
recoverable amount was determined based on a value-in-
use calculation, covering a detailed 5-year budget plan plus
an extrapolated cash flow projections by applying a long term
growth rate subsequent to this 5-year plan, with a pre-tax
discount rate of 19.5%.

The key assumptions used in the budget plan are:

Cash flow beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated zero growth rate.

i. That gross margins will be maintained at its current
level throughout the 5-year budget plan.

The Group management’s key assumptions have been
determined based on past performance and its expectations
for the market’s development. The discount rate used is pre-
tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant business.

The Directors concluded that the cash-generating unit
demonstrates sufficient cashflows that justify the carrying
value of the goodwill and hence no impairment of goodwill is
necessary as at 31 December 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It FE

19. INVENTORIES 19. 58
Group
AEE
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FHET
Raw materials RAF = 10
Finished goods BUAK M 41,785 25,110
41,785 25,120
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. B 5 & H 1 FEUS BR 7R
Group Company
F5E FATF
2014 2013 2014 2013
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET TEL FHT THL
Trade receivables B SRR
— Other than financial services segment ~ — % BLIRF D B84 4 54,310 51,197 = =
— Financial services segment —RBREL D 7,054 = = =
Total trade receivables RN RS EE 61,364 51,197 = =
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERE (13,790) (13,901) = =
47,574 37,296 - -
Other receivables, deposits and HtEME T e R
prepayments (net of allowance) FERFE (k) 69,005 67,461 2,284 1,637
Total trade and other receivables B REMERTAE 116,579 104,757 2,284 1,637
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20.

(CONTINUED)

TRADE RECEIVABLES FROM SEGMENTS OTHER
THAN FINANCIAL SERVICES SEGMENT

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 60
to 90 days to its trade customers. Included in trade and other
receivables are trade and bills receivables, net of allowance
for doubtful debts, of approximately HKD47,574,000 (2013:
HKD37,296,000). Before accepting any new customer,
the Group assesses the potential customer’s credit quality
and grants a credit limit to the customer. Limits and
score attributed to customers are reviewed twice a year.
Approximately 55% (2013: 47%) of the trade receivables
are neither past due nor impaired, for whom there was no
recent default payment history. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

TRADE RECEIVABLES FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES

EoRHMEKERRR (4)

REKREBRBAHBLUINIBHHES
FEW FRIE
AEBREESEFRMHEAH0R E0
ATENFHEEH -ES REMEWE
B HE B BUHAT 574,000 JT (20134 :
37,296,000/ 70 ) M B 5 M EWZ & (B
RIRBE) - NEMNTBERER A5EH
EHMZERFEEZRE UEETZEF
MEERB - BEFRPFNEEERSIEEESF
TR R #955% (20134 : 47% ) HY
BoRKERL EaRAARE BEW
FOREER S R - AEE W ERZE
ERIS A TR -

KB &FRTE 5B E S EWRIE

SEGMENT
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’'000
FHET F& T
Trade receivables arising from ordinary course ~ R—RBH B & 2158712
of business of dealing in securities: EAXME S EWEIE :
Cash clients RexF 4,212 =
Trade receivables arising from ordinary course 24 71| & H — R ¥ 75872
of business of provision of: EENE S ERGRIE :
Money lending wE 2,756 =
Insurance brokerage RE A 86 =
7,054 -
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B MR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

TRADE RECEIVABLES FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES
SEGMENT (CONTINUED)

Save for the credit period allowed by the Group, the trade
receivables shall be due on the settlement dates of the
respective securities contract transaction. In view of the
fact that such receivables relate to a number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
Although the Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over such receivable balances, the
Group is allowed to dispose of the securities deposited by
the customers with the Group to settle any overdue amounts.
Overdue receivables from cash clients of approximately
HKD3,235,000 as at 31 December 2014 bear interest at
interest rates with reference to the Hong Kong dollar prime
rate (“Prime Rate”) plus 6%.

The following is an aged analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

20. B R E M EW AR (48

RE2RRTE D HHE 5 EWKFRIE
(#8)
BRAEBATREERN B S ERKE
BREEBLFEARINEERTI A&
REB ZERWRIES A TTIRER A
EEVEAEETFHEERR BEAE
BEwERERE S ENRIEERFAE TR
HIFRREEERTE HEAEBMERG
HEREFPFEEAEEBMNES BN EM
BEATRIE - 7A20144F12 318 - mERfEUR IR
B PR FRIEX £A3,2350008 7T 2E
BILTHREBRFNE([REBFE])MN6%Z
& B -

RBEPRR AEEUBRRAHAEESR
510 B 5 FE MR R B R AR B R O AR B D
e

Group

AEH
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
F#T T
0 to 30 days 0Z230K 19,476 9,802
31 to 60 days 31E60X 1,469 6,000
61 to 90 days 61290K 5,410 1,594
Over 90 days #90K 21,219 19,900
47,574 37,296

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see
below for aged analysis) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not recognised an
allowance for doubtful debts because there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable.

EXRENE S RBERBRERARE B
REBHNFIE (BREDT R T - MA
SEYEMREBRAREREG RAREE
BRVESBAEY TR INEER
A Y[l
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RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

AGEING OF TRADE RECEIVABLES WHICH ARE
PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

20. B R H M EW AR ()

3F #8375 {5 BY 38 5 B2 5 FE W R K Y iR 6

2014 2013

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FHET

Over 90 days past due 10 BR38190K 21,219 19,900
MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL RIRBHEEE - B S EKARR

DEBTS - TRADE RECEIVABLES

2014 2013

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET T T

Balance at beginning of the year F L 13,901 6,730

Disposal of subsidiaries &M B A R - (5,880)

Impairment losses recognised on receivables ERE W AR R R E S B - 13,901

Impairment losses reversed VEREYEiNEEE (111) (850)

Balance at end of the year FRER 13,790 13,901

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of approximately HKD13,790,000 (2013:
HKD13,901,000) with a carrying amount before provision
of approximately HKD27,942,000 (2013: HKD33,801,000).

The individually impaired receivables related to customers LaEE

that were slow in settlement and management assessed that
only a portion or none of the receivables is expected to be
recovered.
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL

DEBTS - OTHER RECEIVABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr O B ¥5 HR R Ffd 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It FE

RERGEEEE — HibEKARR

20. B R HEW AR (48)

2014 2013

HKD’000 HKD’000

THET FHIT

Balance at beginning of the year F 4R 4,077 =
Impairment losses recognised on receivables BBt EUERER AR EEE - 4,077
Balance at end of the year FRER 4,077 4,077

Included in the above provision for impairment of other
receivables is a provision for individually impaired other
receivables of approximately HKD4,077,000 (2013:
HKD4,077,000) with a carrying amount before provision
of approximately HKD4,077,000 (2013: HKD4,077,000).
The individually impaired receivables related to debtors that
were slow in settlement and management assessed that
only a portion or none of the receivables is expected to be
recovered.

LA b H i fE UG BR BB (B B S B IR R R
AiT B T {8 49 /54,077,000 7T (20134 :
4,077,000/% 7T ) &9 & Bl 2 & (B & fib &
W BR X B 48 494,077,0005 7T (20134 :
4,077,000/ 7T ) ° @R E R E YRS &
HEREMNERER mEEETHESR
— EB17 S 4 4 FE U BR SR TE AR AT T Uk o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

21. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN 2]1. RETFRELEFHEETRZER

FINANCING
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET THT
Directors o 14,266 -
Other margin clients HEMREFESRF 36,078 =
Balance at end of the year F R AR 50,344 =

Advances to customers in margin financing are repayable
on demand and carry interest ranging from Prime Rate
to Prime Rate plus 3% per annum. Margin clients are
required to pledge securities collateral to the Group in order
to obtain credit facilities for securities trading. The amount
of credit facilities granted to them is determined by the
discounted value of securities accepted by the Group. At
31 December 2014, the total market value of securities
pledged as collateral in respect of the loan to margin clients
was approximately HKD579,904,000 (2013: Nil). The Group
is allowed to dispose of the collateral in settlement of the
customers’ obligation to maintain the agreed level of margin
and any other liability of the customers due to the Group.

No ageing analysis is disclosed for advances to customers in
margin financing as, in the opinion of the Directors, an aging
analysis is not meaningful in view of the business nature of
margin financing.
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23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

LOANS RECEIVABLE 22. R ER
2014 2013
Notes HKD’000 HKD’000
MeRE FHET THT
Secured BER i 104,506 =
Unsecured (R i 38,500 =
143,006 -
Notes et
i The loans receivable of HK$104,506,000 are secured by charges over i. JEY B 71104,506,000,8 7T 73 #1 1 15 FAA B9 )5
the borrowers’ properties and/or financial assets, bear interest at 12%- RH % B EE ) EAREL ER B2 H A
18% per annum and are repayable by one month to one year from the B IR EFIEKI2%-18%51.8 R — M0 HZE—F
dates of advance. AT e
i The balance is unsecured, bears interest at 12% per annum and is i, FEMEIEIR IR FFIE12%51.8 - B 250 H B
repayable by one year from the date of advance. —FERLT
For loans receivable, the customers are obliged to settle the MEWER M B ARBHEBS LT
amounts according to the terms set out in relevant contracts. BARFER - FETIREH ZEEEZFF
Interest rates are offered based on the assessment of a mmEH ZERXPEERAZEAR
number of factors including the borrowers’ creditworthiness B h BHmUARBEELEBSE -
and repayment ability, collaterals as well as the general
economic trends.
The Directors consider that the fair values of loans receivable BERE BERERATFEEEH —FR
which are expected to be recovered within one year are not e BAEEEEYEEAER  REALGE
materially different from their carrying amounts because the SR V144 s 9 B HA RS PR AS o
balances have short maturity periods at inception.
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF 23. XATHE AN E{LETE

THE COMPANY

Loss attributable to owners of the Company includes
an amount of approximately HKD119,343,000 (2013:
HKD11,595,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

ARABEAAREEEEBEZBEY
119,343,000/ 7T (2013 : 11,595,000
7o) HERARRRNMBERERALZE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

24. TRADING SECURITIES 24. X HEH
Group
FEH
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
T F& T
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, RBEB LT ZRAES -
at fair value BAF(E 9,545 =
The above equity securities are classified as held for trading, ERABESERFBEEER RREKX
and upon initial recognition, designated as financial assets at BREEEAZATEEIAERZ SR
fair value through profit or loss. BE-o

25. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT, PLEDGED 25. ZRFIRITHER  CIRIPERTT

BANK DEPOSIT AND BANK BALANCES RURRITHIRERIRE

AND CASH

(A) RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT (A) ERHRITER
The balance of HKD3,743,000 (2013: HKD3,843,000) % %5 #23,743,00058 T (20134 :
is dominated in RMB and carries a fixed interest at 3,843,000/ 7 ) LA A R FHE - LAE
3.30% (2013: 3.30%) per annum. The use of the bank TE G F %&3.30% (2013 : 3.30% ) &t
deposit requires the consent from one of the occupants BB AETHERARNEBERFES
of the Group’s outlet mall in the PRC. [ ERYRLER —REEARE

FAEE -

The remaining balance of HKD1,573,000 (2013:Nil) # T 45 #41,573,0007% 7T (20134 :
is dominated in TWD and carries a fixed interest at EIOLNFE®BEE KEEFHNE
1.345% (2013:Nil) per annum. The use of the bank 1.345% (20134 : fE) Fr B - B F iR
deposit requires the consent from the landlord and THEREXEREERRE -
suppliers.

(B) PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT (B) EH#IRITHER
As at 31 December 2013, RMB45,000,000 R2013%F12A31H ' AR ¥
(approximately HKD57,641,000) was pledged to a 45,000,0007T (#957,641,000/% 7t )
bank for securing banking facilities granted to the EER T —RARTERRAASERL
Group. The deposit carried interest at prevailing market RITELE 2 FER - ZFE RN B ZE2013
rate at around 3.30% per annum for the year ended F12A31 8 L FEIRBR T FE R X
31 December 2013. #)3.30% ©
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B MR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It FE

25. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT, PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSIT AND BANK BALANCES
AND CASH (CONTINUED)

©

(D)

BANK BALANCES AND CASH - HELD ON
BEHALF OF CUSTOMERS

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
authorised institutions to hold clients’ monies arising
from its normal course of business. The Group has
classified the clients” monies as bank and cash balance
held on behalf of customers under the current assets
section of the consolidated statement of financial
position and recognised the balances of the trust
accounts (Note 26) as amounts due to respective
clients on the grounds that the Group is liable for any
loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies. The cash
held on behalf of customers is restricted and governed
by the Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The
Group is allowed to retain some or all of the interest
on the clients’ monies, but is not allowed to use the
clients’” monies to settle its own obligations.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

[t included the time deposits of approximately
HKD419,401,000 (2013: HKD678,862,000) which
carried fixed interest rates ranging from 0.30% to
3.08% (2013: 0.30% to 3.08%) per annum. The
remaining balance represent bank balances carried
interest at prevailing market rates which ranged from
0.01% to 0.35% (2013: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum
during the year.

€

(D)

25. ZPRHIRITHER « CIRIPERTT
RURRITEBR RIS (8)

RITERRBEE-REFRSR

AREBR R A #ERRB L EER
F UEER—REBERTELEZ
BEFRE -AEEKLEEFKEAD
BRGEVHIMARTRBEERT
REFHBEZRITRREEHR LR
BEASEERTPHRIAEMERSK
MAE FEECER  BREERS
Z 88 (Mis2e) RN BEEF K
F-HKEFRAZREXBEHFRAE
PR T EFME (BEFPRE) B
AIFFIR B R AR E - ARBE/EFFRE
REPFIAEZ G 2= BR
REFEREFPHRREELRE-

MITEB RIS
RITEREBRSBREABEFH
#0.30%%3.08% (2013 : 0.30% =
3.08% ) &t B H) 7 B 1F 5(4 19,401,000
7 7t (2013 : 678,862,000/ 7T ) °
BTN ERIEFARRITT S FF
#0.01%%0.35% (2013 : 0.01% %=
0.35% )&t B WY RTT 48R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

25. ZPRHIRITHER - CIRIPRTT
RURRITEBR RIS (B])

25. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT, PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSIT AND BANK BALANCES
AND CASH (CONTINUED)

(D) BANK BALANCES AND CASH (CONTINUED) (D) RITEGRRIEE (48)

As at 31 December 2014, cash and bank balances
(including pledged bank deposit and restricted
bank deposit) denominated in RMB amounted
to approximately HKD274,496,000 (2013:
HKD186,581,000). RMB is not freely convertible
into foreign currencies in the PRC. Under the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted

to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

M2014512H310 - K AR K :HE
IR E RRITHER (BREZREIRT
FREEERRITER)ELH274
496,0007% 7T (2013 : #49186,581,000
BIL) c ARBRABBETRES B H T’
RN R B P B (OMEE I &P
K (HEE - EERNEETERTE) - A
BRI RBERELEINEEED
RIT BARBLBDINEG -

26. B 5 & H 1t FE 1 BR =X

Group Company
F5E FATF
2014 2013 2014 2013
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET TBT FET THL
Trade and bills payables B LERER 23,932 34,047 = =
Accounts payable from SRBBD HEM KRR
financial services segment 25,291 - - -
Other payables, temporary receipts HA MR BRI &
and accruals JEET AR 246,465 253,815 710 956
Total trade and other payables B REMEMRTAE 295,688 287,862 710 956
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31 8 It FE

26. B R HEMIEMSIRR (48)

RBEHAR AEZEHAELEZINE
RN EBENRE DT -

Group

xEE
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
THET FHETT
0 to 30 days 0230K 21,080 17,770
31 to 60 days 31E60X 1,891 11,891
61 to 90 days 61F90K 134 2,191
Over 90 days #90K 827 2,195
23,932 34,047

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
timeframe.

BENTHEERARIOKX RNEBEDHE
B 75 R\ g T 3R ISR DA R AR P B M AP BR K 15
REEHRABE -
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RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. B RHMEMIRRRK (&)

(CONTINUED)
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES SR AR5 5 &8 FE £ BR =X
SEGMENT
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’'000
FHET FHET
Accounts payable arising from ordinary course —fREHF B B XK iBE
of business of dealing in securities (note): EERERBRER (KEE) -
Cash clients HexF 9,996 =
Margin clients RESEP 14,629 -
Clearing house EEET 556 -
25,181 -
Accounts payable arising from ordinary course  fRHEA RN &IE 2 —fREK
of business of provision of: BIEEAMEMNERER:
Insurance brokerage IR A4 110 =
25,291 -

The settlement term of accounts payable attributable to

dealing in securities are two trading days after the trade date.

No aging analysis is disclosed for payables to margin clients
as, in the opinion of the Directors, an aging analysis is not
meaningful in view of the business nature of securities

dealing and margin financing.

Note:

The balances represent accounts payable to clients and other

institutions in respect of trust and segregated bank balances
received and held for clients and other institutions in the course of

the conduct of regulated activities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31 8 It FE

27. DEFERRED TAXATION 27. REBIIE
The following table is the analysis of the deferred tax U IS R aRIET IR AR D T a0
balances for financial reporting purposes: TE:

Group

XEEH
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET T T
Deferred tax assets EIERIAE B (45,699) (23,207)
Deferred tax liabilities RETHIERE 88,776 85,913
43,077 62,706
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RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

27. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

160

The following table shows the major deferred tax liabilities/
(assets) recognised by the Group and movements thereon

EIEHIE (&)

KEIEE’EWE’]IELLMEEE/(ﬁ
BE) REERAFE BEFRENESE)

during the current and prior years: R
Revaluation of Allowance Fair
freehold and Undistributed for bad value
leasehold ~ Revaluation  Accelerated ~ earnings of  Unrealised and adjustment
land and ~ of investment tax PRC profit on doubtful on intangible
buildings properties  depreciation  subsidiaries  inventories debts Tax losses assets Total
KAEEA
HELHE RENE MERE PEMELT RER Rk BREEL
BPERE Eff g APREH HERA &k HEGE ATEERE 03]
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TAT TR TAT TAx TAT TR Thx TAx TAT
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1A1R 61,966 7950 1,082 3259 (118) (191) (18,148) - 55,800
Exchange differences ERZR - 71 = - - - - - 71
Acquisition of a subsidiary through BREBANKKE
business combination —HEBAR - - 9,051 - - - - 11,233 20,284
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR (176) (1491) (14) (3,186) - 51 - (3867) (8683)
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss MR/ GEA) B - 277 20 = 118 140 (5,059) - (4,504)
Charge to other comprehensive income ~ HBLE M2 ERA (262) - - - - - - - (262)
At 31 December 2013 #2013%12A318 61,528 6,807 10,139 73 - = (23,207) 7,366 62,706
Exchange differences ERZR - (62) - - - - - - (62)
Acquisition of a subsidiary through BREBANKKE
business combination ~-HBAR - - (18) - - - - - (18)
Acquisition of a subsidiary accounted for  RAE—HBAFA
as acquisttion of assets and liabilities KENEELERE - - = - - - (17,004) - (17,004)
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss TR/ (GEA) s = 377 112 = - - (5,488) - (4999)
Charge to other comprehensive income ~ HEE M2 EMRA 2,454 = = = = = = = 2,454
At 31 December 2014 12014£12A31A 63,982 7122 10,233 73 - = (45,699) 7,366 43077

At 31 December 2014, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HKD586,205,000 (2013: HKD319,696,000)
available to offset against future profits. Tax losses to
the extent of approximately HKD276,964,000 (2013:
HKD140,646,000) in respect of which a deferred tax asset
has been recognised. Management has prepared a robust
business plan based on a sound business model and is
confident that the Group will be able to generate taxable
profits from the companies in which these tax losses arose.
As a result, management believes that these losses will
be utilised in the foreseeable future. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining unused
tax losses of approximately HKD309,241,000 (2013:
HKD179,050,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. All the tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely
except for those arising from the PRC which may be carried
forward for five years.

The Company did not have any deferred tax assets or
liabilities as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.
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MR2014F12A318 AEBE XS H
7 T8 &5 18 49586,205,000# 7T (2013 :
319,696,000 7T ) A 4 4K 85 K 2R i 7l - &
H#7276,964,0007% 7 (2013 : 140,646,000
BT ZHREBEDERERAELEREE
E-BEEEREREZEBEAFE —
DRBEZEBTERBEASEBERE

EZEHBEBBZEBAARBMELER
BodFeA  EEREREZEERBE
AR B R A ES) A o f A R AT FE R 5k
AT B ML SRR T A BB A
$8309,241,0007% 7T (2013 : 179,050,000/
T0) ERIEE TR BB B - FT A FIE B 18 ] &

REMGEE EZERETEYAIZAERF
YL IR & 1R RIBR Sb

MA20144 K2013F 12 A31 8 » AN A &) I &
EREEHRIEEERABE-



28. BANK BORROWINGS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

28. EIRERITER

Group Company
F5E b VN
2014 2013 2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
FTHET TR THET THT
Carrying amount of variable BR—FRER
interest-rate bank loans repayable FENFI R A RAT
within one year-unsecured BREE - EHE 310,224 295,383 310,224 271,383
Carrying amount of variable AR BREHR
interest-rate bank loans —FREMFHFIE
that are not repayable VERBREKEE
after one year from the end of ERRBITER
the reporting period which contain REE-FEE
a repayable on demand clause-secured 155,112 84,000 155,112 -
Amounts shown under current liabilites ~ FI{EREN & EFIE 465,336 379,383 465,336 271,383

The Group has variable interest-rate bank loans which carry
interest ranging from 1.31% to 2.96% (2013: 1.35% to
2.88%). The weighted average effective interest rate of the
Group's bank loans is 1.81% (2013: 1.81%).

Bank loans with a carrying amount of approximately
HKD155,112,000 (2013: 108,000,000) are secured by
certain land and buildings and investment properties of the
Group as set out in Notes 12 and 13 respectively.

AEBMRTERWNEZHEE 58
TN FR1.31%%E2.96% (2013 : 1.35%%F
2.88%) - A BERITERZ B HIMEF
FIZEA1.81% (2013 : 1.81% ) °

BREMEAL115,112,000% 7T (2013 :
108,000,000 7t ) 2 IRITE B AL B H
ETEHREFAMREDFEEERR (D
RIER M EE125%13) ©
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. Ig &
Number of Nominal
shares value
BrEE mE
('000) HKD’000
(Fh) FABT
Authorised: VATE
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each 7R E1E0. 108 T 19 Z B AR
(2013: HKDO.10 each) (2013 : AL E 18
0.10/%&7T)
At 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 R2013F1H18 &
and 31 December 2014 2013F12A318 &
2014412 831 H 20,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE:
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each 2R E1EO. 10/ T 7 Z B AL
(2013: HKDO. 10 each) (2013 - AR E B
0.10/&7T)
At 1 January 2013 R2013%F1A1H 1,308,034 130,804
Exercise of share options (Note i) TTIEBERRRE (M ati) 8,150 815
Issue of shares under placement (Note ii) BIER S ZTIRD (A7) 787,500 78,750
At 31 December 2013 20134 12H31H 2,103,684 210,369
Exercise of share options (Note i) TR (AT aEi) 44,570 4,457
Issue of shares as considerations TERULEE I /B 2 &]
for acquisition of subsidiaries T EITHIR (7
(Notes 45(a)&(c)) (K1 7#45(a)&(c)) 521,260 52,126
At 31 December 2014 2014412 H31H 2,669,514 266,952
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30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Note:

(i) During the year, share options were exercised to subscribe for
44,570,000 (2013: 8,150,000) ordinary shares of the Company
at a cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HKDI18,070,000 (2013: HKD3,306,000), of which HKD4,457,000
(2013: HKD815,000) was credited to share capital and the balance
of approximately HKD13,613,000 (2013: HKD2,491,000) was
credited to the share premium account. An amount of approximately
HKD5,290,000 (2013: HKD 966,000) was transferred from the share
option reserve to the share premium account upon the exercise of the
share options.

(i) Save as disclosed in the announcement dated 9 September 2013,
787,600,000 ordinary shares were issued at HKDO.38, through
placement to various placees, who or whose ultimate beneficial owners
are independent and not connected to the Group with gross cash
proceeds, before expenses, of approximately HKD299,250,000.

All shares issued by the Company ranked pari passu with the
then existing shares in all respects.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 10 June 2011, shareholders of the Company have
approved and adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing eligible participants
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the
Company and to encourage participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. All
Directors, full-time employees and any other persons who, at
the sole discretion of the Board of Directors, have contributed
or will contribute to the Group are eligible to participate in the
Scheme.

Pursuant to the Scheme, shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue on the date of adoption. The Company may renew
this 10% limit with shareholders” approval provided that each
such renewal may not exceed 10% of shares in the Company
in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.

29.

30.

B (48)
Hizt

(i) RE R - 7712 8 R #E LA 3% f44,570,000(2013 -

8,150,000)8 7 2 7] Z i iR - H & 118 (#1k
B3 A1) /5 #718,070,0005% 7T (2013 : 3,306,000
BT)  H 4 0 457,000 T (2013 : 815,000
BIL) G5 ABRAE R T 4913,613,000% 7T
(2013 : 2,491,000/ 7L ) J551 A SR 17 5 1B Bk ° 75
2(#95 + 290,000/% 7T (2013 : 966,000/ 7T ) J3
RITIEBIRER B BRI EEREZRG 5B
ﬁl‘g’ o

(i)  BRABE20I3FIHIAZ MM HEEZES)
787,500,0008% &8 /i2 )55 B A & T & T AHA
(R RC BRE AN B RS E 4
K5 B 1 A ) #0388 T BT B B2
A EE (1 BT 55 AT ) /299,250,000 7T °

FIA AR R EITHRMD EMA 7 EHHE
ERFENRERDZFERFMA-

RERRHERT I

201146 H108 » N2 AR #HE/fE K R4
BRESTE ([ZAH8))  SERHESE T
RERSHEERBARRNERRER Wi
B2RENARBREBRNEERNE S
R BORSARBREBRDOEE-
BEARBER([EF]) 2RBEERES
EMERRE LK S E A KE L R
MEMEMALHTEERSEZTE -

Rzt 8 RITERZM B 8 S E M
Hip AR 2 IR0 BB A i 5t 8 M X
R BARER AT BEEITHMRD & /A
AHEBAQ R R BN HTROD
10% © fird & 15 AR SR AL - AN X ) AT & # Ut
10%HIFR B - 1E& B R Tl BEA A E
IR/ B I E # TR AI10% ©
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30.

164

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme or any other share
option scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and unexercised options) under
the Scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by
the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue.

The period within which the options must be exercised will
be specified by the Company at the time of grant. This period
must expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the options. At the time of grant of the options, the Company
may specify a minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised. The offer of a grant of
share options may be accepted within 14 days from the date
on which the letter containing the offer is delivered to that
participant and the amount payable on acceptance of an
option is HKD1.00.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on the
date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share of the Company on the date of grant. The subscription
price will be approved by the Board of Directors at the time
the option is offered to the participants.

No options may be granted under the Scheme after the date
of the tenth anniversary of the adoption of the Scheme.
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RITEFTA %2 MIERT Bl ST M AR A
BR A ) T BB AT 1 1 15 T e i 57 7T (2 A0 1
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

On 17 June 2014, a total of 6,000,000 share options were
granted to a Director of the Company.

Details of the movements of the share options granted under

30. BERR & (48)

M201456 4170 - RAR —EFER T H

6,000,00017 f& Ak #

RBE2014F12A3IB IEFER - RIEZ

the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2014 are R M EREZSFBNT
as follows:
Number of share options
fERENE

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise price asat Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
per share 1 January during during during 31 December
Name of participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) 2014 the year the year the year 2014
20144 20144
BRITERE 1A18 12A318
28\t B¥EH T8 (7&7) ie) K17 REARH REMTE RERKH B RATE
Directors 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 11,200,000 - (11,200,000) - -
£ 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,300,000 - (3,800,000) (1,500,000) 7,000,000
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,300,000 - - (1,500,000) 10,800,000
9/10/2013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0.402 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) = =
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0.402 1,500,000 - - (1,500,000) =
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0402 1,500,000 - - (1,500,000) =
17/6/2014 17/6/2014 - 16/6/2017 0.550 - 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
Employees 9/9/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0.406 13,600,000 - (13,600,000) - -
ES 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,000,000 = (9,680,000) = 2,320,000
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0.406 12,000,000 - - - 12,000,000
9/10/2013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0402 5,410,000 - (4,290,000) (580,000) 540,000
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0402 4,470,000 - - - 4,470,000
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0402 4,470,000 - - - 4,470,000
92,750,000 6,000,000 (44,570,000) (6,580,000) 47,600,000
Weighted average exercise price 0.405 0. 550 0.405 0.404 0.423

MEFHTEE
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 30. FBRRHERTEI (48)
Details of the movements of the share options granted under REZE2013F12A31B IEFE R BIEZ
the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2013 are FrEIR RS E BT
as follows:
Number of share options
RRERE
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise price asat Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
per share 1 January during during during 31 December
Name of participants Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) 2013 the year the year the year 2013
I I
2013% 20135
BRITER 1A18 12A318
ZEAL fiad=l TiE8 (#x) e} AT £ RERRH RERTE RERKR RITE
Diectors 909/2013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0406 - 16400000 (5,200,000) - 11200000
2% 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0406 - 12300000 - - 12300000
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0406 - 12300000 - - 12300000
97102013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0402 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0402 - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0402 - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
Employees 90972013 9/9/2013 - 8/9/2016 0406 - 16000000 (2,400,000) - 13600000
g8 9/9/2014 - 8/9/2016 0406 - 12000000 - - 12000000
9/9/2015 - 8/9/2016 0406 - 12000000 - ~ 12000000
97102013 9/10/2013 - 8/10/2016 0402 - 5,960,000 (550,000) = 5,410,000
9/10/2014 - 8/10/2016 0402 - 4470000 - - 4,470,000
9/10/2015 - 8/10/2016 0402 - 4470000 - - 4,470,000
- 100900,000 (8,150,000) - 9750000
Weighted average exercise price N/A 0.405 0.406 N/A 0.405
METHTER
The number and weighted average exercise price of share R EBMAR JTEERENEE A
options exercisable at the end of reporting period are 20,330,00017 + i hN#E 5 172 (& £0.448
20,330,000 shares and HKDO0.448 (2013: 32,210,000 BT e (2013: 32,210,000 K it F 517
shares and HKDO0.405), respectively. {8 /50.405/8 7T ) °
The weighted average remaining contractual life for share R 25 HA PR 18] AR 17 150 B AR R O AN 35 Rl
options outstanding at the end of reporting period is 1.80 #RE K F Hi /1.80%F (2013%F : 2.694F ) °
years (2013: 2.69 years). The weighted average share RERNBATEBERETE B B N5
price at the dates of exercise of options during the year was I & 20.63% 7T (20134 : 0.45%8 7T ) °

HKDO.63 (2013: HKDO.45).
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The total number of securities available for issue under
the share option scheme as at 31 December 2014 was
749,704,074 shares (including options for 47,600,000
shares that have been granted but not yet lapsed or
exercised) (2013: 622,955,074 shares (including options for
92,750,000 shares that have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised)) which represented 28.1% (2013: 29.6%) of
the issued share capital of the Company at 31 December
2014,

The estimated fair value of the options granted on 9
September 2013 was HKDO0.1184 per option. The fair value
was calculated using the Black-Scholes model with Binomial
Tree method. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO0.400
Exercise price HKDO0.406
Expected volatility 43.526%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.693%
Expected dividend yield 0%

The estimated fair value of the options granted on 9 October
2013 was HKDO0.1204 per option. The fair value was
calculated using the Black-Scholes model with Binomial Tree
method. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO.400
Exercise price HKDO0.402
Expected volatility 44.015%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.545%
Expected dividend yield 0%

30. BERR & (48)

2014412 A31 B AR #5 B8 A% # 51 &) 7T 4
BT E 5 B E AT49,704,0748% B 15
(BREEERTE M RKKKETFEN
47,600,0000% % o & B8 B #E ) (2013 -
622,955,074k 7 (B IEE ER LB @R
2% Y S FE 1T {5 BN92, 750,000 F% 15 1Y BE A
) AEARRFR2014512 A31 HE &7
ANH28.1% (2013 : 29.6% ) °

R2013F9A9H BE R H AR M 5T 2 F
EBESEMNERE01IIBLE T AT EER
T3 R = XEhEM R e —&F MAT R 5t
HozBRA B ABIEMT

RiXE B BRI IR E 0.400% 7T
1TfEE 0.40678 7T
T8 HA R 18 43.526%
TEHAF A 3F
#2 [ o ) 2R 0.693%
TEHARR B & 0%

R2013¥F10H9A E R B BEM 5T 2
FEEA/ENBREC.12048 T - A FER
Ty = A 0 e — i B ET R A G
HozBRAmE ABIEMT

R B BRI AR (E 0.4007%5 75
TEE 0.4027 7T
T8 HA R 1@ 44.015%
T8 HA 4 Bf 3F
428 [ o 1) 22 0.545%
TEHARR B & 0%
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30.

168

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The estimated fair value of the options granted on 17
June 2014 was HKDO.1921 per option. The fair value was
calculated using the Black-Scholes model with Binomial Tree
method. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO.550
Exercise price HKDO.550
Expected volatility 51.087%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.771%
Expected dividend yield 0%

The volatility assumption, measured at the standard deviation
of expected share price returns, is based on a statistical
analysis of daily share prices over the last three years.

The share options granted on 9 September 2013 are subject
to the following vesting schedule:

30. MRz tEst &l (48)

R2014F6A1I7TEER B BREN G A
FEE/ENERIEC1921E T - A FEE
Ty — REHEM A N7 —&F BT A
BB ARBIRMT :

- quul= - il AR ] 0.5507 7T
1IfEE 0.55078 7©
T8 HA R 1@ 51.087%
TEETEH 3F
4% [3 B 1) 2 0.771%
TEEARR B & 0%

RIEFE R RO R EREENRIER
RIOBEBE=FFHERENRFTBED
et B/ -

R2013F9 AR R BB EAX AT 5
ERERARR :

Maximum number
of share options

exercisable
RZ T {T{#
Vesting schedule EEBERER MR HERE
From 9 September 2013 to 8 September 2014 2013F9 H9H £2014F9 A8H 40%
From 9 September 2014 to 8 September 2015 201499 H9H £2015F9 A8H 70%
From 9 September 2015 to 8 September 2016 20159 A9H £2016F9 A8H 100%
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

31.

The share options granted on 9 October 2013 are subject to
the following vesting schedule:

30. MERR & (48)

R2013F10 AR FHHMEREAS AT
BRERRR:

Maximum number
of share options

exercisable
RZOTE
Vesting schedule 5B R RS E
From 9 October 2013 to 8 October 2014 2013F10 H9H £2014F10HA8H 40%
From 9 October 2014 to 8 October 2015 201410 H9H £2015F10A8H 70%
From 9 October 2015 to 8 October 2016 2015%F 10 H9H £2016F10A8H 100%

No vesting conditions are set for the share options granted on
17 June 2014.

The fair value of share options granted is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding increase in share
options reserve within equity over the relevant vesting
periods.

The Group recognised an expense of approximately
HKD5,483,000 (2013: HKD6,387,000) for the year ended
31 December 2014 in relation to share options granted by
the Company.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which include the bank borrowings, trade and other
payables, amounts due to joint ventures, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and various
reserves.

31.

R2014F6 A17 AR EMNERIEL G RE R
B AR FEI PR 7

ERHBRENRFEEERSERK
7R T B0 AR R S R R ) A 2 R A B A MR
GOAVIEN S

HE2014%F12A31B L EE AR A K&
HB AR ([RNEE]) AR FF T A
B A% 7 1 72 7 52.5,483,00078 7t (20134 :
6,387,000/ 7T ) °

EXERER

AEEEEEEARAARBANRENEER
B S WELEERREN TE I
RECMBEEEE DR NEBEMABEK
ML EFLEESE -

AEBENEAZERBEERFHR AT
RIRTTER BH REMEMNER  BHE
BEEFR BEeMESFEYFEFRELRE
NEEAANEEER BREBETRAR
BIAfER
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31. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

31.

The Directors review the capital structure regularly. As part of

this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the

risks associated the share capital. The Group will balance its

overall capital structure through new share issues as well as

the issue of new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

The net debts-to-equity ratios at 31 December 2014 and

EXEREE (R)

EETHNENAREERRE -FREH
M—F0 EFEEREARAEBANER
PN R B\ B o 7N 6% [ 5 58 8 B AT R AR K B
THESRBERRAES FTHEERE

RIRHE -

R2014%2013F12 A31 H It FE B

2013 were as follows: FEBRITR:
Group
FEE
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FHET
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E MR RR 295,688 287,862
Amounts due to joint ventures FEfT & & EFRIE 26,427 AnLCis]
Bank borrowings RITER 465,336 379,383
Loan from non-controlling interests 153,254 -
940,705 712,179
Less: Bank balances and cash B IRTTHEB LIRS (562,362) (823,257)
Restricted bank deposit TR EIRITER (3,743) (3,843)
Pledged bank deposit BRI TIER - (57,641)
Net debts BERE 374,600 (172,562)
Equity W= 2,188,227 1,788,849
Net debts to equity ratio Bz FE 17% N/A 138 A

170 Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 M IR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A)

(B)

32. £ TR

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) ZFTEREM
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FET
Financial assets SRIEE
Loans and receivables B R FE MR R
(including bank balances and cash) (BIERTEHEIRE) 887,634 1,057,061
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEBEFAERZN
profit or loss — held for trading ERMEE—FEEER 9,545 =
Available-for-sale financial assets AEEESREE 44,888 =
Financial liabilities SR HE
Measured at amortised cost B HK AT E 784,739 558,028
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) &RiEIEEEEHERBUIR

AND POLICIES

The Group’'s major financial instruments include
amounts due from/to joint ventures, available-for-
sale investments, trading securities, trade and
other receivables, advances to customers in margin
financing, loans receivable, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, bank borrowings and loan
from non-controlling interests. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and equity price risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

(i)  Currency risk
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk.

AEENTESRITABEREK
ENAERRAA AIHHEERE

RPEH BHREMEYIRR =
HTITREESRETP BN BRE
FORTEBRLAES EHNEME
AR RITE R MK B IR i s
ER-U LRI ARNFBHNIEH
BfsT o BR ik S B T AR E R
mEEER - FMEER - EERR R
BE SRR RBRAERRR BEL
FRBHOBREHIIN T EIEE
BEREIE MR TR - R R
5 B Rt SR EUE & 18 1

(i) EEEE
AR A EE T B A B H) SN
HERBESAKREARINE
e
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

172

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

32. £ TR (&)

(B) £REMEZBEFERBIRK (&)

Currency risk (Continued) () BEEME(%E)
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying REEHR - AL EABREEE
amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and ERENNEEE N ER (B
monetary liabilities that were denominated in a BIL) EENAEBEKEER
currency (i.e. HKD) other than the functional EEAENEREEENT
currency of the relevant group entities were as
follows:
Liabilities Assets
Bi& BE
2014 2013 2014 2013
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET THET TET THT
HKD B 38,648 35,744 407,947 574,993
Sensitivity analysis B E T
The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation AEBFEETETL, BICE
in USD/HKD exchange rate. However, the foreign R BYE R o AT - BB TTIR
currency risk is not significant as HKD is pegged ETC RN - BN R B 3 S R
to USD. Zo
Interest rate risk (i) FIZERELE

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits and
loans receivable. The Directors consider the
Group's exposure to fair value interest rate risk is
not significant as interest bearing bank deposits
and loans receivable are within short maturity
periods.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank deposits,
advances from customers in margin financing
and bank borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to
keep its deposits at floating rate of interest so as
to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate arising from the Group’s
USD denominated bank deposits and HKD and
USD denominated bank loans.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming these financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

32. £RT R (&)

(B) &RMEMREZEFERBK (&)

(i)

FIEmRRE (&)
AEENRSRMNERARER
SREZBRITRERE MK
B EXBARBIARTEHER
RITERMETRETAERN
RITER -

R HT

AT S@RESTEBZENER
EHARIENTE T AR F R =&
AEMEE - NBEHRR A0
MIHREZERLANERT
AREFHWARIB MRS K
SEHAMAETEZEEABER
) R L B & BRANGOE B £
TERAEE WK EEEY
GRS =t Il R

HEREBRAT 2014FEHS ‘
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

174

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates on bank deposits and advances
to customers in margin financing had been 50
basis points (2013: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year ended 31
December 2014 would increase/decrease by
HKD1,020,000 (2013: loss decrease/increase
by HKD418,000) attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate
bank deposits and advances to customers in
margin financing. In addition, if interest rates
on bank borrowings had been 50 basis points
(2013: 50 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit
for the year ended 31 December 2014 would
decrease/increase by HKD1,943,000 (2013:
loss increase/decrease by HKD1,584,000)
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank loans.

Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

32. £ TR (&)

(B) RIEAMEEEETERBUK (&)

(i)
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HEESWT (E)

TWERIT I A R KR T IRF
CRERPZBREHA T
50X 2 (20134 : 50E 2h) « &
FTEHM] #ERS BT
Bl A 5= @ 8, 20145128311
IEFER R &M m>
1,020,000 7T (20134 : E 18
B/ 18 1n418,00058 7T ) © It
TERAEBREZEF SR
TERARRHTRESHER
2 B RFTE AT RRMBRFTE
BESh - fERITERFIR EFH R
PR50E 2 (20134F : 50K %) -
i FT 7 HAth ] 2 R B M 5 T
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 32. £ TH (%)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(iii)  Credit risk

(B) :RIEAMEEEFERBUK (&)

Segments other than financial services segment
The credit risk of these segments is primarily
attributable to its trade and other receivables,
advances to customers in margin financing and
loans receivable. In order to minimise the credit
risk, management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group had a concentration of credit risk in
relation to trade receivables of these segments
as 33% (2013: 44%) and 59% (2013: 64%) of
these segments’ total trade receivables were due
from their largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively. These receivables were
mainly within the branding, retailing and sourcing
segments.

(i) 1SEmEBE
B BRI 77 BELA 90 77 B
ZEDHNEERBREEAR
HE 5 AR et T
RECHERFP 2BRREW
EFME - A EERBRER
K AEENEREDBR—K
AEBREEEEERSE EE#]
TR EMEERF  ARERR
HURAETTE) AN BB RIS 5K - 1t
S AEB ISR IR E IR
RIEEZEENFRESEE - A
ERE L E AW B M S B
B ERE BN E - &
ERRAKENEERRE KR
MR L o

REBNAZZENBZES
BUREFRNEFEERR B
ZENBZBAREROARF
MEZERBERDIEZED
2B 5 EREREERN3Z%
(20134 : 44% ) }x59% (2013
F:64%) ZERKEREE
FEREHERE TERRED I
mo
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

176

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(iii)  Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

Financial services segment

This segment has put in place a well-established
credit policy governing the granting of credit limit
to customers. Customers are generally required
to deposit their securities, properties or other
appropriate assets with the Group as collateral to
their borrowings. The credit risks of customers
are regularly monitored with reference to the
realisable values of the collateral.

The Group had a concentration of credit risk
in relation to trade receivables, advances to
customers in margin financing and loans
receivable of this segment as 20% (2013: Nil)
and 66% (2013: Nil) of this segment’s total
receivables were due from their largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial
assets, which comprise bank balances, bank
balances held on behalf of customers, available-
for-sale financial assets, trading securities,
arises from default of the counterparties, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the operations of the
Group and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. For the Group's financial services
segment, there is a constant need of funding
for the settlement of securities transactions and
for the provision of financing and loans to the
customers.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 32. £RITH (&)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) £REMEZEBEFERBIRK (&)

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) HEELEE(E)
The following table details the Group’s TRFMAREERIEGEHNE
remaining contractual maturity for its non- HBEHIEITE SR A E R
derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed EHFEH ZRDDENRESREE
repayment terms. The table has been drawn HWARBBRR R E RIEAEE
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of ExPEMNB M - L2
financial liabilities according to the earliest date RER - BB B E BRI R T
on which the Group can be required to pay. ENgyAREREREN T
Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on RITIE I T H AR AR - H
demand clause are included in the earliest time IEFTEC BB E A TR
band regardless of the probability of the banks B ERERBE - AERIEBIE
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity FERARSHER -

dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities
are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash

flows.
Liquidity and interest risk tables B E 2 R T EE g %
On demand Carrying
Weighted or Total amount
average less than 1-3 312 More than  undiscounted at
interest rate 1 month months months 1 year cash flows  31.12.2014
R20145F
flEmE REDM KHH  12A31H2Z
FHE  PRIER 1-3f8A 3-12f8R SR-% BERSHE WRE(E
% HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
THT FHT THT FHT THT THT
2014 2014%
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiESMAR
Trade and other payables 85 REMENE - 139,722 - - - 139,722 139,722
Amounts due to joint ventures ENARLERE - 26,427 - = - 26,427 26,427
Bank borrowings - variable interest-rate  $517 & 3 — 2 &F| = 1.81 465,336 = = = 465,336 465,336
Loan from non-controlling interests REFEREZNER - - - - 153,254 153,254 153,254
631,485 - - 153,254 784,739 784,739
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

178

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

32. £ TR (&)

(B) RIEAMEEEETERBUK (&)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) REELEE ()
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued) B E 2 R FE 7% (&)
On demand Carrying
Weighted or Total amount
average less than 13 312 More than  undiscounted at
interest rate 1 month months months 1 year cashflows  31.12.2013
20136
MEmE  REAMS KR 1283187
THE  SRIUEA 1-3f8A 3128 A SR—F BEREE REE
% HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Ti#x THT Tin T Tisn Tir
2013 2013
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiELmAR
Trade and other payables BHREEMNTE - 133711 - - - 133711 133711
Amounts due to joint ventures ENAZLEE - 44,934 - - - 44,934 44,934
Bank borrowings - variable interest-rate  $517E 7 —F&)F|% 181 379,383 = = = 379,383 379,383
558,028 - - - 58008 558,028

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or less than
1 month” time band in the above maturity
analysis. As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank
loans amounted to HKD155,112,000 (2013:
HKD84,000,000). Taking into account the
Group’s financial position, the Directors do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors believe that
such bank loans will be repaid three to five years
after end of the reporting period in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows will amount
to HKD167,240,000 (2013: HKD85,617,000).
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v)

32. £ TR (4)

(B) :RIEAMEEEFERBUK (&)

Equity price risk v) REEHERE
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of AR 7S (B 15 3 g 2 48 AR AN 48 HUK
equity securities decrease as a result of changes I X A8 Bl 75 5 B B 2 B) & 5
in the levels of equity indices and the value of HR A FZEH RN FEEE T AR
individual securities. The Group was exposed to % o PA2014F12A31H » A" &
equity price risk arising from individual equity EFmEE M RAEERRIRS
investments classified as financial assets at fair DERBEREBEEATEES
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale ENSREERTHIEE SR
financial assets as at 31 December 2014. BEMNRERBRAIEE -
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to TRINTAEE ZRAIEE 2
every 5% change in the fair values of the Group’s N EESERES) 7 GURNE
equity investments, with all other variables held (FT B EM B SRETE R T
constant and before any impact on tax, based on EARIEZE)  LZER RS
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting TR ZIREERE - AT
period. For the purpose of this analysis, for the s S HEERAEE 2%
available-for-sale equity investments, the impact BREIEHRESMHREB T
is deemed to be on the investments revaluation 2 WEst REMEZE flane]
reserve and no account is given for factors such REGREEHENGR ZBRE
as impairment which might impact profit or loss B84 - K=
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in fair value before tax in equity
AFEEZ KRERNZ EHZEN
w, (L) S (ED) (iED)
% HKD'000 HKD'000
% T FHT
Investments listed in Hong Kong REBLEMZEKE
— Available-for-sale — Al HE 5% = 2,244
— At fair value through profitor loss  —#& A FEESI AR 5% 477 -
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(vi) Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities

The following tables present details of

the Group’'s financial instruments subject

to offsetting, enforceable master netting

arrangements and similar agreements.

32. 2T H (48)

(B)

ERIEIREEESERBUIR (&)

i) HHEHEERLHMER

TREJNAKEA THREZE
BT A - ISR FI 1T < AR
B2 MEL =

Financial assets subject to offsetting

TIPS EMEE

GILE

Related amounts not
offset in the statement of
financial position

BERMBRRZRHZ
HEeE
Gross Net
amount of amount of
recognised financial
financial assets
Gross liabilities presented Financial
amount of  offset in the inthe instruments
recognised  statement of  statement of other Cash
financial financial financial than cash collateral Net
assets position position collateral received amount
REBREZ RMBRRZ Heff&
R WECHED 232 sz BB
SHEELE SHMAREE SRSESH &MIR sl FH
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TAL FHL TiEn TAL T TiEn
At 31 December 2014 #2014%12R318
Type of financial assets EREESRS
Trade receivable from HKSCC REBALEL
B ENER 19,872 (19,872) - - - -
At 31 December 2013 M2013F12A31R
Type of financial assets SREEES
Trade receivable from HKSCC REBBEEL
EVTLETH - - - - - -
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(vi) Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities (Continued)

32. £RT R (&)

(B) :RIEAMEEEETERBUK (&)

vi) HHEHEERESHMER

(4)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting

TFRHZ AR

Related amounts not
offset in the statement of
financial position

BERMBRRREHZ
HEeE
Gross Net
amount of amount of
recognised financial
financial liabilities
Gross assets presented Financial
amount of  offset in the inthe instruments
recognised  statement of  statement of other Cash
financial financial financial than cash collateral Net
liabilities position position collateral received amount
REBRAR REBRAR HRelkNs
Bl REEHED 232 sz EkHE
SHARAE SMAEGE SMARTE £MIA izl )
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHT TAL TR TATL THL TR
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A318
Type of financial liabilities SRAREE
Trade payable from HKSCC REBBEEZ
B SEMAER 20,428 (19,872) - - - 556
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12A31R
Type of financial liabilties tREESRA
Trade payable from HKSCC REEBEEZ
EVTETA - - - - - -
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

182

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(vi) Offsetting financial assets and financial (vi)

liabilities (Continued)

The tables below reconcile the amounts of

trade and other receivables and trade and

32. £ TR (&)

(B) &REAMEEEERBK (&)

HHEHEERSHME R

(4)

TRARGAMBIN K2
SIARKE 28 5 R E AR

other payables of the Group as presented in the KREE S KA ENRRERE
consolidated statement of financial position: ZEER
Trade and other receivables B Z R A MEKRN
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHEIT T T
Net amount of trade receivables REBBEEZ
from HKSCC B 5 RWARFUF R - -
Trade and other receivables not NEHREHREE 2
in the scope of offsetting disclosure B 5 & H IR AR5k 116,579 104,757
Trade and other receivables REMEARARIER 2
as disclosed in the consolidated B 5 K E b e AR K
statement of financial position 116,579 104,757
Trade and other payables B 5 RAMEN RN
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’'000
TFH#IT T
Net amount of trade payables from REBBEE
HKSCC B S REMBEIFR 556 -
Trade and other payables not NEHREREREE 2
in the scope of offsetting disclosure B 5 N E b FE T AR K 295,132 287,862
Trade and other payables REMIEARRARATIEE 2
as disclosed in the consolidated 2 5 R H M RER RS
statement of financial position 295,688 287,862
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(C) FAIR VALUE
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices (level 1); and

o the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities included in the level 2 and
level 3 categories are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis with the most
significant inputs being the discount rate that
reflects the credit risk of counter parties.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 M IR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It FE

32. £RT R (&)

(C©) AFEE
TREEREBABENATHERIEZ
TIRKREE

o WA MBI SR
MBMBRZNEMEENR
FEEDSENSGMHNEA
BERELE (BRI MEE: &

s HMERMEENRSRABHNA
FEE(BERBH2MERI)
TR B RN TE BRAIRR
BRSROMB/EERKEKN
ZEABBARBRYESEER
RZRBRERETE -

EERR REAMBRRIZEIHENX
AARNEREENSRAGENERE
ERAENQFEERSE-
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(C) FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, all grouped into Level 1, based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurements. Level 1 fair
value measurements are those derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical

32. £ TR (&)

(©)

AFEE(F)
BRI BRI B ey 22 F (R (BT

=
TRASBMTAEARNARNFEERE
RzEmtE (MEHRERFEE

FEEFEHABEMRESERL
D BRINFEEBFETDRE
AR EERRBOE BT S+ HRE
(CREFE) S

assets.
Group
AEE
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET T T
Level 1 E—RR
Available-for-sale financial assets — listed AtHESmEE— ™ 44,888 -
Fair value through profit or BEATEBEIAEBRZ
loss financial assets — listed ScREE— L™ 9,545 =
54,433 -

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of potential tax liabilities in connection with the
disagreement with the IRD and potential penalty arising from
the late filing of PRC tax returns, if any, are detailed in Note
7.
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34. OPERATING LEASES 4. EEHE
THE GROUP AS LESSEE XEEABERBEA

The Group made the following minimum lease payments
during the year as follows:

AEERFRELEA T REBEFTR

2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’'000
TET FHT

Operating lease rentals in respect of: LTIHEEMEEHERS:

Minimum lease payments: (KA E IR

— office o YNES 8,810 7,245
— retail shops —ZTEE 5,478 2,848
Contingent rentals A ® 5,490 13,021
19,778 23,114
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had MR EBR  REBAESNMREEAET
commitments for future minimum lease payments for plants AECHMEESHENHmEMNEERHENAR

and retail shops under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:

REEEEHE EEHABHSTWT

2014 2013

HKD’000 HKD’000

FET FETT

Within one year —FR 1,018 2,469
In the second to fifth year, inclusive E_FFRERF

(BREEEMTE) 59 49

1,077 2,518

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the
Group for certain of its retail shops. Leases are negotiated for

45 I

o

lease terms of one to three years.

REMEFRDEAEERNESETEE
BENES HOKHEER—ZELFT
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34.

186

OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

THE GROUP AS LESSEE (CONTINUED)

The above lease commitments represent basic rents only
and do not include contingent rents payable in respect of
certain retail shops leased by the Group. In general, these
contingent rents are calculated with reference to the relevant
retail shops’ turnover using pre-determined formulae. It is
not possible to estimate in advance the amount of such
contingent rent payable.

THE GROUP AS LESSOR
Property rental income earned during the year was
HKD15,567,000 (2013: HKD7,262,000). Investment
properties held for rental purposes have committed tenants
for the next two to three years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease

34.

HEHS (])

FEEARBEA (&)

LRAEAEEEEAES  BTEEAE
BHENETETERHNENKREE -
—BME ZEXRAEEH2EHETE
BN EERERAELEENEAFE
SRGENARIAE SNSRI A

7o

FREAHBA

FA - FEYE D AKRALR15,567,0008
7T (2013 : 7,262,000/ ) ° BO R SR M 4F -
RIEMEREMRENMEEBRINMES -

AEEAHBEA (B)RBEHR ~EE
HEPFIARREHREFRRSQWT :

payments:

2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’'000
THET FHT
Within one year —FR 33,836 5,730

In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_FEFRF
(BREEEMSE) 35,808 -
69,644 5,730
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35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

35. EARKIE

Group
xEE
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHEIT T T
Contracted for but not provided BHAETIL A4 R E
— Capital expenditure in respect of —BEREDE - BE R
the acquisition of property, AR E Y 5
plant and equipment and BN G-V - LS
construction of property, - i N
plant and equipment/
investment properties - -
Authorised but not contracted for FHACIRERLRIIIEH
— Capital expenditure in respect of —BAEEYE  KE &
the construction of property, R EMER
plant and equipment/ WE— Rtz
investment properties and BEARFAE
acquisition of a piece of land - -
36. UNDERWRITING COMMITMENTS 36. BLEHRIE
Group
AEH
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
Name of Clients EANESE FHET T
Company A NAEA 40,320 =
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37.

188

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, under the control of trustees. The
Group contributes 5% or HKD1,500 in maximum of relevant
payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees.

The subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the government of the PRC. The retirement scheme
contributions, which are based on a certain percentage of the
salaries of the relevant subsidiaries’ employees, are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
the period to which they relate and represent the amount of
contributions payable by these subsidiaries to the scheme.

The Group also participates in defined contribution
retirement schemes organised by the relevant local
government authorities in other jurisdictions where the
Group operates. Certain employees of the Group eligible
for participating in the retirement schemes are entitled to
retirement benefits from the schemes. The Group is required
to make contributions to the retirement schemes up to
the time of retirement of the eligible employees, excluding
those employees who resigned before their retirements, at a
percentage that is specified by the local governments.
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37. B AREFIFTE

AEBRMARBEENAEREENT—
HEFIEAEEAE ([ERTE]) -4
BEFrEMEERAKBNEEDHER
YHEFAZRHNESHB - AKEEH
FE A E T & A A BI5% 5K & = 11,5007 TT 1
RBREEFEHK MEENEABMAES
PR o

ARRRPEOE AR AP EBRAFLE
A B 5 B B AR IR AR A R BUAK B - e R KA
MR IREAMBAREENTIENS
TEDLFE XNEREBAS L FHE
DA RAG B ERET RS 2EK

B

AEET2EAEE KL EEBHEMBDE
FE [ B AR A 1t 77 DR B0 P & SRE (SRR
AR AKETAERS MR ENE
TREBRZERZEFENEMRER A
SEAREHBRRENBD L RRAZF
RAFEELHER BEERABEKREBRERNK
/Ll PEERERARGREINERES -



38. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(A)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

During the year, the Group entered into the following

transactions with its joint ventures:

38. BEAN TS

(A) BAEAEXS

FR AEEEESEEEETUT

R

2014 2013

HKD’000 HKD’000

Nature T FHET TFHIT
Sales $HE - 156
Interest income A EUA = 472
Rental income e WA - 490

During the year, the Group entered into the following

transactions with a Director, who is also a substantial

FRAEEE-ZEZ(HTAX
RAZ—HBEIERR) HEBRE

shareholder of the Company, his spouse and a ZEHlZ —RAREISNUATR S
company controlled by him:
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
Nature HE THET T
Commission income A A 423 =
Interest income FE WA 186 -
Commission rebate Uil I (300) -
Total amount of margin financing ETRECMELHZ
facilities granted B 13,000 =

These transactions also constitute connected

transactions as defined under the Listing Rules, and

those that are not exempted from disclosures in

accordance with the Listing Rules are set out in the

section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”

in the Corporate Governance Report.

ZER S IMERK LT AR RIA T AT RE
ZEER S MRE TR TER
RIFEBBEZR AN EEE RS

(FERERS | —Hfi-
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38. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 38. FAEANLTHEE (18)
(CONTINUED)
(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT (B) =EEEASFHM
PERSONNEL
The remuneration of the Directors and other members FAN EENHEMETEZEREABNE
of key management during the year was as follows: Bz T
2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET T T
Short-term benefits 55 BitE 7 17,464 19,939
Post-employment benefits KIHEAREET 584 531
18,048 20,470
The remuneration of the Directors and key executives EERFETEBAEBNTMIIBES
is determined by the Board of Directors having regard ZRERRBEETHBEMEE -
to the performance of the individuals and market
trends.
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39. RESERVES 39. &
COMPANY AATF
Share
Share Contributed options Retained
premium surplus reserve profits Total
I 3k (8 BEARE BRERE BERH @t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TET THT TR AT THT
At 31 January 2013 20131 H31H 362,735 586,774 - 215,450 1,164,959
Share-based payment PABR AR 3 £+ - - 6,387 = 6,387
Exercise of share options (Note 30) 1768 BEA%#2 (FI7E30) 3,457 - (966) - 2,491
Issue of shares under placement BEREETRG
(Note 29) (fH$29) 220,500 - - - 220,500
Share issue expenses B TR (8,027) - - - (8,027)
Profit for the year FERF - - - 160,845 160,845
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12A31H 578,665 586,774 5421 376,295 1,547,155
Share-based payment PARR AR X £+ - = 5,483 = 5,483
Exercise of share options (Note 30)  {7{B B& A4 (Fff£30) 18,903 - (5,290) - 13,613
Share issue expenses RIDBITR Y (455) - - - (455)
Lapse of share options BRI R - - (644) 644 =
Issue of shares as considerations e RURBEHT B 2 A&
for acquisition of subsidiaries REMETNRD
(Note 29) (PE29) 327,885 - = = 327,885
Loss for the year FEBE - = = (119,343) (119,343)
924,998 586,774 4,970 257,596 1,774,338

HeREBRASE 2014FERE
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39. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

The following describes the nature and purpose of each
reserve within owners’ equity of the Group:

39. f#fE (48)

TXHRAAEEER B AR NS R
MMERER:

Reserve Description and purpose
Contributed Contributed surplus of approximately
surplus HKD63,561,000 represents the

Share premium

excess of the fair value of the shares

of the subsidiaries acquired and the
nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued for the acquisition at the
time of the group reorganisation on 9
February 1995. The remaining balance
of approximately HKD523,213,000
represents the implementation of capital
reduction in 2012 pursuant to which
the par value of each existing share if
HKDO.50 each in the issued capital of
the Company were reduced by HKDO0.40
each.

Amount subscribed for share capital in
excess of nominal value.

Properties Gains/losses arising on the revaluation
revaluation of properties (other than investment
reserve properties). The balance of this reserve is

wholly undistributable.

Investments Gains/losses arising on the revaluation
revaluation of available-for-sale investments.
reserve The balance of this reserve is wholly

undistributable.

Translation Gains/losses arising on retranslating
reserve the net assets of foreign operations into

Retained profits

Share options
reserve

presentation currency.

Cumulative net gains and losses
recognised in profit or loss.

Cumulative expenses recognized on
the granting of share options to the
employee over the vesting period.
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40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

(A) CRITICAL JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(i) Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties
The Group has developed criteria which require
judgements to determine whether a property
qualified as an investment property. Investment
property is a property held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property
generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are
attributable not only to property but also to other
assets used and service provided. If an entity
provides ancillary services to the occupants of a
property it holds, an entity treats such a property
as investments property only if the services are
insignificant to the arrangement as a whole.

40. EEFHTHEN R At FABER
B E E KR

ERBASE 2 ST HRE  ERAUEZX
HEMREEMcEERABZREEE
TTHIE ~ fEFT R RR - BFF RARBRR IR
BEELERNMEMARBAIEARRE -
ERGEREZZ[AER -

Bt REERR DA EEERE - W
st ERERX R MRERE
BT < MR A TERER] RIS ET R
EXRMPCREERE - AR A BELERT R
AREBEGAERBRRER]

(A) FEREBRZERFHER
(i) REYFEERYFEERSE

AEEEHEEENERE S
BRIERIEMEMTHE %
Al- REMERARBESHE
RIBEHMERFMEHG 2D
X-Fi NEERS ZME
ELEERERE  RAREDR
RAKEBAZHMEETLE -

ETARMEMRRZIRER
ENEREMERS - RE IR
BATER M EEMATIRH
2R - BRI E A
BH IR - (ERZERGEE
BLHmE W TERE - BEEA

BRMERNEMSE-
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40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

194

(A) CRITICAL JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties (Continued)
Included in the Group's prepaid lease payments
and buildings of approximately HKD284,766,000
and HKD329,051,000 are the land and building
portions, respectively, of an outlet mall in the
PRC. Based on the mode of operation of the
outlet mall, in particular, that income earned is
largely dependent on the performance of the
retail business of the occupants and the Group
has the power to make significant operating and
financing decisions regarding the operation of
the Property, management is of the opinion that
the Property is in the nature of owner-occupied
properties under existing use for accounting
pUrposes.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial
assets

The Directors follow the guidance of HKAS 39
to review available-for-sale investments at the
end of each reporting period to assess whether
they are impaired. This determination requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement,
the Directors evaluate, among other factors,
historical share price movements and the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost, and the financial
health of and near-term business outlook for the
investee, including factors such as industry and
sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow.
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40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY
The following are the key assumptions concerning

the future, and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have

a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year:

(i)

Estimated impairment of interests in joint
ventures

The determination of whether interests in joint
ventures are impaired requires an estimation of
the share of present value of the estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated by the
investees and the proceeds on ultimate disposal
of the investments, and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. Adequate
impairment loss had been recognised to the
extent that the recoverable amounts exceed the
carrying amount of the interests in joint ventures.

40. T XS FIEN R b5t FEARE R
BIEZKIE (48)

(B) T FHAMERMERRE

HARKE) E Z BB RN HEHREFT
TRARRENEMEZERR (P RE
HTEMREFEEERBBENRA
BEHRARARNEARRER)Htn
T

(i) REELEEZHEGEHE

BENGELEERSTRE
FEREFEMREER KK
FREEXZRESREMREERRK
REEZREN S RAEM
RRFTEERE - HEIRARRER
EREBONREM  BIRIEELE
RNBERR - Brl BB
RAEEbEEanikmE: BB
MR R AR BERIE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included
in the Group’s financial statements require
measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group's
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
utilises market observable inputs and data as far
as possible. Inputs used in determining fair value
measurements are categorised into different
levels based on how observable the inputs used
in the valuation technique utilised are (the “fair
value hierarchy”):

° Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

o Level 2: Observable direct or indirect
inputs other than Level 1 inputs;

o Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not
derived from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels
is based on the lowest level of the inputs used
that has a significant effect on the fair value
measurement of the item. Transfers of items
between levels are recognised in the period they
occur.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It FE

40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iii)

Fair value measurement (Continued)
The Group measures a number of items at fair
value:

o Revalued land and buildings — Property,
Plant and Equipment (Note 12);

o Investment properties (Note 13);

° Available-for-sale investments (Note 17);

° Trading securities (Note 24); and

o Financial instruments (Note 32)

For more detailed information in relation to the
fair value measurement of the items above,
please refer to the applicable notes.

Income and other taxes

The Group is subject to income and other
taxes in a number of jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. Transactions and
calculations may exist for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

40. EEEFTHEN R A5t FRABER
BIEZKIE (48)

(B) T FHAMERMERRE

(48)

(i) LFEEHE(EF)
AEBUATEBENENTIEA
g ¢

s EHEftHEEF-ME-
55 Kk i (B REL2)

o  WEWE (KIFE13)

e TWHIEFEEKXRE (M
17) :

. BErm (ME24) « &
e  TRIE (ME32):

RERER R FEEFENE
—HFE FLRMERNE-

(i) Fif7#HREMHIE
REBEEHMNZ ERDERESE 2
FrAS T R A M FRIE - (EEEE AT
BB AEL EAHE - £ 6
BEKIBREFR  ATREFEEREKH
THEPAREENR S RETHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)
(iv) Deferred tax assets

v)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

Trademarks

Trademarks that are acquired through
business combination are capitalised on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
These trademarks are valued on acquisition
using a discounted cash flow methodology and
we make assumptions and estimates regarding
future revenue growth, prices, marketing
costs and economic factors in valuing them.
These assumptions reflect the directors’ best
estimates but these estimates involve inherent
uncertainties, which may not be controlled by the
directors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

40. EEEFTHEN R A5t FRABER
BIEZKIE (48)

40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (B) fhstAEABEZENEERIRE
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED) (&

v)

Trademarks (Continued)

Upon acquisition the directors assess the useful
economic life of the trademarks. In arriving at
the conclusion that a trademark has an indefinite
life, the directors consider the fact that the Group
is expected to hold and support the trademarks
for an indefinite period, through spending on
consumer marketing and promotional support,
which is deducted in arriving at revenue. The
trademarks are established over many years
and continue to provide considerable economic
benefits. The directors also consider factors such
as the Group’s ability to continue to protect the
legal rights that arise from these trademarks
indefinitely or the absence of any regulatory,
economic or competitive factors that could
truncate their lives.

A strategic decision to withdraw marketing
support from trademarks or the weakening
trademarks’ appeal through changes in
customer preferences might result in the
directors concluding that the trademarks’ lives
had become finite. Were intangible assets to
be assigned a definite life, a charge would be
recorded that would reduce reported profit
from operations and reduce the value of the
assets reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

w)

R (&)

RIEREE  EFHMR 2 ERF
HETTRHE - REBEBEAR T
HEFH Amis EFRR/AN
SEBHRT#EHRB AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 40. T EEGHFIEN R AT RARREER
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION BMEZKRE (E)
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (B) st FEABBE RN EERIRE

UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED) (48)

(vi) Impairment of trade and other receivables i) EBZREMEKIERE
The Group estimates the impairment allowances REBRBEERSERETT
for trade and other receivables by assessing TS E 5 I H A FE YR IE B
the recoverability based on credit history and AT EE - AT E 5 R HAL
prevailing market conditions. This requires the FEWGRIE R R E R < EZR 2 1E
use of estimates and judgements. Allowances A ET R FIET - WA BB R
are applied to trade and other receivables where B8 S AR FOR AR IR E - BilE
events or changes in circumstances indicate FE 5 & H U R IB AT IR
that the balances may not be collectible. Where 15 - (W BRI E 5) Fe Hoh FE YRR
the expectation is different from the original R EI SR R e N
estimate, such difference will affect the carrying FHREZERERETEE I REM
amounts of trade and other receivables and FEWGIBRRE R - M2
thus the impairment loss in the period in which A2 R BRMREEE &~ %
such estimate is changed. The Group reassesses B0 % B R E A AT E
the impairment allowances at the end of each A o

reporting period.

‘ Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

41. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

On 1 January 2015, the Group entered into an
purchase agreement and pursuant to which the Group
conditionally agreed to acquire an additional 12%
equity interest in a non wholly-owned subsidiary, /& F%
EHEA B E AR A A(“Shenyang Keenson”) from
its non controlling shareholder for a consideration of
RMB22,300,000 (equivalent to HKD27,800,000).
After this acquisition, Shenyang Keenson remained
as a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and in the acquisition is to be accounted for as an
equity transaction in the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

On 3 February 2015, the Group entered into an
disposal agreement and pursuant to which the Group
has agreed to dispose of PONY Trademark in the
United States, Mexico and Canada for a consideration
of USD30,000,000 (equivalent to HKD232,500,000)
and USD7,000,000 (equivalent to HKD54,300,000)
respectively. This transaction was completed on the
same date.

42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

41. REHEEIE

(a)

(b)

R20155F1A18  AEBFI M — 0B
Bpa Bt AEEC A RGRE
[[) — [ 3 2 & P B 1 B) )% 5 122 7 B
EEXERAR (DEGER]) 23k
2R AR UL B SR 5 3 3 2 12% FR MK
& R E R AR 22,300,0007T (48
& 727,800,000 7T ) © Pt 1% -
BEEFNARNARZIFEEMBER
A M KRB E R AR E 2 56 55
BRAARINBERAR S -

20152 A3R AL BRI HE R
& B ASEERESBIUKE
30,000,000 7T, ( #8& 7232,500,000
¥ 75 ) % 7,000,000 ¢ (H & R
54,300,000/ 7T, ) i & PONYR ZE B -
BERFTRMNEREE X ZHERE
H7ERK

42. R B AT ER

Company
AT

2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHEIT FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LTRG-S 988 988
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE Uk B /B8 A B 5R I8 2,201,420 1,679,336
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN =GR 90,633 (279,661)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 IR KA 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-

free and in substance, represent part of the Company's

investments in the subsidiaries.

Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

42. R BABIMER (8)

FEUHBARREAREER REREE
ERERRBRMBRRNEIRE

ENHBARRESERR R 8 NAR

DR{EE-

20144 k201312 H31H - A Al H) £

BHBARREDOT:

Place of
incorporation/ Paid up Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
A, AATREERT/
HEBAS B REEHE ERR 81T/ BiERE BiRAFRER TEEH
2014 2013
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
E# % B i
Canray Int'l Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Footwear trading
RBRAHS LaRIET EEES
Cashmaster Profits Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Footwear trading
ABRLES LaRIET ERES
Cosmo Group Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USD10,000 100% - 100% - Investment holding
EBRAHE %iAMR10,000% T REER
Misto Worldwide Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
EBRLES LaRIET REER
Power Plus Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
EBRAHE LERIET REER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31 8 It FE

42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 42. B ASINIHERE (&)

(CONTINUED)

Place of

incorporation/ Paid up Effective interest in issued/

registration issued/registered registered capital held
Subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities

AL, KARBHERT/
MEBAST B REEHE EME #1T/ BRE BilkAANER TEEH

2014 2013
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
EE e B i

Premier Ever Group Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USD63,068,127 - 62.5% - 62.5%  Investment holding

EERAES L 1%63,068,127% T REER
Rivergold International Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary USD78,364,080 - 70% - 6592% Investment holding

EBELHS T AR78,364,080% 7T REZR
BHRERTENE PRC (wholly owned ~ Registered capital = 70% - 6592%  Property investment

REBRAR foreign enterprise) ~ USD70,766,000 MEEE
HE (S EEE & 470,766,000 T
%)

ELENHAEXERAR PRC Registered capital - 51.04% - 83% Investment holding

H USD42,500,000 REZR

1 & 442,500,000 7T
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RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 42. RMBATINER (5)

(CONTINUED)
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
AL, KABRBHERT/
HEBAST B REEHE EME #T/ BiLRE BikAANER EEED
2014 2013
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
EE el B i
BHEREEXER AR PRC (Wholly owned  Registered capital - 58% - 100%  Investment holding
foreign enterprise)  USD18,300,000 REZR
HE (SMEBE 1 & 718,300,000 7T
%)
BHEHAEEER AT PRC (Wholly owned  Registered capital - 625% - 625%  Operation and
foreign enterprise) USD9,800,000 management of
mE (SEEE & 789,800,000% 7T Outlet mall
%) RERNEERER
China Rise Finance Group Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10,000 - 100% - - Investment holding
Company Limited Bk 3 A%10,0007% 7T REER
China Rise Securities Asset Hong Kong Ordinary HKD50,000,000 - 100% - - Securities broking,
Management Company B8 3% 1%50,000,000/ 7T provision of
Limited (formerly known margin and
as China Rise Securities other financing,
Company Limited) underwriting and
placing services,
consultancy,
advising on
securities and
asset management
FREE R
FREE RAM
BE BHKEE
R & dR
EE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NSEIEEE e

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

42. R BA BN ER (8)

(CONTINUED)
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up Effective interest in issued/
registration issued/registered registered capital held
Subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
s/ FADREERT/
HEAS BRRGERYE  EHE/ B/ BERE BRRAHRES EEED
2014 2013
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
Ef GifE B flt
China Rise Capital Co., Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKD5,000,000 - 100% - - Investment holding,
EEEABRAA B 37 A%5,000,0007% 7 and provision
of consultancy
and insurance
brokerage services
RAER R
BRI IR %
China Rise Finance Co., Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10,000 - 100% - - Provision of money
EERKERAA B8 T BA% 10,0005 7T lending services
REEERS
Trillion Earning Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USD1 - 100% - - Investment holding
EERAES LERIET REER
Worldwide Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100% - - Property investment
BB &38A%10,000% 7T NERE
SERAFERMERAG  Taiwan Ordinary TWD50,000,000 - 100% = - Operation and
= T BA E A 50,000,000 management of
Duty-Free Shops
BERERARGE

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt security at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

2

P AN [ R 3 AR 4F T AR AAT s R 0 - 1 A8 B
B RFEBITEMEBRD -

]

%%%87% C ERFAFM AR BINE AR S
BYEAREXREUEENLREF

ARWREHEEMHBATNFHAENSE

HMBRREMBYBR TR
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RO RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Premier Ever Group Limited (“Premier Ever”) and Shenyang
Keenson, 62.5% and 51.04% owned subsidiaries of the
Company respectively (2013: 62.5% and 88% respectively),
has material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). The NCI of all
other subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by the group are
considered to be immaterial.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of
Premier Ever and Shenyang Keenson, before intra-group
eliminations, is presented below:

43. FEFERHERS

RNRANF DRI EB62.5%K%51.01%H 3%
2 [t B A & Premier Ever Group Limited
([Premier Ever | ) R/BI5 & B HEBR
A (DEBEH]) (2013 - 5 5l /62.5%
K88%iE ) B EAM TR ([3F
TRt ]) cWIHBHAEBEEREE 2T
B HAM B R R 2 EE R R TR A 3E
PN

A B8 Premier Ever N2 &[5 2 3T v FEIERR RS
ZHEERBE (RIEEEARQRIFEE)
TR T2 :

SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL MBIRRRBE
POSITION
Premier Ever Shenyang Keenson
ERRH
As at 31 December As at 31 December
#12A31H ®12A31H
2014 2013 2014 2013
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
TERT TAT TET FHET
Current e
Assets EE 42,551 110,646 428 42
Liabilities af (33,435) (51,300) (64,393) (63,803)
9,116 59,346 (63,965) (63,761)
Non-current R
Assets EE 652,243 672,908 320,015 328,541
Liabilities afE (42,700) (42,701) - -
609,543 630,207 320,015 328,541
Net assets AEFE 618,659 689,553 256,050 264,780
Accumulated non-controlling interests RET R ER 182,599 238,994 31,235 32,301
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RO RERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It FE

43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 43. FEFERHERS (48)
(CONTINUED)
SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE Z2EERRBE
INCOME
Premier Ever Shenyang Keenson
EHRH
As at 31 December As at 31 December
®12A31H ®12A31H
2014 2013 2014 2013
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FEL FHT THL
Revenue EEDE 23,198 12,226 = =
Loss before income tax B TS Bl 18 (61,746) (62,016) (1,877) (3,755)
Income tax expense B - (2,395) - =
Loss for the year FEBE (61,746) (64,411) (1,877) (3,755)
Other comprehensive income Hp2mEbA (9,149) 27,396 (6,854) 12,228
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FE 2 EWALE (70,895) (37,015) (8,334) (8,473)
Loss allocated to non-controlling interests D2 FIERERAE 2 2 B518 (22,033) (23,954) (229) (458)
The information above shows amounts before inter-company LA BERBERREERARRREHE S
eliminations. EHo
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(CONTINUED)

43. FEiERxtEm (48)

SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS HEREaREUE
Premier Ever Shenyang Keenson
EBEH
As at 31 December As at 31 December
®12A318 R12A31H
2014 2013 2014 2013
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FTERT TAT FHT THT
Cash (used in)/generated from operations ~ (FAR) /REKEEHHE L (43,573) (42,619) 368 1,870
Income tax paid BFFTEH - (2,453) - -
Net cash (used in)/generated (AR) /REEEESE
from operating activities ReFE (43,573) (45,072) 368 1,870
Cash flow from investing activities REREEDHZHLRE
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities MR B EBHIE & /%5 (21,460) (42318) 1 (85,169)
Cash flow from financing activities REMEEDHRLTE
Net cash from financing activities RERMEEHNRLFE = 71,925 = 82,167
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and Re LB e EEY
cash equivalents CRd) /EmFeE (65,033) (15,465) 369 (1,132)
Cash and cash equivalents FNHReRRLEEY
at beginning of year 99,196 114,789 42 723
Effect of exchange rate changes P “E“ﬂﬁé&
on cash and cash equivalents ZENMTE 45 (128) 16 452
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year EXBEL KB ELEEY 34,208 99,196 427 43

The loan from non-controlling interest is unsecured, interest-
free and has no fixed term of repayment. The non-controlling
interest has no intention to exercise its right to demand
repayment of the loan within the next twelve months from
the end of the reporting period. The Directors believe the
settlement of the loan is not likely to occur in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the amount is classified as a non-current
liability.
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44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 M IR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

As referred to in Note 8(D), on 31 August 2013, the
Group disposed of its subsidiaries Yi Ming which is
principally engaged in footwear manufacturing and one
of the major components of the Group. The net assets
of Yi Ming at the date of disposal were as follows:

(a)

44, HEMBAE

a0 BT FE8(D)FF it - 1201348 A31
H AEEHEEFENEEHERE
ZHBRARIBRARAEE EF—E
TERMH -EARNLEBRZEETF
(ERUNNE

HKD'000
FHIT

Net assets disposed of: HEEEFHE:
Property, plant and equipment L E N L] 78,377
Available-for-sale investments AIHHERE 2
Deferred tax assets EERIHE B 130
Inventories FE 213,892
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H At e I BR X 413,113
Pledged bank deposits BEFIRITFR 125,878
Bank balances and cash R1TEBR MR 13,268
Trade and other payables g5 R HMERRK (296,769)
Shareholders’ loan R R E (216,092)
Bank borrowings RITEE (118,574)
Tax payable e FLIE (19,128)
Deferred tax liabilities EIETIAE B (3,454)
Non-controlling interests VTR R = (4,636)
186,007
HKD’000
FH& T
Consideration RE 436,045
Less: Repayment of shareholders’ loan i BRI E K (216,092)
Net assets disposed of HEZEFE (186,007)
Release of translation reserve e 82,144
Gain on disposal & 2 Was 116,090
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B IR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

44. HEMBAE ()

(a) (Continued) @@ (&)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash EHHE—ZRMBARZES MRS
equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary ZEMZFRADHAT
was as follows:
HKD'000
T
Cash consideration RERE 436,045
Consideration receivables e E (6,846)
Bank balances and cash disposed of HERTEKREES (13,268)
Repayment to a non-controlling interest BETIHERER (2,796)
413,135
(b) During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group (b) #ZE2013F12A318EFER K&

also disposed of some other subsidiaries. The net
assets of these subsidiaries at the date of disposal were

as follow:

BN EE THMAK B AR - ZFH
BRARANLERZEEFENT

HKD'000
T

Net assets disposed of: HEEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment Y BB MR 422
Investment properties WE Y 21,541
Intangible assets EEEE 38,758
Club debentures SHES 1,553
Inventories FE 1,258
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H At e I BR X 7,757
Amount due from a related company JEW—REE R FFKIA 2,893
Bank balances and cash RITEHARS 6,138
Trade and other payables E 5 R EH MR (6,686)
Amount due to a related company JET — R E A R IR (25,212)
Shareholders’ loan REER (19,658)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBEE (5,359)
23,405
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H It FE

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 44, HEMB AT (4)
(CONTINUED)
(b)  (Continued) by (&)
HKD’000
FET
Consideration RE 48,549
Less: Repayment of shareholders’ loan i (EERRE K (19,658)
Net assets disposed of HEZEEFE (23,405)
Release of translation reserve i bR B R 1,865
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H &S B A B s 7,351
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash ERHEZENBARIZEERIRE
equivalents in respect of the disposal of these EEMZFRADHAT
subsidiaries was as follows:
HKD’000
FHET
Cash consideration HeRE 48,549
Consideration receivables JEURK (B (21,415)
Bank balances and cash disposed of HERITEHRERS (6,138)
20,996
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fr O B 5 HR R Pfd 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 30 April 2014, the Group completed an acquisition
of 100% equity interests in Jin Dragon Holdings
Limited (“Jin Dragon”), for a cash consideration of
approximately HKD20,877,000 and consideration
share of 261,000,000 shares of the Company. The
total consideration of approximately HKD167,037,000
includes the consideration for the purchase of the
shareholder’s loan owed by Jin Dragon to the vendor of
approximately HKD103,000,000. The acquisition was
made as the Directors believe the growth prospects for
financial services business are bright and can widen
the Group's revenue base. The goodwill arising from
the acquisition of Jin Dragon is mainly attributable to
the financial services expertise and skills of employees
of Jin Dragon that will bring to the Group.

45. SRt B 2 ]

(a)

201454 A30H @ A~ &= B ek LA TR
% 1B 4920,877,0007% 7T R AL B AL AR
261,000,000/ 78 2~ A A 17 Y s & &
ZIRARDA ([EFEL) 2100%M
- BB X R167,037,000/8 7T B
EREERRNET ZBRRERLY
103,000,000/ 7T - WEERE RE =R
REBRBEBERANICH AIHA
RASEBAER - WBEREELLZ
BEIZREAEERES  EREER
TES B AR B AR R Be

HKD'000
T

Fair value of assets and liabilities acquired: FrEEERBEATEE:
Property, plant and equipment Y B R 216
Intangible assets mEEE 599
Deferred tax assets EET IR & E 18
Statutory deposits for financial business B E TS HEE 5K 200
Trade and other receivables E 5 Kk E AU ER TR 14,904
Advances to customers in margin financing RETRESRERFE ZEXK 21,254
Loans receivable U E X 70,000

Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RIS

— held on behalf of customers —REFFE 13,541
Bank balances and cash RITEHRER S 26,504
Trade and other payables B 5 M EMEMERR (14,249)
Tax payables FES IR (1,540)
131,447
Goodwill 5 35,590
167,037
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8 M IR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

45. WSk B A E] (4)

(CONTINUED)
(a) (Continued) (&)
HKD’000
FET
Total consideration satisfied by: BREEMFRX:
Cash consideration HeRE 20,877
Fair value of consideration shares REBRNOAFEE 146,160
167,037
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEEEZHRESRAFE:
Cash consideration ReRE (20,877)
Bank balances and cash acquired Pl BB R1THESHR R IRE 26,504
5,627

The fair value of the 261,000,000 consideration shares
issued as part of the consideration paid for the vendor
was determined on the basis of the closing market
price of the Group’s ordinary shares on the acquisition
date.

The fair value of loans receivable, advances to
customers in margin financing and trade and other
receivables, equivalent to its gross contractual amount
as shown above, is considered as fully recoverable.

Loss for the year from continuing operations includes
a profit of approximately HKD9,197,000 attributable
to the business of Jin Dragon and its subsidiaries
which generated total revenue of approximately
HKD21,936,000 for the period since its acquisition.

ERENTER ZRE—BAMmET
Z261,000,0001% X 18 A% 17 89 2 7B
B H2EWE R RAEE BRI

UREF RETRESHERFZ
BREE 5 N H W R 2 A FHE
B(EEXMTASHESEBEF)RK
8RR 2k -

SEREEBZFNBRBEEH
K BB B A Rz 7 FEAE A K
9,197,000 7T - B FAEE R UREE )
B EE £ 48 % SRR #4921,936,000/8 7T
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fr O B ¥5 HR R it 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

214

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2014 the Group’s revenues and loss for the year from
continuing operations would have been approximately
HKD280,175,000 and approximately HKD4,887,000,
respectively. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2014, nor is it intended
to be a projection of future results.

On 28 February 2014, the Group completed an
acquisition of the remaining 50% equity interests in a
joint venture, JFT Holdings, for a cash consideration
of HKD25,000,000. The Directors considered this
acquisition as an acquisition of assets and liabilities
because JFT Holdings did not constitute a business at
the acquisition date.

Upon completion of the acquisition, the Group’s 50%
interest in joint venture already held was treated
as being disposed of at fair value amounting to
HKD25,000,000 on the date of acquisition. As a result,
a fair value gain on remeasurement of equity in a joint
venture of approximately HKD10,051,000 has been
recognised and is included in other income in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

45. WS B AT (48

(a)

(b)

(%)

fi E U BB 20145F1 A 1B B 8k &K
EERBECEEB I FRNEEER
& 1815 5 Bl & %9280,175,000/% T &
#94,887,000/8 7T © & & RHE 75 RP
Z R W3R B RFRUE D R2014
FIAIRERMERSH 2 & %%
RISERBIRE  NIERREFE 2T

Al e

201462 A28  REE L E &K
{E25,000,000/8 TREE N & & B X
R IR 2 BIER 2 88 T 50% A4 - AR
AR E Sl N SN AR I E
B RALEEKZRERRKEEE
kA&

R TR %  NEBREERED
KRB 2 D0%RE s AR A 1R MBS B AR
7 A {8 {E25,000,000/% TT HH & »
I BREFFE—EEDEZRE
2 ANF(EE WS 4910,051,0007% 7T
Wktra 2 ERERET AEAUA -

HKD’000
THET

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition : WS E A 2 IS M R
Cash consideration BeRE 25,000
Bank balances and cash acquired FTukBE SR T4 sr IR & (1,486)
23,514
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6 M IR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

On 15 September 2014, the Group completed an
acquisition of the entire equity interest in Trillion
Earning Limited (“Trillion Earning”), for considerations
satisfied as to approximately HKD95,938,000 by
cash, as to approximately HKD233,851,000 by the
allotment and issue of 260,260,000 new shares by the
Company and as to approximately HKD159,663,000
by the transfer by the Group of the 42% equity interest
in Giant Eagle Enterprises Limited (“Giant Eagle”)
and the 42% of all amounts owed by Giant Eagle and
its subsidiaries (“Giant Eagle Loans”). The Directors
considered this acquisition as an acquisition of assets
and liabilities because Trillion Earning did not constitute
a business at the acquisition date.

45. WEsM B A E] (4)

(c)

R20145F9A15H A& & T K Ui
B Trillion Earning Limited ([ Trillion
Earning ) 2 =& ik RE 24
95,938,000/ L AR & & 4+ 49
233,851,000/ 7T i 8 A~ A & i 3%
% 2 17260,260,000 0% %7 % (7 45 1<
K 49159,663,000/%8 7T i 38 2N &
& ZGiant Eagle Enterprises Limited
([Giant Eagle]) 242%% ¥ K Giant
Fagle R EMBARIGR 222
42% ([ Giant EagleE &) &1 > AR
Trillion EarninghA U B8 B BAE T E Rk 3£
% EAREZBZBERABEEE
SN

HKD’000
THET

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WS EE A 2 IS R 5E
Cash consideration BeRE 95,938
Bank balances and cash acquired FTuk BB SR 1T 45 s IR & (86,938)
8,958

Furthermore, the vendor has given a guarantee to the
Group that for each of the three calendar years from
the date of completion, the rental revenue less all
taxes and all agency fees (“Net Revenue”) as shown
in the audited or the latest management accounts of
Worldwide Properties Limited (“Worldwide Properties”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Trillion Earning, shall
not be less than HKD25,000,000. If the Net Revenue
falls short of HKD25,000,000 in any of these three
calendar years, the vendor shall on demand pay to the
Group the full amount of the shortfall in cash. If the
Net Revenue exceeds HKD25,000,000, a sum equal to
certain percentage of the excess over HKD25,000,000
shall be paid by the Group to the vendor after the issue
of the audited or the latest management accounts of
Worldwide Properties.

gEoh B RASEEELRE - BIEE
ERBHEH ZEEFSF  EH
EXBRDA ([FEBEZ]  Trillion
Earningz 2 &M B A 7)) & FEix s &
MEZ BERRE AR e & ¥R
MR ERBEHERREER ([F
#7184 5225,000,00078 7T ©
MRZ A EEAER FEERE
1K 725,000,000 7T - I E S BB E
KAAEBURS I F2EEE RN
EHRBENRCERATAHA TR
BR B 7% - 4 F & 3 8888 #825,000,000
75 7T + Bl — 248 & 58 125,000,000
B2 &HEIE—E B DT EZRIE
BHAERSNTFES -
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45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

216

(Continued)

Based on the Directors’ best estimation by considering
the probability-weighted average of payouts associated
with each possible outcome in respect of the above
revenue guarantee, the fair value of the revenue
guarantee is not material as at both the completion
date and 31 December 2014. Accordingly, such
revenue guarantee was not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

On 30 September 2014, the Group completed an
acquisition of the entire equity interest in & &R K
RIERMD B AT (“Golden Palais”), for a cash
consideration of NTD117,133,000, equivalent to
approximately HKD29,885,000. The acquisition was
made as the Directors believe the growth prospects for
duty free business in Taiwan are bright and can widen
the Group's revenue base.

45. WS B AT (&

(c)

(%)
WeasireE 2 R FHEEDREESTEE

B LR B 2 S E A e AR
FTEARY 2B R MEFE®R BT
ez R EMF WEREZAFEE
MNFEsk B 8 %2014 12 318 5+
BAR AL ZWSRBL BN E
M HmERNTER

M2014F9H30H - K & B 5T K
WEBESERARERNDERR A
(BXR)z28EE RERE
£3117,133,000%1 & % - HHE R L
29,885,000/ Tt ° 1F Hi & T8 W i 7Y |
REFHEEEZRHEBIERA
REM ARANEEN U EERE -

HKD’000
TAT

Fair value of assets and liabilities acquired: FrEEERBEATER:
Property, plant and equipment W% BB R 3,088
Inventories FE 8,014
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b e AR R 616
Restricted bank deposit ZRHIRITIER 1,531
Bank balances and cash IRITERER S 27,190
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMEMNRR (2,243)
Withholding tax payables FEA TEFOFR (5,102)
33,094
Bargain purchase gain arising on acquisition WIEEEZZEBE R (3,209)
Cash consideration BeERE 29,885

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEA ZRE M F58E:

Cash consideration BeRE 29,885
Bank balances and cash acquired Frus B SR 1T 45 5R M IR & (27,190)
2,695
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8 M IR IR 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(Continued)

Gain on bargain purchase of approximately
HKD3,209,000 was recognised as other income and
gains in the statement of comprehensive income upon
completion of the acquisition of Golden Palais, which
is mainly attributable to the discount upon negotiation
with the vendor.

The fair value of trade and other receivables, equivalent
to its gross contractual amount as shown above, is
considered as fully recoverable.

Loss for the year from continuing operations includes
a loss of approximately HKD1,356,000 attributable
to the business of Golden Palais and its subsidiaries
which generated total revenue of approximately
HKD1,609,000 for the period since its acquisition.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2014 the Group’s revenues and loss for the year
from continuing operations would have been
HKD270,938,000 and HKD13,766,000 respectively.
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2014, nor is it intended to be
a projection of future results.

45. WSk B A E] (4)

(%)

KRB ERTKE CEIRER
B I 55 493,209,000/ T 1A & H UL a
REERD A E MW S Mzt - WIEE &
ZHBBEWRTIEEANEEHERD
‘g

B REMBUERN A FEERE
REXFIRERNERE RESEH
A] Y@

FEREEBZFABERELE
KEREWMBRRZEBRGEEIRG
1,356,000/ 7T * A B 1570 WU iE i
61 EE £ 482 R #R 491,609,000/8 7T °

& W R2014F1AIHE EA - A&
SERFERLEXEBZFNEXE
R &5 18 1 9 Bl /270,938,000 7T K&
13,766,000/8 7T ° 5 E B RHE 7L EA
ZA - WIEAEERREBEZ1K2014
FIAIBEZTKMEBERGL 22X
RGERBER MERKERZTE
Al e
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45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

On 4 June 2013, the Group completed an acquisition
of the remaining 50% equity interest in China Ocean
it did not own for a consideration of approximately
HKD11,801,000. The total cash consideration of
USD15,500,000 (approximately HKD120,150,000)
includes the consideration for the purchase of the
shareholder’s loan owed by China Ocean to the vendor
of approximately HKD108,349,000. The acquisition
was made as the Directors believe the growth
prospects for trademark rights licensing business are
bright and can widen the Group's revenue base.

Upon completion of the acquisition, the Group’s 50%
interest in joint venture already held was treated as
being disposed of and immediately reacquired at fair
value on the date of obtaining control. As a result, a
fair value gain on re-measurement of equity in a joint
venture of approximately HKD5,159,000 has been
recognised and is included in other income in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

45. WS B AT (48

R2013F6 A48 AEB K UER
RIEAHIChina Oceanfh T50%AXHE -
KRB A #911,801,000% T - IR £ £
815,500,000 7t ( £7120,150,0007%
7T ) B 588 B China Ocean4: /X = 5 HY
%2R & 3K 49108,349,00058 7T » 1EH =
BRETIEREEREHIEEEER
ML RATSE T AEEASE K

REBTKE AEECHERZD
K Z50% R A E T E R AIEIR
RSEHEEEZATFEEENB
AcE Bt EAEREZIE
Z B EKE#5,159,000/ TE
R YAt AREEERERZEM
AR -

HKD’000
T

Fair value of assets and liabilities acquired: FrEEERBEAFEE:
Property, plant and equipment Y B R 1,006
Intangible assets B EE 248 841
Loans receivable EURE K 3,106
Inventories FE 5,173
Trade and other receivables E 5 N HAth lE I BR X 38,940
Amounts due from related companies FE U B8 &E N Bl FkIA 5,062
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRIR S 3,067
Trade and other payables B 5 R HEMEMAERR (40,053)
Amounts due to holding companies FERTE AR A R FRIE (201,367)
Amounts due to related companies FESTRAE R R 5B (6,896)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIB A E (20,285)
36,594
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45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

45. WEsM B A E] (4)

Gain on bargain purchase of approximately
HKD12,992,000 was recognised upon completion of
the acquisition of China Ocean. The gain on a bargain
purchase on acquisition was mainly attributable to
increase in fair value of intangible assets acquired.
The gain on bargain purchase was included in other
income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

The fair value of the 50% equity interest in China
Ocean, an unlisted company, already held by the
Group was estimated by reference to the purchase
price paid for acquisition of its additional 50% equity
interest by the Group.

(e) (Continued) (e) (#&)
HKD’000
FET
Bargain purchase gain arising on acquisition: WIEBEAZHZEBE R
Cash consideration for additional FEINOWAZHE 2 IR S KB
50% equity interest 11,801
Add: fair value of the 50% equity interest 0 BAEER0REE 2 NTFEE
already held 11,801
Total consideration BRE 23,602
Less: net assets acquired O FTEE E EFE (36,594)
(12,992)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEE A 2 IRE T R
Cash consideration BeRE 120,150
Bank balances and cash acquired FriBBSRITE SR RIRE (3,067)
117,083

A ULEE China Ocean7ehki% @ R =
B 8 W 25 4912,992,0007% 7T ° Ua BE
EEZEEEBERSEEENATRE
ZEREAENTEEEM ZEEE
Was BT AGRA B RE M2 W
RZHEMBAR-

EHAEEREZ —HFELTAA
China OceanZ50% % # 2 A FEE
T2 E 7N 6 [E ph Y S H 5B INS0 % I e
B zEEEMmMME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F12A31H L FE

45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

(Continued)

Loss from continuing operations for the year ended
31 December 2013 includes a loss of approximately
HKD28,987,000 attributable to the business of China
Ocean and its subsidiaries which generated total
revenue of approximately HKD33,197,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2013 since its acquisition.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2013, the Group's revenue from continuing
operations for the year ended 31 December 2013
would have been HKD238,201,000 and loss for the
year from continuing operations would have been
HKD187,493,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved for the
year ended 31 December 2013 had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2013, nor is it intended
to be a projection of future results.

The fair value of loan receivables and trade and other
receivables at the date of acquisition, equivalent to
its gross contractual amount as shown above, was
considered as fully recoverable.

46. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

220

In order to provide reliable and more relevant information

about the financial performance of the outlet mall, the

Directors consider it more appropriate to reclassify the

management income from outlet mall amounting to
HKD7,059,000, which arises in the course of the ordinary
activities of the segment, from other income and gains to

revenue in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income for the year ended 31 December 2013, to conform to

current year’s presentation.
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45. WSk B A E] (4)

(e)

(%)

B E2013F12A31R I FEREHE
4 Z TS 5B B FEChina Ocean & H
Bt /B8 A B 35 7% FE A B3 18 £928,987,000
Y570 B H UL EE LA 2K - China Ocean
K HMt B8~ B B £2013F 12831
BEFERNEENKZBE ALY
33,197,0005 JT °

fiti g B 2 W2013%F 1A 18 %K -
NEEH E2013412A318 &
EREFBLEEB 2 R=EER
238,201,000 7T« M 2K B FHE & &
¥ 7% 2 F [Z 518 & 5187,493,000/%8
ToBEEREMRSTBPZA  WIER
EEBRRUEEDR2013F1A18 %K
MBS HAE E20135F12831H 1E
FEZEEEREEEEERZ NIk
RIRSEE 2 TER -

PUEE R IR E AR E 5 K H A
FEW AR SR E) R HEEEE R LR
HANEsE waszgm k-

46. ELE BB

AEREEERERIMERBZAEZR
EZHEEEH EERAE BRHHBEF
EBBRPMEEZRERTZERBKA
7,059,000 oA B £2013F 12 A31 H IEF

Bz

A EE AR AR R A R

ENDBEREXBENERAE UFE
FEZE2HITA -



RESULTS

Revenue

(Loss)/profit before
income tax credit/(expense)

Income tax credit/(expense)

(Loss)/profit for the year from
continuing operations

Profit/(loss) for the year from
discontinued operations,
after tax

Profit/(loss) for the year

Profit/(loss) attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

£
EXEE

PRGBS,
(P32 A
(B518) /Al
FEHES,/ (Fx)

RERBERERBL
FE (B1R) 8T

RECRLELE
EB2FERN
(BR) (%K)

FEwF,/ (ER)

i (B#E) &7
VNI ZEUN
— IR S

BERAHE

BERE
BERE

RRREAA
FEIGHEaS
eIl g Fi

Financial Summag
Bl
Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31H1LEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD'000
THERT THET THET THT FHT
(Restated)
(BEY))
263,831 219,165 149,335 134,061 78,108
(30,531) (187,533) (175,869) (62,978) 59,422
2,133 2,079 (2,387) (14,422) (16,857)
(28,398) (185,454) (178,256) (77,400) 42,565
28,604 176,870 (46,090) 113,256 61,625
206 (8,584) (224,346) 35,856 104,190
19,095 15,454 (214,346) 23,811 104,455
(18,889) (24,038) (10,000) 12,045 (265)
206 (8,584) (224 ,346) 35,856 104,190
As at 31 December
®12A31H

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHET THET FHET FHT FHT
3,488,416 2,965,602 3,021,107 2,704,076 2,186,639
(1,076,673) (904,060)  (1,209,723) (804,646) (660,063)
2,411,743 2,061,542 1,811,384 1,899,430 1,526,576
2,188,227 1,788,849 1,491,488 1,695,066 1,424,824
223,516 272,693 319,896 204,364 101,752
2,411,743 2,061,542 1,811,384 1,899,430 1,526,576
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Particulars of Major Properties
TEMEER

(A) PROPERTIES HELD AS PROPERTY, PLANT (A) 9EAY%E BERSREMYE
AND EQUIPMENT

Gross floor Effective
area % held
Location Lease term MR Sitearea Use #E
HEs HEY mE HREE S ERRbE
(sq.ft.) (sq.m.)
Unit Nos. 6 to 10, portions of B Medium 14,090 N/A Commercial 100
Unit Nos. 1 and 5 on the it AR S ES10% HHA e
10/F of Island Place Tower, BEXEIOE
No. 510 King's Road, 12558 & n B fL
North Point, NM6ZE105% B AL
Hong Kong
Lot No. Shenbei 2008-050 hEAREM Medium N/A 100,146  Commercial 70
North Puheda Road BEELELT R [
Hushi Tai Development Zone,  RABEER
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, & A&t
PRC #Z4£2008-050%f
Lots No. Shenbei (G) 2008-017 A ZEAREFIE Medium N/A 45166  Industrial 70
North Puheda Road, BEEREET A T¥
Hushi Tai Development Zone,  RABEER
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, & A&t
PRC %4k (G) 2008-0175%
(B) PROPERTIES HELD AS INVESTMENT (B) pEBIEYENYE
PROPERTIES
Gross floor Effective
area % held
Location Lease term MR Sitearea Use #E
HES HEY mE HREE AR B E
(sq.ft.) (sq.m.)
Unit Nos. 1 to 10 on the B Medium 20,090 N/A  Commercial 100
3/F of Island Place Tower, A H A e
No. 510 King's Road, B E5105%
North Point, BB AEIE
Hong Kong 121058 R
Portion B on 5/F, B Medium 4,462 N/A  Industrial 100
No. 32 Hung To Road, BEEE A T¥
Kwun Tong, % B {83255
Kowloon SEBEH BAL
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Particulars of Major Properties

FMmMESEH
Gross floor Effective
area % held
Location Lease term 4 % Sitearea  Use #E
2 HEY mE HREEE S B E
(sq.ft.) (sq.m.)
Unit Nos. 2 to 4, portions of B Medium 6,000 N/A  Commercial 100
Unit Nos. 1 and 5 on the 10/F 1t AE 285105 R e
of Island Place Tower, BEKRKELE
No. 510 King's Road, 2EAREM R
North Point, 1258 B
Hong Kong
Unit C, 2/F, B Long 4,864 N/A  Industrial 100
Hop Ming Factory Building, g =8 I%
No. 8 On Yip Street, R EHHR
Chai Wan, ARIRAE
Hong Kong 2HECENL
Site No. 88, FEARAME Medium N/A 44,237  Commercial/ 51.04
North Puheda Road, BELEGT H A Residential
Daoyi Development Zone, B R mE/EE
Shenbei New District, BEERRE
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, &/l A&k
PRC 885E 1 I
Site No. 89 I AR A Medium N/A 55,101  Commercial 100
North Puheda Road, EEREEGT H A [SES
Daoyi Development Zone, BT R
Shenbei New District, EERER
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, &/l AL
PRC 895E 1 Ik
Site No. 124 AR Long N/A 94,450  Commercial/ 51.04
North Puheda Road, BELEGT RH Residential
Daoyi Development Zone, B e mE/EE
Shenbei New District ERLER
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, &/l AL
PRC 1245% 1358
12th, 14th, 16th and FEILRER R Medium 10,472 N/A Commercial 100
18th Floors, Beijing Junefield FRMIAE6 -8 HH [SES
Plaza, 10th Building, 10412 16 %185k
Nos. 6, 8, 10, 12, 16, 18 10971 1214+ 16
Xuan Wu Men Outer Street N 182

Xuan Wu District, Beijing,
The People’s Republic of China

MESEEBRRASE 204FERS .



Information to Stakeholders
fll ZS iBRA S & H

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Details of the Annual General Meeting are set out in the Notice of
Annual General Meeting to be despatched to Shareholders together
with a proxy form.

Date: Friday, 12 June 2015
Time: 9:30 a.m.
Venue: 10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road,

North Point, Hong Kong
ANNUAL REPORT

The Annual Report containing financial statements and notes
to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 is published on both the websites of the Company (www.
symphonyholdings.com) and the Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk).

REGISTERED OFFICE

Address: Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Address: 10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road,
North Point, Hong Kong
Email: info@symphonyholdings.com

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

Name:
Address:

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Name: Tricor Tengis Limited

Address: Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 29801333

Facsimile: (852) 28108185

‘ Symphony Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014
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